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The Company, the earliest brewery in China, can trace its
root back to 1903 when its predecessor, the State-owned
Tsingtao Brewery Factory, was established. The Company
was registered and established on 16 June 1993, and then
issued H-shares in Hong Kong which were listed on the
Stock Exchange on 15 July 1993, being the first domestic
enterprise listed on an overseas stock exchange. In July 1993,
the Company issued A-shares in Mainland China, which were
listed on SSE on 27 August 1993.

The Company’s business scope is production and sales of
beer, and other related business. At present, the Company
occupies leading position in the domestic beer industry in
terms of size and market share with 60 wholly-owned and
controlling breweries, and 2 associated and joint-investment
breweries in 20 provinces, municipalities and autonomous
regions in China. The Company produces Tsingtao Beer,
which is the most well-known Chinese brand on the
international market. Products from Tsingtao Brewery has
been sold in more than 100 countries and regions around the
world.
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Prepared in accordance with the China
Accounting Standards for Business

Enterprises (“CAS”)

1. The Group’s financial information for the year

ended 31 December 2020

(Bfr : ARWEETFIC) (Unit: RMB’000)
R Operating profit 3,250,085
P A A Total profit 3,239,549
i B 7> Bk ) e R R T Net profit attributable to shareholders of the

Company 2,201,324
S G I RE 2 ) JBE SR 0 B I 4% k1 R AR R Net profit attributable to shareholders of the

Company after deduction of non-recurring profit

or loss 1,815,585
AR Y A ) B A U A Net cash flows from operating activities 4,953,422
A JRRE AR H B Note: Non-recurring profit or loss items include:
w1 5 00 BUR Al B Government grants recognised in profits 517,049
I i By R A Losses on disposal of non-current assets (5,204)
P A A 0 i O AR S L v £ 3 [l Reversal of bad debt provision for accounts

receivables which provision is provided on the

individual basis 10
P bt 45 TE 2 Ah i 25 SE A AN 32 Other non-operating income and expenses other

than aforesaid items (10,535)
/NEE Subtotal 501,320
JInAS Bt 5 SR A Impact of income tax expense (99,697)
A BB R £ 5 B (BLAR) Impact on the non-controlling interest, net of tax (15,884)
frat Total 385,739
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2. Bl O s 2. Summarised accounting data and financial
indicators
(7 : N REFT) (Unit: RMB’000)
FEAEH Summarised accounting information 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
BEMA Revenue 27,759,711 27,983,760 26,575,255 26,277,052 26,106,344
AR Total profit 3,239,549 2,726,911 2,379,767 2,104,819 2,123,442
S5 T 2 SR 0 Net profit attributable to sharcholders of the Company 2,201,324 1,852,103 1,422,200 1,263,017 1,043,486
S R BEA TR A BREALR Net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
B after deduction of non-recurring profit or loss 1,815,585 1,346,981 1,053,743 975,266 819,399
ey il Basic earnings per share 1.629 1371 1.053 0.935 0.772
e Diluted earnings per share 1.627 1371 1053 0.935 0.772
MBFEAHRRRMIEAEN  Basic eamings per share after deduction of
g non-recurring profit or loss 1.344 0.997 0.780 0.722 0.607
MRERHEEREZOFRENR  Diluted carnings per share after deduction of
Yets non-recurring profit or loss 1.342 0.997 0.780 0.722 0.607
RTEEFE AR (%) Fully diluted return on net assets (%) 10.67 9,66 791 737 6.40
TR 44 5 WA 3 (%) Weighted average return on net assets (%) 11.13 9.97 8.10 7.55 6.43
MR H RS R 2WEEEY  Fully diluted return on net assets after deduction of
HEHES R (%) non-recurring profit or loss (%) 8.80 7.03 5.86 5.69 5.02
MBI EHRSROMEFE  Weighted average return on net assets after deduction
BERER (%) of non-recurring profit or loss (%) 9.18 7.25 6.00 5.83 5.05
MEmEEE NN EFH Net cash flows from operating activities 4,953,422 4,016,553 3,992,008 2,312,191 2,970,891
BRABEDELNSSRE Net cash flows from operating activities
(L) per share (Note 1) 3.63 2.97 2.95 171 2.20
B Total assets 41,514,186 37,312,384 34,075,265 30,974,712 30,077,158
mafk Total liabilities 20,146,134 17,399,013 15,385,314 13,200,207 13,198,019
BB B TR R £ Total equity attributable to shareholders of the
Company 20,621,961 19,171,583 17,970,471 17,145,228 16,313,953
BB AT BORMBRFEE  Net assets per share attributable to shareholders of the
(#2) Company (Note 2) 15.12 14.19 13.30 12.69 12.08
FED: BRKGEEEENBReREFESIEBE G s 4T Note 1: In the calculation process of net cash flows from
T RSTEI RN SRBETE > A ERNBEE operating activities per share, the numerator is
A 3 AR R A Y 1,320 5 % PR o) e JE 2 A R B AK o net cash flows from operating activities, and the

denominator is the total share capital including 13.2
million restricted shares that have not been vested as
of the end of the Reporting Period.

2 BBRATR IR SR FEETERE D 7 A Note 2:  In the calculation process of net assets per share
S g O B A W) IR R M A H R B R R BR R E attributable to shareholders of the Company, the
S R R ARG A 1,320 75 B B o) e T 2 o 4 B AR o numerator is the equity attributable to shareholders

of the Company, and the denominator is the total
share capital including 13.2 million restricted
shares that have not been vested as of the end of the
Reporting Period.
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3. Changes in shareholders’ equity in Reporting Period

(Hfr 2 AR#FFIC) (Unit: RMB’000)
Tt 3
DYURAHE R Total
BURR A R R Non-controlling ~ shareholders’
Attributable to shareholders of the Company interests equity
e
o AR Other —RuEEE  AARAR
JiA BEAAR Less:  comprehensive BRAK General ~ Undistributed

HH Item Share capital Capital surplus Treasury stock income Surplus reserve reserve profits

By Opening balance 1,350,983 3444318 — (47,348) 1,400,704 234716 12,788,210 741,788 19913371

At Increase in the current year 13,200 410,367 (279,576) 27497 — 25,628 2,201,323 126,832 2525271

KD Decrease in the current year — (179,393) — — — — (768,609) (122,528) (1,070,590

WA Ending balance 1,364,183 3,675,292 (279,576) (19,851) 1,400,704 260,344 14,220,864 746,092 21,368,052

(1) BEAS = 38 32 2 50 PR R B0 e R o) e S S (1) Share capital: Increase represents the grant of the
Rl restricted shares under Incentive Plan;

(2)  EAARE WG 3R R T G PR ) R (2) Capital surplus: Increase mainly represents the
Bhar BT E > WA EERRERAFERT %2 grant of the restricted shares under Incentive
AR A RA A A NARA R Z A Plan. Decrease represents the purchase of the
A L B AR T 5 T A PR A W] 35% A BOURERE &R 35% of the minority equity of Shandong Lulansa
VLS Beer Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, held

by Shandong Huashi Beer Co., Ltd.;

(3)  FLAEME ¢ 4 m = B IR R e K o e A S U (3) Treasury stock: Increase is due to the grant of the
BEES® restricted shares under Incentive Plan;

4 HAbZEaEYs M EEFEFEENTERE (4)  Other comprehensive income: Decrease is mainly
25w E R 0 R B RN I B R YT A due to the changes arising from remeasurement
BAREC s of defined benefit plan liabilities and currency

translation differences;

(5)  — B )ml b HE A 380 s A AR B R BUAY — % R B (5)  General reserve: Increase represents the general
Wethi s reserve appropriated in the current year;

(6)  ARATELAIY < 3 Za A< 4 3 BT B 04 B RS R B A (6) Undistributed profits: Increase represents net
] JBe SR R > A Ry AR JIE R — R B profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
Wi DL B Ay T A 5 in the current year. Decrease represents the

appropriation of general reserve and distribution
of dividends in the current year;

(7) AU EMEDS « 38 32 2 R PR R A AR B 40 i (7) Non-controlling interests: Increase is mainly

WA F A TR > W A W B%
20 W HE D e AR A R 38 ) WU SR TG )

due to profit of certain subsidiaries with non-
controlling interests in the current year. Decrease
represents the purchase of minority equity
of Shandong Lulansa Beer Co., Ltd. and the
distribution of dividends in the current year.
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Dividend Distribution

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) proposed a
final dividend of RMBO0.75 (pre-tax) per share for
the year ended 31 December 2020, and the remaining
distributable profits will carry forward to the next year.
The aforesaid dividend proposal shall be subject to the
approval at the 2020 annual general meeting to be held
by the Company. The period for the closure of register
of members for H-share will be set out in the notice
of the annual general meeting to be published by the

Company separately.
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Chairman’s Statement

L E A
Mr. HUANG Ke Xing
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Dear shareholders,

In 2020, the domestic beer industry, having been affected by
the COVID-19 pandemic, faced enormous difficulties and
challenges in market sales. During the Reporting Period,
the domestic beer industry produced 34.11 million kiloliters
of beer in total, representing a year-on-year decline of 7%.
(Data source: National Bureau of Statistics; statistic scope:
all industrial corporate enterprises with an annual principal
business revenue of over RMB20 million.)

During the Reporting Period, our staff as a whole as led by
the Board and our management, did not wait or rely on others,
forged ahead amidst difficulties, coordinated and mastered
overall plans for epidemic prevention and control and business
development and resolutely drove the implementation of high-
quality development strategy. The Company fully realised the
brand and quality advantages of Tsingtao Beer, carried out
multiple measures to actively develop domestic and overseas
product markets. At the same time, the Company actively
increased sources of revenue and controlled expenditures,
reduced costs and increased efficiency, continued to optimize
the fine cost management system, improved the effectiveness
of sales promotion expenses and marketing efficiency, and
achieved growth in profits in the face of headwinds. During
the Reporting Period, the Company achieved a total of 7.82
million kiloliters of product sales, realized an operating
revenue of RMB27.76 billion and a net profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company of RMB2.2 billion, with a year-
on-year increase of 18.9%.
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The Company swiftly responded in view of the impact of
COVID-19 pandemic on the domestic consumer market, by
accelerating the expansion of online consumption channels
and the implementation of “Contactless Delivery” services
pioneered the development of “Digital Map for Contactless
Delivery” in the beer industry for the whole of China to
achieve the perfect integration of online sales and offline
delivery. The Company has also launched big discount
activities for million-societies online and million-communities
offline, established and improved a multidimensional sales
platform of “e-commerce + stores + producers outlets” and
opened up a new marketing channel in a pandemic situation.

During the Reporting Period, the Company continued
to deepen the implementation of the brand strategy of
“Tsingtao Beer as Core Brand + Laoshan Beer as Second
Brand”, promote innovation-driven and product structure
optimization and upgrading, continuously enhancing brand
influence through pervasive all-round brand promotion, and
successfully achieved product category upgrade through
higher quality, more fashionable and attractive packaging, and
more international and interactive branding exposure. During
the year, the Company developed and sold new ultra highend

products such as “Tsingtao Centennial Journey and Amber
Lager”, which achieved a leaping breakthrough from
“fundamental quality + characteristic quality” to “charismatic
quality”, led the consumption trend for the ultra high-
end market, and greatly improved the Company’s product
image and market competitiveness. Centering on consumer
experience, the Company has planned more than 200
Tsingtao1903 Tsingtao Beer Bars across the country, through
promoting high-quality development by creating new channels
and new venues, to interact with consumers with high-end,
personalized, and fashionable products and continuously
meeting their multi-level needs such as personalization,
sceneization, convenience and high-end. During the Reporting
Period, the main brand of the Company, Tsingtao Beer,
achieved a total sales volume of 3.879 million kiloliters,
of which high-end products such as “Tsingtao Centennial
Journey, Amber Lager, Augerta, Hong Yun Dang Tou, Classic
1903 and draft beer” achieved a sales volume of 1.792 million
kiloliters, which maintained the Company’s competitive
advantage in domestic mid- to high-end beer market, and led
the high-quality development under a new trend of consumer
structure upgrade.
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The Company accelerated the pace of digital production
transformation, intelligent manufacturing and industrial
internet development. By accelerating the integrated
application of new technologies such as Internet of Things,
big data and artificial intelligence in building systematic and
intelligent production base, the Company built intelligent
manufacturing demonstration factories and drove upstream
and downstream enterprises to upgrade the modernization
level of the production chain. It commenced the reconstruction
and expansion projects, such as the Expansion of Tsingtao
Brewery Smart Industry Demonstration Park with the Capacity
of 1 Million KL Beer and the Expansion and Upgrading of the
Intelligent Manufacturing Demonstration Plant of Tsingtao
Brewery Factory. Tsingtao Brewery was rated as the world’s
first industrial internet “Lighthouse Brewery” for the beer
industry by the World Economic Forum, which improved
the supply capability of high-end products and promoted the
transformation and upgrading of the Company.

At the peak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Board promptly
formulated and launched the first post-listing “Restricted A
Share Incentive Plan”, and set a relatively challenging growth
target for its future financial results that greatly boosted
the confidence of the employees and the capital market.
The Company achieved a significant increase in its market
value during the Reporting Period and created new value for
investors.

Chairman

HUANG Ke Xing

Qingdao, the People’s Republic of China
26 March 2021
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[. Operations of the Company

The Company is mainly engaged in the production and sales
of beer, while its subsidiaries and associated companies are
mainly engaged in the production, sales and domestic trade
of beer. The turnover and profits of the Group are mainly
generated from the production and sales of beer.

In 2020, the Company realized 7.82 million kil of sales volume
of beer in total, realized RMB27.76 billion of revenue;
and realized RMB2.20 billion of net profits attributable to
shareholders of the Company.

1. Operation situation of main subsidiaries (calculated
in accordance with China Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises)

Hfr: T WEE:ARK
Unit: RMB’000 Currency: RMB

kIR A BRAW
Registered Ly 39 AW BRBKA  Operating
capital Totalasset ~ Net asset  Net profit Revenue profit

R G % A A A BOE - MAEMEER
Tsingtao Brewery Xi’an Hans Manufacturing, wholesale
Group Company Limited and retail business

HRUWE (TE) #EFRARE HBEMTER
Tsingtao Brewery (Pingdu) Wholesale and retail
Sales Company Limited business

2. WHEBIAEEERENE PR

(1) 2020 4F 3 Al 0 44 436 1B 7 $R I 4 40 A RS 168,248
B (20194 « AR 139,065 70) » (G4
PRI AE%13.05% (20194 B : 10.27%) ©

(2) 2020 EW AR FHERFHAANRF 133,743 5
JC(20194E )% + N 124,325 #558) » 15 4E ¥ &
BT 4.89% (2019 4R & 4.50%) ©

287,903 2,494,699 939,881 256,312 2,695,155 344,087

5,000 951,384 790,818 293275 1,655,411 391,034

2. Information of main suppliers and clients during the
Reporting Period

(1) The total amount of the Company’s purchase
from its top 5 suppliers in 2020 was
approximately RMB1,682.48 million (2019:
RMBI1,390.65 million), which accounted for
13.05% of its annual purchase amount in
aggregate (2019: 10.27%).

(2) The total amount of the Company’s sales of

its top 5 clients in 2020 was approximately
RMBI1,337.43 million (2019: RMBI1,243.25
million), which accounted for 4.89% of its annual

sales amount in aggregate (2019: 4.50%).




14

H OB MWW M A R A A TSINGTAO BREWERY CO., LTD.

HHEFME  Report of the Directors

BEHIA > AARKESR - BF IR ERHRARE
il 5 A A B JBAR 20 5% 2 SRR M B A bk > 4k
B RS MRS

. R oy BE AR S BUR

ERGEBMARE 2020412 H 31 H IR EIRE KRBT
AR 0758 (BB » HERRS WA MA T4 -
bt 43 TE T R R AR AR A ] 2020 4 B AR € B e Pk ok o R
I B TR 2021458 H 10 HIREE PR - A B AR HIR
JBe ST {5 e B 403 8 )5 B G A R NT T 0 AR WDIFAE 3 AT A
A 14 B B4 i R B o

MRARCA R BRI > AT EATFR A - B3 I 4 T
B > FEA R EAE B A B R GRS B 2 E AR ATR T
WEEEATBLG 0 AL > HL 2 v 3 3 5T B4 4 A0 18 2 T TR 5
H LB 4 5 2K 43 T 0 A0 3P A 6K B 4 T B G T 4 TS D 3R
30% © AT B AL T RIREFOGR A R E ST F R - Wl
B ROR ET e o LI BUAT I S N RO BB T R
R P EE - 55 e

= R nl

A T AR P9 2 S5 1 R B A A R AR J v B A AT
AR A 4 ) T 3k A e e A il PR R i R AR A
We s 57 35 76 H[ A5 BILE il i BL oy AT | o PR D B 5 2 B B i 4
Ao S AR T A P 2 B 2 A0 T SO A AR SR 4 Tt SO
o AR N AR ERFHBRRAERE 4 ESSH
[ -

During the Reporting Period, none of the Company’s
directors, supervisors or their close associates or any
shareholders holding more than 5% of shares in the
Company possessed any interests in the aforesaid
suppliers or clients.

II. Profit Distribution and Dividend
Payout Policy

The Board proposed a final dividend of RMBO0.75 (including
tax) per share for the year ended 31 December 2020, and
carried forward the remaining distributable profits to the
next year. The above mentioned distribution scheme will be
subject to the consideration and approval at the Company’s
2020 Annual General Meeting. The final dividend is expected
to be payable to the shareholders on 10 August 2021. The
period for closure of register of members for H-share would
be set out in the separate notice of Annual General Meeting to
be published by the Company.

According to the Articles of Association, the Company
implements a continuous and stable profit distribution policy.
On the premise that the Company makes profits with positive
accumulated undistributed profits for the current year, cash
dividends shall be paid. In the annual profit distribution plan
formulated by the Board of Directors, the profit distributed
in cash shall be no less than 30% of the distributable profits
realized in the current year. The cash dividend plan of
the Company is considered by the Board of Directors and
approved at the annual general meeting. The independent
non-executive directors and minority shareholders can
fully express their opinions, and the procedure is legal and
complete.

III. Business Review

A review of the business of the Company within the
year and a discussion and analysis of the Company’s
future development, and the discussion of principal risks
and uncertainties faced by the Company are set out in
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 57 to 76 of
this Annual Report. An analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year by using the key financial indicators is set out
in “Financial Highlights” on page 4 of this Annual Report.
Significant events occurred during the Reporting Period are
set out in “Significant Events” on pages 84 to 85 of this
Annual Report.
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The Company has addressed great importance of
environmental protection and pollution control. It insists
the concept of “kindness is repaid by kindness” and aims
to become “an example of green development in beer
industry”. Through the environmental practice of low-carbon
management and circular economy, the Company promotes
sustainable development and makes harmonious coexistence
with nature possible. It makes environmental protection,
circular economy and low-carbon economy as important
components of its development strategy and sustainable
development. The Company has set up an independent Safety
and Environmental Management Department to carry out
environmental management with licensed environmental
professionals carrying out their duties. The Company has
improved various environmental management policies
and issued related technical standards for environmental
protection. By focusing on its annual target and operation
policies, the Company has identified management risks
within the Company, rapidly implemented environmental
management requirements, promoted the accountability
system and appraisal mechanism for environmental goals.
During the Reporting Period, the Company strictly followed
environmental laws and regulations and continued to increase
spending on environmental protection. In 2020, the Company
spent RMB43 million on environmental protection, mainly
for improvement of sewage facilities, building of low-
nitrogen gas boilers and odor and noise control. It continued
to improve pollution regulation and control facilities to
stabilize their operations. The Company strictly monitored the
operation of environmental facilities and pollutant emissions
during production to ensure up-to-standard pollutant disposal
and continuous enhancement of efficacy of environmental
protection.

Within 2020, the Group had complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that has significant impacts on the operations
of the Group.

The Company confirms that the employees, customers
and cooperation partners are the key to our sustainable
development. The Group is committed to establishing a close
and caring relationship with our employees, providing quality
products to the customers and strengthening the cooperation
with our business partners. For details of the environmental
and social responsibilities performed by the Company, please
refer to Tsingtao Brewery 2020 Environment, Society and
Governance Report to be published by the Company on the
website of the Stock Exchange.
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VY . o s B T 4 £

55 PN AR 2 T B S T 1l A 5 B R A Y A O B S R (9%
op I £ 3 € 5T e AR ) B EE Y (34) ~ 36) > (37) ~ (38) K&
(39)°

R AR Y - IR E B AR > RAECF AT 1
By WA 43 HL o 2 R b A 3 s o B4R i 14 2020 4E R AR A
) B AR 4 FL R 20 24 N R 769,463 H G o

1. BRI > A FERE T A PR S O s > 2
) 48 A 1,350,982,795 BESE T 45 1,364,182,795 i ©
25 ) BTt ¥ JBERRE SRR ) S B S O A I E R A
RSB -

A 2 T DA A 47 T 5% Wi AG S5 4% BT W AT AT H O T DA A
B~ A R 2 B RO S BB - ARAF I
O3 M e LA R L AR DB R o v W B
BeAr BB FIE T

IV. Reserves and Distributable Reserve

Details of changes of reserve of the Company and the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in Note 4 (34), (36),
(37), (38) and (39) to Consolidated Financial Statements
(prepared in accordance with China Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises).

Pursuant to the Company Law of the PRC, undistributed profit
could be distributed as dividends after allocation is made to
the statutory surplus reserve. Under the China Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises, the undistributed profit
of the Company as at the end of 2020 amounted to about
RMB7,694.63 million.

V. Changes of Share Capital and
Information of Shareholders

1. During the Reporting Period, the Company implemented
the Restricted A Share Incentive Plan, making its
total share capital change from 1,350,982,795 to
1,364,182,795. The equity incentive plan implemented
by the Company will not have significant impact on
its sharecholder structure as well as the structure of its
assets and liabilities.

Based on the public information which could be known
on the latest practicable date before the annual report
was published, which was also known by the directors
of the Company, the number of the Company’s shares
held by the public had satisfied the requirements in
Listing Rules. Changes in the Company’s ordinary
shares are listed as follows:

i g
Unit: Share
REEHHW (+-)
AKE B Change (+, ) AR 0%
Before the change N Bl After the change
hl (o) BAHR %W Capitalizing JeHl (%)
YH  Proportion  New shares Bonus  of common Hfb it Y& Proportion
Quantity (%) issued shares reserves Others Subtotal Quantity (%)
= HRERERR 0 0 13,200,000 0 0 0 13,200,000 13,200,000 0.97
I Restricted shares
| CPRiT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
L. State-owned shares
2 BEEAER 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2. State-owned

corporate shares
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AR

Before the change
HHl (%)
¥t Proportion

Quantity (%)

BT
New shares
issued

AKEHHM (+-)

Change (+, -)
AL

%MK Capitalizing
Bonus  of common
shares reserves

F F R

et Mt
Others Subtotal

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

i g
Unit: Share

AR B %
After the change
Hl (%)
i Proportion
Quantity (%)

Jefto Py vt
Other domestic
shares
o FRERA
HEAKER
Of which: non-state-
owned
corporate
shares
EALIEEIN
il
Shares held
by domestic
natural
persons
AN
Foreign shares
Jofre BEMEA
il
Of which: foreign
corporate
shares
EYNEEIN
it
Shares held
by foreign
natural
persons

13,200,000

13,200,000

0 13,200,000

0 13,200,000

13,200,000 0.97

13,200,000 097

T e i
idos
Unrestricted tradable
shares

INH il
RMB-denominated
ordinary shares
B
Overseas listed
foreign shares
Seob it e
Overseas listed
foreign shares
N

Others

695,913,617

655,069,178

1,350,982,795 100

5151

0 0

48.49

0 0

0 0

0 0

1,350,982,795 99.03

695,913,617 51.01

655,069,178 48.02

BRI
Total number of
ordinary shares

1,350,982,795 100

13,200,000

0 13,200,000

1,364,182,795 100
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2. JBe 3R 4 Dt 2. Shareholders
() HEMEKAF B RBEIEA39,608F « H: A (1)  As at the end of the Reporting Period, the total
BE39,351 F s H 2574 » number of shareholders of the Company was
39,608 including 39,351 holders of A-share, and
257 holders of H-share.
AR > AA ) B R R A S W R R During the Reporting Period, none of the
Al JBE B ZBE R AE DL © shareholders of the Company gave up or agreed
to give up the arrangements of any dividends.
Q) AR A A W) i 44 B S (B S R R 1 IR (2) As at the end of the Reporting Period, the
R ) F e i shareholding of top 10 shareholders (and holders
of listed shares without sales restriction) of the
Company is as follows
7y
Unit: Share
AR R SR R Bk
Increase/Decrease Shares held at the TR (%) Wk
i-eq during the ~ end of the Reporting Shareholding Guaranteed or Reby g
Shareholder’s name Reporting Period Period percentage (%) frozen shares Class of share
Bl (RN ERAT (2 1) 58,020 613907867 4500 KA il
HKSCC Nominees Limited (Note 1) Unknown H-share
FRBEEEHRAR (72 0 443,467,635 3231 b ARhi g
Tsingtao Brewery Group Company Limited (Note 2) Nil A-share and H-share
PRBEERRHARAF -2,492,929 30,215,986 21 & ARt
China Securities Finance Corporation Company Nil A-share
TR SHRAR A1) 4,765,161 16,764,609 123 f AR
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited (Note 1) Nil A-share
TRRERGRAARAR — HEN A ER R - 14,017,495 103 f AR
fEiks
Agricultural Bank of China Co., Ltd.-E Fund Consumer Industry Nil A-share
Equity Securities Investment Fund
TRESEEERARTEA 0 10,517,500 0.77 b Al
Central Huijin Asset Management LLC. Nil A-share
EARRBROHRAT — B4 — FERRER — 0050 4,635,587 5,345,126 039 i AR
—CT001
China Life Insurance Company Limited-Traditional-General Nil A-share

Insurance Products-005L-CT001 Shanghai
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Liigy 4
Unit: Share
LT R SR TR B
Increase/Decrease Shares held at the BRI (%) Wk
i-eq during the ~ end of the Reporting Shareholding Guaranteed or Rebytig
Shareholder’s name Reporting Period Period percentage (%) frozen shares Class of share
TETHRRGARAT — REXERERRRATES - 5,000,000 037 f AR
¥4 (LOF)
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited — Fullgoal Nil A-share
Tianhui Select Hybrid Growth Securities Investment Fund
(LOF)
R AFRRROHRAT — 4 — WAL — 0051 — - 4,997,416 037 L AR
FH002 &
China Life Insurance Company Limited-Dividend-Individual Nil A-share
Dividend-005L-FH002 Shanghai
LA KR 1,544,966 4433538 0.32 & ARt
Abu Dhabi Investment Authority Nil A-share
Kk Notes:
1. T v v g4 5 (IRBEN ) A B 7] B 45 8 v e 465 1. Both HKSCC Nominees Limited and Hong

S R4 T3 T T W B o B A AT IR A W I
ZE T HEPIEETUREA) AR
FAT W H RSB T3 IGE S W% B i > 30
1015 7 LA I e A v R B B IR A ]
FEAT I H BB S o T o P e A R A
FIFA W AR TS IR RS W E P

2. HUEEERUBRAFE TEBILASD S
W U 2 E £ R A R AR A F H BB A
#138,335,600 B > F AR By 35 A7 A 20 W] A BB
405,132,055 J§ °

3. RMEBA > HERBETE LR EBATFE
A A F] H BB 144,206,236 B » 4 A% 23 5] 48 1%
ALK 10.57% o 15 5 B R RT 5 ey 2 fh 7 v
LA (RN AR A SR 356 -

B LBt > Aoy v 3l A 0 IBE A A ]+ 4 B R
2 [HY A5 A 7 T W B AR B e — BT B -

Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited. The H-shares
are held by HKSCC Nominees Limited on behalf
of different clients excluding the H-shares held
by Tsingtao Group and Hong Kong Xinhaisheng
Investment Limited, while the A-shares are held
by Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company
Limited also on behalf of different clients.

2. Tsingtao Group holds 38,335,600 shares of
H-share in the Company by itself and through
the wholly-owned subsidiary Xinhaisheng, and
405,132,055 shares of A-share in the Company
by itself.

3. At the end of the Reporting Period, five entities
under Fosun International Co., Ltd. held a
total of 144,206,236 H shares of the Company,
accounting for approximately 10.57% of the total
share capital of the Company. The shares held by
the five entities of Fosun were held by HKSCC
Nominees Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Company is unaware
if there are any connected relationships between
these top ten shareholders of the Company or if
they are of the parties acting in concert.
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3

H B R R

H20204E 12 H 31 H » By Rk A4b > AR
HEWAMBHEMARAFMES S BF - &
FATEON B Sof Y m g A DM AL s FEAR
25 ] 1 B S A B e 4 A E AR R o T
R SR B R R IR G R B B R ) (s
SR 5713 ) (TR F RO B ) 1) 58 336 1%

3

Substantial Shareholders of H-share

Save as disclosed below, the directors of the
Company are not aware of any persons other than
a director or supervisor or chief executive of the
Company or his/her respective associate(s) who,
as at 31 December 2020, had an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the

T A5 A R 8 e Pk gkl - Company which was recorded in the register to
be kept under Section 336 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”):
Redt /R
31T { I 5 T £
Numberof — BAZHEHE T2 1
Share/  As a percentage ZHA
3 A1 IRIE D] Hhah it Related of the entire  As a percentage
Name Nature Class of Share  Shareholder Identity Note Shares issued capital ~ of all H Shares
HETREE iyl AR HMES 405,132,055 29.70% AR
SASACQ Long position A-Share Corporate Interests AR N/A
A-Share
i3l H pecubiili o 1 38,335,600 281% 5.85%
Long position H-Share Interest of controlled corporation H %
H-Share
FEERERARRARAR HA H EE VN 38,335,600 281% 5.85%
Hong Kong Xinhaisheng Long position H-Share Beneficial Owner HI
Investment Limited H-Share
HEA Lives H pecubiili o 2 14406236 H IR 10.57% 22.01%
Guo Guangchang Long position H-Share Interest of controlled corporation H-Share
Fosun Inernational Holdings 14 H i SR AR 2 144206236 H I 10.57% 22.01%
Ltd. Long position H-Share Interest of controlled corporation H-Share
HEEBHRARD il H pecubiili o 2 14406236 H I 10.57% 22.01%
Fosun International Limited  Long position H-Share Interest of controlled corporation H-Share
AR R AR i3l HE LEE N 2 104,689,626 H B 1.67% 15.98%
Fosun Industrial Holdings Long position H-Share Beneficial Owner H-Share
Limited
ATEESEAARAT KA I L EE N 58,740,000 431% 8.97%
Long position H-Share Beneficial Owner H &

H-Share
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Tedt /MR
LA S 4 T <)
Numberof — BAZHEHE T2 1
Share/  As a percentage ZHA
Al A4 J B i e it Related of the entire  As a percentage
Name Nature Class of Share ~ Shareholder Identity Note Shares issued capital ~ of all H Shares
FMRLLC iy} Ik L5E VN 3 34961183 2.56% 5.34%
Long position H-Share Beneficial Owner HR
H-Share
Baillie Gifford & Co. ith H i TR EmES  E A 3 34,477,701 253% 5.26%
Long position H-Share Interest of controlled/Investment HR
manager H-Share
PR - Notes:
(1) W2 e 75 B 1l B 2% 554 25 19 38,335,600 (1)  The 38,335,600 H-Shares which were deemed

(@)

3

(C))

3. BEeRBRE

AT BERR Dl v 1o 2 e Sl A R 6 S R RO M A A2
B A ) b S 4 Bo A8 1 BUAT JB SRR R IR >
SR > AR ) ZE 8 SF b i ) IR A BB S R M R 1 A

%o

e LM i 725 30 T I WL 4 P AT IR ] 0 A R
i o 7 A o U R R AT A WA o R
BB FRTREZSA

38,335,600 Ji H B 25 -

FRREE %64 > Fosun International Holdings Ltd. 2)
B A B R AT B R A AR A A R A 1 IR R
43 B985 38 25 o v A 25 e o) v A ) B I A ) A

B IEE A o

FIDELITY MANAGEMENT & RESEARCH 3)
COMPANY LLC 1% 22 HE 25 16 B4 A2 43 Bl
BB % K HFMR LLC ¥ Hil 1 2 % W& A 7
A ° Baillie Gifford & Co. #1555 H B 25 B
Bt 2 43 B 95 38 % X H Baillie Gifford & Co. ##

] ) 2 WO S A VAT

24 A R RACHAL S RS B > TS B 4)
2 5 B &5 L A R A B 48 3% (www . hkexnews.hk)

A BT Beda gk [ a3 o

to be interested by SASACQ were held by
Hong Kong Xinhaisheng Investment Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Tsingtao Brewery
Group Company Limited, which is controlled
by SASACQ. According to the latest disclosure
of interests filings, SASACQ was interested in
38,335,600 H-Shares.

The shares in which Mr. GUO Guangchang,
Fosun International Holdings Ltd. and Fosun
International Limited were deemed to be
interested were held through various controlled
corporations and a fund managed by the
controlled corporation held by Mr. GUO
Guangchang, Fosun International Holdings Ltd.
and Fosun International Limited.

The shares in which FIDELITY MANAGEMENT
& RESEARCH COMPANY LLC was deemed
to be interested were held through various
controlled wholly-owned subsidiaries of FMR
LLC. The shares in which Baillie Gifford &
Co. was also deemed to be interested were
held through various controlled wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Baillie Gifford & Co.

For the latest disclosure of interests filings for
the Company’s substantial shareholders, please
refer to the “Disclosure of Interests” section
on the website of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (www.hkexnews.hk).

3. Pre-emptive Right

There are no provisions concerning pre-emptive rights
in the Company’s Articles of Association or any of
laws in China, which require the Company to firstly

offer new shares on pro-rata basis to its existing

shareholders. However, the Company has to abide by

the rules concerning pre-emptive right in Listing Rules.
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N EBHE B GHESEABNELT VI. Directors, Supervisors, Senior
=RA Management Officers and
Employees
1. 2 i) o T4 0 O A T 0 R e G L 1. Restricted shares granted to directors of the
Company during the Reporting Period
iy Long positions:
L8 4
Unit: Share
gy fiAk s
313 LA WA#A
BRI Rt He#r BRI Wt WA
[ Number of A BB (%) 80y BTk
Rt restricted BAEA)  Approximate Number of EhRE Total
Number of ~ shares newly (%) percentage in restricted ~ (ARMIE)  sharcholdings
restricted granted  Approximate the issued shares held (it1) at the end
iR shares held at during the  percentage of  share capital ~ attheend of ~ Considerations of the
% 41 Shareholder the beginning Reporting  total issued A of the  the Reporting received (RMB) Reporting
Name Position capacity of the year Period Shares (%) ~ Company (%) Period (Note 1) Period
HiRE2) EE ) ¢ 3T HEEAARL 0 150,000 0.0211 0.011 150,000 3,177,000 151,400
Tflkd
HUANG Ke Xing Chairman and Secretary of Beneficial
(Note 2) the Party Committee owner and
interest of
spouse
FiH BhEs WERE-  EEAA 0 110,000 0.0155 0.008 10,000 2329800
R
YU Zhu Ming Executive Director, MemberBeneficial
of the Party Committee, ~ Owner
CFO
Tk BhEs KERE-  WEEAA 0 110,000 00155 0.008 110,000 2,329,800
AR
WANG Rui Yong Executive Director, MemberBeneficial
of the Party Committee, ~ Owner
Vice President
FET ¢ BB PR P PR 4% TR A AR 21.18 7€ © Note 1:  The grant price per restricted share is RMB21.18.
22 : HEBL AR I 151,400 B > MA A B A BT Note 2: Mr. HUANG Ke Xing is deemed to hold 151,400
BB 1,300 B 2 A B FR 1l M JB 22 150,000 JBE » At B L shares, including 1,300 tradable A-shares and
(A A BB Ay 100 88 © 150,000 restricted shares held by himself and 100

tradable A-shares held by his spouse.
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2. HAbFER ~ BB 2. The shareholding of other directors and supervisors
g Long positions:
B R
Unit: Share
IR Fy B B
R Shares held at
Fe i 5 By Shares held at the end of
%4 BB Shareholder the beginning of  the Reporting JBe 43 RS
Name Position capacity the year Period  Class of share
Tk WL IR B2 B 20,000 15000 A B b
YU Zeng Biao Independent non-executive director Beneficial Tradable
Owner A shares
FEHIT RN gt/ T DN 0 12,900 A Brifim ity
HUANG Zhu Jiang  Supervisor as Employees’ Beneficial Tradable
Representative Owner A shares

BE20204 12 H31 H 1k > BEEFFran > By Lk N B #5 )
Ab > A2 T A T B O A A R SR B s (R
BB 7 B0 B 5 ) 58 XV 58 Air i AR 3 ) e ey ~ AH
BB B B 25 w8 T A AL AT A SR > Tk SRS IR
AR BE G Fr S B R ) )5 352 0k 28 T i A7 B B 1l BT
S 1) AR i B i ) ) J A A ) e A S I AL BT o

A4 T B AR 5y FI ) L R A 4 Wl ) T KA Rl - B
B s A8 BN B P R A 2 ) JBE A e L 53 BBl vy A7 BLASE B MAE
AN TR B R AR BN BOEAT R AR 5 AT A
AL o AN W] T 1) A A W] A o o o A o R )
AP 25 7 T P S A 9 P 2 B A D R > 3 (R < I )
B JLA7 2 S U0 L 460 F AR R A R S P 8 o 28 S WA B

As at 31 December 2020, so far as the directors aware, save
as disclosed above, none of the directors or supervisors of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of SFO), and
such interests or short positions were recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of SFO or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

The Company has used the Model Code and its Administration
Regulations of Shares of the Company Held by its Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management Officers and the
Changes formulated by the Company as the code of standard
conduct for securities trading by directors, supervisors and
senior management officers of the Company. The Company
has conducted inquires on all directors and supervisors of
the Company and they affirmed that they had followed the
standards as specified in the Model Code and their code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions in all
available periods during the Reporting Period.
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WP TR

FREE LT BRI 58 13.51B(1) ik 2 o = OB 38 ol ) 4t
T

3.1 AREENERELEIMT

(1) 2AFIEBITER AR > H20204 11 Al
RSO B A B A ] o

A - B - SRR PILA ELAR B DL

HAFPATES R AR ANE > FHE LR oA
B B L A A 4 R A58 S0 M D 43 P
Bl > 55 Rk A S TN 0 AGSAF H T AR 4 R A A
N BB AT - JEIRAE PRAFESE o AURRARE 7 IR 2
AR B RRE SRR - AR AR B 5SRO - B A
BN B AR B2 A 0 R 5 T A I R

Seb oy w08 S I BUAT T R S B S R B RO L
RHAF BE I 4 -

Changes of information of directors

The change of information of directors pursuant to Rule
13.51B (1) of Listing Rules is as follows:

3.1 Update on the profile of the Company’s director
includes the following:

(1)  SHI Kun, Non-executive Director of the
Company, has been appointed as Director
of Jinhui Liquor Co., Ltd. since November
2020.

Annual remuneration of directors, supervisors and
senior management officers

For the executive directors and other senior
management officers, the Company adopts the annual
performance appraisal focusing on the position and
the administration of target responsibilities, and the
remuneration incentive program including basic salary
and annual performance remuneration. The basic
salary is determined in accordance with the senior
management officers’ position and responsibilities,
years of working, and etc., while the annual
performance remuneration is determined and distributed
in accordance with the Company’s annual operating
results, the degree of the completion of annual work
plan, the results of annual appraisal towards the senior
management officers, and etc.

The annual remuneration of the independent non-
executive directors and independent supervisors is paid
pursuant to the resolution passed at the general meeting.
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4% 390 A 0 i

(BN » & AR AR

B AR (AR # )
Total Remuneration
(Pre-tax, including social
security and provident
fund paid by the Company)

¥ W5 ik during the Reporting
Name Position Note Period (RMB0°000)
e Bl HHER - BEHR BiE 82.73
HUANG Ke Xing Chairman and Secretary of Current

the Party Committee
R AT - BRRH - B

T 85 A B 79.06
YU Zhu Ming Executive Director, Member Current

of the Party Committee,

CFO
EHGK AT - MBRRH - BUE

IR 78.38
WANG Rui Yong Executive Director, Member Current

of the Party Committee,

Vice President
PaEi ) T E S BUE 0
SHI Kun Non-executive Director Current
TH WL ATHE g BUE 12
YU Zeng Biao Independent Non-executive  Current

Director
H Bk WL I ATHE S BUL 6
XIAO Geng Independent Non-executive  Current

Director
BRI WL IR ATHE S BUL 6
SHENG Lei Ming Independent Non-executive ~ Current

Director
LA WL IR PATHE S BUL 12
JIANG Xing Lu Independent Non-executive  Current

Director
240 % R i H 2021 45 4 7 9 HEEHE 12
LI Gang Chairman of Board of Resigned on April 9, 2021

Supervisors
ey JBe 3 B BUE 0
YAO Yu Shareholder supervisor Current
2 AR BUE 8
LI Yan Independent Supervisor Current
EHE LA BUE 8
WANG Ya Ping Independent Supervisor Current
HAHIT Bk TE BUE 64.76
HUANG Zhu Jiang Supervisor as Employees’ Current

Representative
REAL Bk CE BUE 53.74
SUN Li Hong Supervisor as Employees’ Current

Representative
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4% 390 A 0 i

(BN » & AR AR

B AR (AR # )
Total Remuneration
(Pre-tax, including social
security and provident
fund paid by the Company)

¥ W5 ik during the Reporting
Name Position Note Period (RMB0°000)
B BT E BiE 55.22
MENG Qing Shang  Supervisor as Employees’ Current
Representative
B Tt B G AR BUE 352.72
CAI Zhi Wei President of Marketing Current
Center
S A L e 3% I g A BUTL 67.81
JIANG Zong Xiang  Vice President and President Current
of Supply Chain
A AR - BB - BUL
8 T3 65.29
XU Nan Vice President, President of  Current
Manufacturing and Chief
Brewer
EH P Bl BUE 64.27
Wang Shao Bo Vice President Current
A HE HHEH BUTL 64.62
ZHANG Rui Xiang  Board Secretary Current
HefE (GE) PTHESE - AR CE BB > H 2020 4E 2 7 28 H
AL BT 12.87
FAN Wei (note) Executive Director, Having reached the retirement age,
President of the Company he resigned from his positions on
February 28, 2020
JERZUN WL I PATHE S AR P A4 » 3 20204 6 A
8 H 2Tl B 4R 17 4 R AR AT 6
BEN Sheng Lin Independent Non-executive ~ Having served the position for six
Director consecutive years, he left the position
after the Company’s annual general
meeting on June 8, 2020
HE B R AT E S AR T A4 > B 20204 6 A
8 H 2T B4R 1 4 R AR R AT 6
JIANG Min Independent Non-executive ~ Having served the position for six
Director consecutive years, he left the position
after the Company’s annual general
meeting on June 8, 2020
o 1,117.47
Total -

Note: Mr. FAN Wei resigned from his positions as Executive
Director and President of the Company on February 28,

gk BEESEAE R 20204E 2 28 H BHE A W BT S AR
W > L3R BRI i A R 2 0 P A 4 R AR TR
T 118 PR

2020. His remuneration listed on the above table is for
the two months he had served in the Company during
the Reporting Period.
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BEBEHIR > AAF (B TE AR 7R
B TH5E35,678 N o B THEM R LB EH L
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Employees

51

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the
Company (including the subsidiaries) had 35,678
persons of employees in total. The composition of
employees in terms of profession and educational
background is as follows:

L9357 HORRE SN YRR A
Profession Class of Profession Number (person)
A ERBEN B Production and service personnel 15,729
HEANE Sales personnel 11,491
TEHEmAR Technical and engineering personnel 2,336
ME AR Financial personnel 1,310
TBUE RN B Administrative personnel 4,812
a5 Total 35,678
PERE PHERERN Bk (A)

Educational Background

Class of education

Number (person)

T w4 W Master’s degree and above 414
AR Undergraduate 6,661
TR A 2-year college 10,931
HrEL A Secondary specialized school 7,200
HEDLIF Under secondary specialized school 10,472
&t Total 35,678
FATs 3 5.2 Remuneration policy

O R R BU5E T DL T S 7 B > DARCE 3R
VD 2 T 3 > DA IR R s R o DA SCAL S
Fs Aot 1A AT SR B R o DL A B AL P
Wk 25 B PRI > TR S A 336 AR U K 4 A0 4 B A
A FAH 45 B0 1) R R A 38 R R 1 H T 4 T
il

The Company continuously improves a
comprehensive incentive system based on the
salary incentive, driven by the professional
development incentive, attracted by the
emotional incentive and focused on the cultural
incentive. Using performance and position
value contribution as measurement factors, the
Company implements a corporate growth-based
staff income sharing program that is linked
to corporate economic returns and production
efficiency.
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5.3

2020 4% > THUE BN o A F TR AR A B RS SR AR
T EABB BRI T > DR E THRAR
B4 > —J5 I MG 45 ok ) R R R ELSK - R
b T AU PR > R B T T
We A s 55— J5 TR AR S B~ A 2 R A BOSRAE A
S ER ¥ > PR AR SR AN TR o [ I
T8 SRR ~ P2 AR R B » K AR 7 S At B
AR T B B ) > DR R A R A Y 2 AR R
R ATEE R -

5t il 2

20204F T $H ZE FERE N - 288 H TR B R
v, I 7 DR o T T ARG B B RV A R
FEE THMEEREZEMNMRT » BT ERE -
PR B BRIEH > M R RE S B
TR - EHEAN - EERENEEEY
ZIR o M bR T H 2 m iR > A% AR
HE - G2 Y L8 STET 2 PS4 A
MEFERRAET - BRBH HRERR -
2020 4% 2 45 FLRE W) LL 34 n 35% » ALK ER B 6B )
WIHR T » A RO B 2 w) 4R 26 A PO R
PR =

£ S U A Z A

W A0 402 59 2 B o AR O ) s A Y A ) B SR 4 P9
FEAT W5 ] 2 BT 24k > DABOAS 4y W) 2 3 o % B o ) Al A
A ) A T P o A R 2

Facing the epidemic in 2020, the Company took
measures by considering the linkage between
business performance and total salary, with a
focus on guaranteeing staff’s income. While it
implemented a preposed and flat total salary
control mechanism to ensure stable income for
the staff during the epidemic, the Company
made active steps to promote the implementation
of preferential business policies within itself
to cut labor costs. Meanwhile, at the stage of
performance recovery and fast growth, the
Company beefed up the mechanism of linking
business performance and performance incentive,
which ensured and drove healthy and sustainable
development for the Company.

5.3 Training plan

In the context of the epidemic in 2020, while
making sure to implement the anti-epidemic
policy and safeguarding their health and safety,
all staff members worked in concerted efforts and
overcame difficulties to step out of their comfort
zones, starting a learning-by-doing journey of
transformation, management innovation and
business empowerment throughout days and
nights. A new empowerment model has been
developed with the use of digital training tools
on all fronts and the mixed application of various
online learning modes, such as livestreaming,
online self-learning, WeChat learning community
and DingTalk learning community. Course hours
for the whole year of 2020 increased 35% year-
on-year. The enhancement of the organizational
learning capacity has effectively empowered
the fast recovery and growth of the Company’s
business performance.

VII.Directors’ and Supervisors’ Right of
Purchasing Shares

Save as disclosed herein, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries participated in any arrangements in any time of
the year which could enable its directors and supervisors to
obtain interests from purchasing shares or debentures of the
Company or that of any other organizations.
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VIII.Contracted Rights of Director or
Supervisor and Director’s Service
Contract

All directors and supervisors appointed by the Company had
entered into service contract with the Company, but did not
enter into any service contract with the Company that the
Company and its subsidiaries should make compensation
to the director or supervisor when it terminates the contract
within 1 year after the contract has been entered into by both
parties (excluding statutory compensation). Save as disclosed
herein, neither directors nor supervisors obtained material
interests from any contracts entered into with the Company or
its subsidiaries within the year.

IX. Confirmation of Independence
by Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company has received annual confirmation letter from
each of the existing independent non-executive director on
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of Listing Rules, and
still believes that, the aforesaid independent non-executive
directors are persons of independence.

X. Buy-back, Sales and Redemption of
Shares

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed
securities of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries issued or provided any options or any
other similar rights, nor exercised any rights of conversion or
subscription.

XI. Principal Subsidiaries and
Associated Companies

Details of the subsidiaries and associated companies of the
Company are set out in the attached Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

XII.Fixed Assets

Any changes of fixed assets during the Reporting Period
are set out in the attached Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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XIII.Bank Loans

Details of bank loans as at 31 December 2020 are set out in
the attached Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

XIV.Permitted Indemnity Provision

As approved at the 2017 Annual General Meeting of the
Company, the Company has purchased appropriate liabilities
insurance for all directors. The permitted indemnity provision
was in force during the Reporting Period for the benefits of
all directors.

XV. Equity-linked Agreements

Save as disclosed herein, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the

year.

XVIL.Restricted A Share Incentive Plan

On 8 June 2020, the 2019 Annual General Meeting, the 2020
First A Share and H Share Class Meetings of the Company
considered and approved the adoption of the Restricted A
Share Incentive Plan (the “Incentive Plan”). On 29 June
2020, the Board considered and approved the resolutions in
relation to the adjustment to the grant price and the list of
participants of the first grant of the Incentive Plan and the
number of shares to be granted, and the resolution in relation
to the first grant of restricted A shares to the participants and
granted 13,200,000 restricted A shares to the 627 participants
with the grant price of RMB21.18/share. On 24 July 2020,
the Company completed the registration of the restricted
A shares under the first grant of the Incentive Plan with
China Securities Depository and Clearing Co., Ltd. Shanghai
Branch. On 29 July 2020, the Board approved the resolutions
in relation to the change in registered capital, amendments
to the articles of association of the Company and application
for change of industrial and commercial registration as a
result of the first grant of the restricted A shares. Among the
13,200,000 restricted A shares granted under the first grant,
915,000 restricted A shares were granted to the executive
directors of the Company and directors and supervisors of the
significant subsidiaries of the Company and hence a connected
person of the Company. The grant of restricted shares to such
persons constitutes non-exempt connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. On 22
March 2021, the Board approved the resolution in relation to
the reserved grant of the restricted shares to participants under
the Incentive Plan.
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For more details, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 23 March 2020, 8 June 2020, 29 June
2020, 27 July 2020, 29 July 2020, 22 March 2021 and the
circular dated 29 April 2020.

XVII. Related Party Transactions and
Connected Transactions

Details of related party transactions of the Group are set out
in Note 8 to the Financial Statements. Such related party
transactions which constitute connected transactions under
the Listing Rules are disclosed in the paragraph headed
“Restricted A Share Incentive Plan”, in respect of which the
relevant disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules have been complied with.

XVII Directors’ and Supervisors’
Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts of
Significance

Save as disclosed herein, no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance, in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company, its holding companies, or its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director or a supervisor or any entity connected with them was
materially interested, directly or indirectly, subsisted during
or at the end of the Reporting Period.

XIX.Donations

The amount of charitable and other donations made by
the Group during the year is set out in Note 4 (53) to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Save as disclosed above, no charitable and other donations
have been made by the Group during the year.

HUANG Ke Xing

Chairman

Qingdao, the People’s Republic of China
26 March 2021
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I hereby present the 2020 Report of Supervisors of Tsingtao
Brewery Company Limited for the kind review by all shareholders.

During the Reporting Period, the Board of Supervisors
prudentially and seriously took its duties and responsibilities
by strictly abiding by the related provisions in the laws and
regulations and Articles of Association for the target of
practically protecting the legal rights and interests of the
Company and its shareholders. It supervised the proposals
including the Company’s financial statements and significant
events. It legally exercised its duties and responsibilities to
ensure the operations of the Company are in compliance.

I.  Work of Board of Supervisors during
the Reporting Period

(I) Meetings held by Board of Supervisors
During the Reporting Period, the Board of Supervisors
held 8 meetings in total, including 5 regular meetings
and 3 unscheduled meetings, with 28 different
resolutions considered, mainly including the following:

1. Regular reports:

(I)  considered the Company’s 2019 Financial
Report;

(2) considered the Company’s 2020 First
Quarterly Report;

(3) considered the Company’s 2020 Interim
Report;

(4) considered the Company’s 2020 Third
Quarterly Report.
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2. Other issues:

A number of proposals were considered and
approved at meetings held by the Company,
including The Restricted A Share Incentive Plan
of Tsingtao Brewery Company Limited (Draft),
Management Measures for the Implementation
and Appraisal of the Restricted A Share Incentive
Plan of Tsingtao Brewery Company Limited,
the proposal on Adjusting the Grant Price of
the First Grant under the Restricted A Share
Incentive Plan of the Company, the proposal
on Adjusting the List of Participants and the
Number of Restricted Shares Granted of the First
Grant under the Restricted A Share Incentive
Plan of the Company, the proposal on Granting
the Restricted A Shares of the First Grant to the
Participants and other proposals. In addition,
review opinions related to the Restricted A Share
Incentive Plan of the Company and the list of
participants of the First Grant were issued. There
were a total of 24 issues.

Site researches made by Board of Supervisors

During the Reporting Period, due to the impact of
COVID-19 on China’s beer industry, the market sales
suffered from great difficulties and challenges, with
fierce competition in the beer market. To further
understand the performance of Tsingtao Beer in China
and allow the Company’s Supervisors (in particular
external supervisors) to deepen their understanding
of the Company, the Board of Supervisors conducted
site surveys in the Company’s branch sales outlets
in Yunnan and visited its bar project known as
TSINGTAO1903 Bars in Shandong. The site surveys
and communication enabled the Board of Supervisors
to acquire firsthand information, serving as powerful
support for it to make science-based decisions and
perform effective functions.
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Independent Comments made by
Board of Supervisors to the issues in
2020

Compliance operation

During the Reporting Period, the members of Board
of Supervisors legally attended the general meetings,
sat in the board meetings, and the Chairman of Board
of Supervisors sat in the presidential conference. By
legally exercising its supervision right, the Board
of Supervisors is of the view that, the convening
procedures of the Company’s general meetings and
board meetings, the matters in the resolutions, and the
Board’s implementation of the resolutions approved at
the general meetings are in compliance with the laws,
regulations, related regulatory requirements, and related
provisions in Articles of Association.

The Board of Supervisors is of the view that,
the Company carried out various work strictly
in compliance with the requirements in the laws,
regulations, Articles of Association, and other
regulatory regulations, made decisions legally and

operated in compliance manner.

The Board of Supervisors is of the view that, all
directors and senior management officers of the
Company fulfill their duties with diligence in
accordance with the State laws, regulations and related
provisions in Articles of Association. During the
Reporting Period, none of the directors and senior
management officers of the Company was found to
have any behavior violating any laws, regulations and
Articles of Association, or damaging any interests of
the Company or its shareholders in performing their
duties and exercising their authorities.

Review of the financial situations

After havmg supervised and audited the financial

and results of the Company for the year

Company’s ﬁnancial system is sound and co
ﬁnanmal operation is compliant, the financial situation
d the financial statements truly and
ancial situation
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(III) Latest use of proceeds received

Iv)

)

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not have
any newly received or remaining proceeds received
from financing activities, and there was no situation of
violation of regulations in the management and use of
proceeds received from financing activities.

Internal control work report

The Board of Supervisors is of the view that, the
Company has established a sound and effective
internal control system in accordance with its own
actual situation and the requirements of the laws and
regulations, which is effectively implemented. The
2020 Internal Control Evaluation Report presented by
the Board and the internal control audit report presented
by the auditor truly and objectively reflects the
construction and operation of the Company’s internal
control system.

Information on the establishment and implementation
of administrative policies to the information insiders

The Board of Supervisors is of the view that, the
Company has worked out Administrative Policies for
the Registration of Information Insiders in accordance
with the related regulations. It has inspected that,
during the Reporting Period, the Company did not
have the situation of being investigated or rectified
by the regulatory authorities for the release of
inside information. The administrative regulation of
information insiders is improved, and strictly abided by
and implemented.

In summary, the Board of Supervisors has fulfilled
their duties during the Reporting Period. In addition,
the Board of Supervisors has fulfilled the duties
assigned to them by the laws and regulations, and the
Articles of Association, as well as played the role of
the Board of Supervisors. The current term of the board
of supervisors will expire soon. I would like to take
this opportunity to express my heartfelt thanks to all
the supervisors for their contributions to the work of
the Supervisory Committee of the Company during the
Reporting Period.

Chairman of Board of Supervisors: LI Gang
26 March 2021
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Since the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange and
SSE in 1993, it has been improving its corporate governance
structure and regulating the operation of the Company
pursuant to the domestic and overseas listing rules and
regulatory requirements. The Company’s general meeting,
the Board and Board of Supervisors exercise their respective
duties that they make decisions independently but supervise
each other, which maintain the balance of power among them.
The Board sets up three professional committees, namely,
Audit & Internal Control Committee, Strategy & Investment
Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee,
which are mainly comprised of external directors (including
independent non-executive directors) who play a positive role
in improving the efficiency of decision-making of the Board
and promote the effective operation of corporate governance
of the Company.

In accordance with the policy of diversity among board
members formulated by the Company, this election has taken
the following into account while forming the Board: the
Company’s situation, its own business model and operational
needs, as well as the age, cultural and educational background
or professional experience of the members. The ninth Board
of Directors showcases an appropriate balance of skills,
experience and diversity perspectives to enhance the effective
functioning of the Board and maintain a high standard of
corporate governance.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible
for searching, nominating and screening Board members.
According to the nomination policy established by the
Company, candidates for executive directors may be
searched and selected among senior management personnel
and those for independent non-executive directors may be
selected across the country. In accordance with the Articles
of Association and relevant regulations, the shareholders
are also allowed to nominate anyone (excluding resigned
directors) for the election of directors (including non-
executive directors) at general meetings. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee may appoint external consultants to
assist the recruitment of suitable candidates when necessary.
The appointment of Board members shall be considered and
approved by shareholders at general meetings.
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During the reporting period, the Company had complied with
the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, except for Code Provision
A.2.1. of the Corporate Governance Code taken by the
Company for corporate governance are as follows:

I. The Board

1. Duties and assignments

Under the leadership of the Chairman, the Board
exercises its administrative decision-making power
concerning the Company’s development strategy,
management structure, investment and financing,
financial supervision and control, and dedicates to
realize the maximization of its shareholders’ value. It
has been stated in details in the Company’s Articles
of Association and its appendix — Order of Meeting
for Board of Directors, the Board’s authorities in the
Company’s development strategies and management,
and its power of supervision and inspection over the
Company’s development and operation. At the same
time, the Board implements its duty of corporate
governance by monitoring, evaluating and ensuring
the effectiveness and efficiency of the Company’s
internal control system, and situation of the Company’s
compliance with the laws and regulations. The Board
is responsible for the implementation of the duties and
responsibilities of corporate governance set out in the
function scope of Code Provision D.3.1 of the revised
Corporate Governance Code. The Board has performed
the relevant duties during the year.

The division of duties between the Company’s chairman
and president has been clearly defined and stated in
Articles of Association and its appendix. The chairman
is responsible for deciding the agenda of each board
meeting, contacting other directors before each meeting
for any proposals to be considered at the meeting, and
considering whether to include such proposals into the
agenda according to the actual circumstance. Besides,
the chairman should also be responsible for leading
and working out the Company’s overall development
strategy, and supervising the implementation of
resolutions approved by the Board.
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The president is responsible for arranging the
implementation of resolutions approved by the Board,
yearly budget and investment plan of the Company, and
reporting to the Board about the Company’s operation,
signing and implementation of significant contracts;
exercising the right of the use of funds and assets
within the scope authorized by the Board, and signing
the contracts on behalf of the Company. At the same
time, the Company clarifies the specific duties and
responsibilities, and the work of all senior management
officers, so as to ensure the undertaking of obligations
of integrity and diligence of their own responsibilities.

Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code
stipulates that the roles of the Chairman of the Board
and the Chief Executive Officer should be separated
and not be performed by the same person. The list
of candidates for President of the Company has been
under discussion since Mr. FAN Wei resigned from
his positions of Executive Director and President of
the Company on February 28, 2020 as he had reached
the retirement age. The position remains unfilled for
the time being. To ensure normal operations of the
Company, Chairman of the Company is performing the
duties of the President according to the requirements
for maintaining a good and stable corporate governance
structure that accommodates the Company’s needs.

Composition

As at 31 December 2020, the ninth session of the
Board comprises 3 executive directors, 1 non-executive
director and 4 independent non-executive directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Ke Xing (Chairman)
Mr. YU Zhu Ming

Mr. WANG Rui Yong

Non-executive Director
Mr. SHI Kun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. YU Zeng Biao

Mr. XIAO Geng

Mr. SHENG Lei Ming

Mr. JIANG Xing Lu

The above-mentioned re-elected or elected directors
shall serve for a term of three years, with immediate
effect following their appointment during the
shareholders’ meeting, until the expiration of the
term of the ninth session of the Company’s Board of
Directors.
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The Company has adopted a board diversity policy
in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.
When determining the composition of the members
of the Board, the Company considered about the
diversity of the members of the Board from different
aspects including but not limited to age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. The Board focused on the candidates’
qualification for all appointments, and took into account
the benefits of the diversity of the members of the
Board based on the objective conditions when choosing
the candidates.

The members of the Board have various professional
backgrounds and possess different professional
knowledge, among which one of the independent
nonexecutive directors has the qualification on
accounting or related financial management required
by the regulatory authorities. All directors have
substantial experience in their respective professional
field. The profile of the directors is set out in “Profiles
of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Manager” in this
Annual Report.

There are 4 independent non-executive directors in the
current session of the Board, accounting for over 1/3
of the total number of members of the Board. These
independent non-executive directors have various
professional backgrounds with substantial experience
in law, accounting and financial investment. Such
composition is helpful to the Board in the discussion
and analysis of the issues from different aspects to
ensure the reasonable decision made by the Board.
Since 2005, the independent non-executive directors
have been submitting their annual performance review
for reporting to the shareholders at the annual general
meeting.
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Board meeting

In 2020, the Company held 4 site meetings with phone
calls and 11 meetings combining with voting through
communications in total to consider the Company’s
operation and financial performance, management
structure and investment plan mainly including:

—  Considering and approving the reports of annual,
interim and quarterly results;

—  Considering and approving proposals related
to the Restricted A Share Incentive Plan of the
Company;

—  Considering and approving the convening of
extraordinary general meetings, the annual
general meeting, share class meetings and other

issues;

—  Considering and approving the feasibility report
for the relocation of new projects and new

capacity projects of subsidiaries.
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The meeting notice and materials of proposals to be
discussed are sent to all directors in the reasonable time,
so as to ensure they have fruitful discussion, and make

BT - quick and prudential decisions at the board meetings.
Details of all directors’ attendance of board meetings in
the year are as follows:

SR
At
Information
SEH AN of attending
Information of attending board meeting general meeting
VS EVES A
AEES I Sk ABASMEE  MEBRICKA
HHAKY Number that — ZREHM KXY If not attend e
Number that LA HHKY attend in Number that PRk Y in person Number of

213 should attend Number that formof  being attended Number of  for consecutive attending

Name in the year  attend in person  communications by proxy absence two times  general meeting

i 15 4 11 0 0 & 4

HUANG Ke Xing No

T 15 4 11 0 0 & 4

YU Zhu Ming No

Ehik 15 4 11 0 0 A 4

WANG Rui Yong No

AR (1) 1 | 10 0 0 & 3

SHI Kun (Note 1) No

THR 15 4 11 0 0 & 1

YU Zeng Biao No

Wik (1) 6 1 5 0 0 ® —

XIAO Geng (Note 1) No

BE (3 1) 6 ! 5 0 0 # -

SHENG Lei Ming (Note 1) No

EE%k 9 5 4 0 0 & 4

JIANG Xing Lu No

Rt (752) 9 5 4 0 0 & =

FAN Wei (Note 2) No

HEH (i3 9 3 6 0 0 & 1

BEN Sheng Lin (Note 3) No

g (it 3) 9 3 6 0 0 & 4

JIANG Min (Note 3) No
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Note 1: Mr. SHI Kun was appointed as Non-executive
Director at the extraordinary general meeting held on
April 16, 2020. Mr. XIAO Geng and Mr. SHENG Lei
Ming were appointed as Independent Non-executive
Directors at the Annual General Meeting held on
June 8, 2020. Therefore, the “number of attending
general meetings” during the Reporting Period is not
applicable to the two newly appointed directors.

Note 2: Mr. FAN Wei resigned from his positions as Executive
Director and President of the Company on February
28, 2020. Therefore, the “number of attending
general meetings” during the Reporting Period is not
applicable to him yet.

Note 3: After the annual general meeting held on June 8, 2020,
Mr. BEN Sheng Lin and Mr. JIANG Min no longer
served as Independent Non-executive Director.

The convening and holding of board meetings are strictly
subject to the provisions in Articles of Association and Order
of Meeting for Board of Directors. The meetings are hosted
by the chairman, and are held on time after the delivery
of meeting notice. All proposals are discussed in details at
the meetings and voted in sequence. The notices of regular
meeting are dispatched 14 days before the meetings. Should
any director be unable to attend the meeting due to other
business, he/she could authorize other director in writing to
attend and vote on his/her behalf, and the independent non-
executive director could authorize other independent non-
executive director to attend and vote on his/her behalf.

The Company’s management team is responsible for providing
the Board with all related materials and information needed
for considering the proposals, and reporting their related work
at board meetings. The independent non-executive directors
may, pursuant to the provisions in Articles of Association,
appoint independent professional organizations to serve them
when exercising their duties, performing their duties and
responsibilities or when being needed by the business, and the
reasonable expenses occurred will be borne by the Company.
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II.

Directors
Director and the Corporate Secretary training

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, all
directors are obliged to take part in the continuing
professional development to renew their knowledge and
skills. The Company has provided to the directors with
trainings and development courses, including (1) entry
training (director’s manual) for the newly appointed
directors; (2) continuing trainings and professional
development courses for the directors.

During the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020, all of the Company’s directors received regular
briefings and updates for the matters relating to the
Group’s business, operation and corporate governance.
They were also provided with the newly published
important laws and rules, or changes in the important
laws and rules which were applicable to the Group.
The Company prepared and distributed to the directors,
supervisors and senior management officers a weekly
newsletter about the development in stock market and
updated information of regulatory policies. During the
Reporting Period, the Company’s chairman HUANG
Ke Xing, executive directors YU Zhu Ming and
WANG Rui Yong and independent non-executive
director SHENG Lei Ming briefed by domestic
legal advisers on the explanation of the information
disclosure regulatory policy of the new Securities
Law and the notes for securities trading by directors.
XIAO Geng, Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company, attended the Independent Directors’
Qualification Training organized by SSE and obtained
the qualification certificate; SHENG Lei Ming and
JIANG Xing Lu, Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company, attended the Independent Directors’
Subsequent Training organized by SSE.

Mr. ZHANG Rui Xiang (Board Secretary and Director
of the Board Secretary’s Office of the Company) is the
Company Secretary of the Company. He has satisfied
the requirements for professional training as stipulated
in Rule 3.29 of Listing Rules by attending no less than
15 hours of related professional training.
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Independence of independent non-executive
directors

The Company has appointed sufficient number of
independent non-executive directors, from all of whom
the Company has received the written confirmation on
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of Listing
Rules.

Securities transaction by directors

The Company formulates the Administration
Regulations of Shares of the Company held by its
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Officers
by applying Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of
Listing Rules. The Company confirms that, after
having made specific enquiries to all directors and
supervisors, they have been in compliance with the
required standards set out in Listing Rules regarding the
securities transaction by directors during the Reporting
Period.

Liability insurance of directors, supervisors and
senior management officers

As approved at the general meeting, the Company
has purchased appropriate liability insurance for all
directors, supervisors and senior management officers.

Financial reporting and responsibilities taken by
directors on financial statements

The Board makes annual review of the annual, interim
and quarterly reports in accordance with the sufficient
information provided by the management team and
approves for public disclosure. The directors are
responsible for arranging relevant departments and
personnel to prepare financial statements for each
fiscal year, and ensure to apply appropriate accounting
policies and abide by China’s accounting policies and
regulations when preparing the financial statements, so
as to truly and fairly report the financial situation and
operating results of the Company.
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III. Specific Committees under the Board

The Board held a meeting on 28 June 2018, at which it
approved to set up 3 specific committees under it based on the
adjustments of its members of the latest session of the Board,
and clarified their duty scope of supervising the specific
business fields in the Company. In 2020, the Company duly
adjusted the structure of the committees in accordance with
the changes in its directors. The following disclosure on the
members of the committees is about the status as of the end of
2020.

1. Audit and Internal Control Committee (“Audit
Committee”)

The duty scope of Audit Committee is determined
pursuant to Corporate Governance Code set out in
Appendix 14 of Listing Rules and Guidelines for
Corporate Governance of China Listed Companies
published by China Securities Regulatory Commission,
and is revised subject to the latest supervisory
momentum. Its main duties include: to review the
soundness, completeness and effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal control
system and systems, to review the annual, interim and
quarterly financial statements, to be in charge of the
appointment, the work coordination, and the review of
work efficiency and quality of external auditor, and to
review and supervise the quality and procedures of the
financial reporting of the Company.

e =
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Members of the Audit Committee of the ninth Board
of Directors include: Mr. YU Zeng Biao (Chairman of
the Audit Committee), Mr. XIAO Geng, Mr. SHENG
Lei Ming, Mr. JIANG Xing Lu, all being independent
Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Director
Mr. SHI Kun. Mr. YU Zeng Biao is well-versed in
finance and accounting, and he holds Certified Public
Accountant qualifications in China. The 2020 Audit
Committee held 5 meetings in total. To ensure the
independence of the report, the Chairman of the
meeting has arranged for the external auditor to conduct
individual meetings with the members of the Audit
Committee. After each meeting, the committee will
submit recommendations to the Board of Directors on
the important matters discussed. The attendance of each
member is as follows:

MR E#EGK)  BEaEKR)
Number of Number of B (%)
meetings meetings should Attending Rate

ZHEES Name attended (time) attend (time) (%)
TH% YU Zeng Biao

(FFIREEEE) (Chairman of Audit Committee) 5 5 100
HEk(7E2) XIAO Geng (Note 2) 2 2 100
R (7E2) SHENG Lei Ming (Note 2) 2 2 100
EH B JIANG Xing Lu 5 5 100
AH(FED) SHI Kun (Note 1) 3 3 100
TLMAR(FE3) BEN Sheng Lin (Note 3) 3 3 100
EH(FE3) JIANG Min (Note 3) 3 3 100

FET: AISEER 202044 H 16 HiB AR AR FRI ZE &
ZH o

AE2 c Bk A R e TR I e A Y 20204E 6 A 8 H AR AR AR A
AHEFZHORE -

AE3 e BB A M E U R Y 20204E 6 A 8 H BB R T
AW REGERH -

Note 1: Mr. SHI Kun has served as Member of the Company’s
Audit Committee since April 16, 2020.

Note 2: Mr. XIAO Geng and Mr. SHENG Lei Ming have
served as Members of the Company’s Audit
Committee since June 8, 2020.

Note 3: Mr. BEN Sheng Lin and Mr. JIANG Min have
ceased to serve as Members of the Company’s Audit
Committee since June 8, 2020.
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Major work of Audit Committee in the year includes:

. Reviewing the Company’s annual, interim and
quarterly results reports, and financial statements;

. Making proposals to the Board on the
re-appointment of auditor;

. Reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems
and systems, including whether the resource of
the financial reporting, and the qualification and
experience of the jobholders were sufficient or
not, whether the training to the related personnel
and the related budgets were sufficient or not;

. Reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal audit function.

Strategy and Investment Committee (“Strategy
Committee”)

The main duties and responsibilities of Strategy
Committee are to supervise and review the Company’s
orientation of strategic development, to work out
the Company’s strategic plan, and to make timely
adjustment towards the Company’s strategic and
governance structure.

Members of the Strategy Committee of the ninth Board
of Directors include: Chairman, Mr. HUANG Ke Xing
(Chairman of the Strategy Committee), Mr. YU Zhu
Ming, independent non-executive directors Mr. YU Zeng
Biao, Mr. SHENG Lei Ming and non-executive director
Mr. SHI Kun. 4 meetings were held by the Annual
Strategy Committee in 2020. The attendance of each
member was as follows:

HOB QR  HEHE s (K)

Number of Number of W& (%)

meetings meetings should Attending Rate

ZHEKA Name attended (time) attend (time) (%)
B e L HUANG Ke Xing

(w25 B & £ 05) (Chairman of Strategy Committee) 4 4 100

R L] YU Zhu Ming 4 4 100

TH% YU Zeng Biao 4 4 100

BEEW (iE2) SHENG Lei Ming (Note 2) 2 2 100

AL SHI Kun (Note 1) 2 D 100

R (7E3) JIANG Min (Note 3) 2 2 100
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Note 1: Mr. SHI Kun has served as Member of the Company’s
Strategy Committee since April 16, 2020.

Note 2: Mr. SHENG Lei Ming has served as Member of the
Company’s Strategy Committee since June 8, 2020.

Note 3: Mr. JIANG Min has ceased to serve as Member of the
Company’s Strategy Committee since June 8, 2020.

The main work of the Strategy Committee in the
year included: reviewing the feasibility report on a
subsidiary’s relocation, new construction and new
capacity project and the feasibility report on the Craft
Beer Garden project.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The main duties and responsibilities of Nomination &
Remuneration Committee are: to study and consider the
remuneration policies and incentive mechanism of the
Company’s directors and senior management officers,
to work out evaluation standards, to study the schemes
of improving corporate governance, to appraise the
independence of independent non-executive directors
and make proposals to the Board for the appointment of
directors.

Members of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee of the ninth session of the Board of
Directors include Independent Non-Executive directors
Mr. JIANG Xing Lu (Chairman of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee), Mr. YU Zeng Biao, Mr.
XIAO Geng, Mr. SHENG Lei Ming and Non-Executive
director Mr. SHI Kun.

In 2020, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
held two meetings, where they reviewed the
remuneration information of the directors, supervisors
and senior management officers and recommended to
the Board for approval as disclosed in the annual report.
Furthermore, they also reviewed the qualifications of
the candidates for independent non-executive directors
to be proposed and recommended their appointment
at the annual general meeting and appraised the
independence of independent non-executive directors.
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HE 08 ik ()

Number of

R ik (K)

Number of meetings should

R (%)

meetings be attended Attending Rate

ZHILA Name attended (time) (time) (%)
S48 B (HE 4 B35 T JIANG Xing Lu (Chairman of the

REEER) Nomination & Remuneration

Committee) 2 2 100

TH% YU Zeng Biao 2 2 100

¥k (#2) XIAO Geng (Note 2) — _ _

R (i 2) SHENG Lei Ming (Note 2) — — -

AT SHI Kun (Note 1) 1 1 100

BHMK(FE3) BEN Sheng Lin (Note 3) 2 2 100

WEEL(7E3) JIANG Min (Note 3) 2 2 100

FET : ARSI 20204 4 H 16 Hi H AR A2 5 2 4% B2 357
ZHEZEH -

A2 R E IR S8 A R 202048 6 H 8 H G AR A A W 2
HEHMEHTRE -

AE3: PLEARAERBOE AR RS ML H TR -

T BRI B R U AR B IR o 4R S B AR
DA > R AR R AT FE 4 HL G Y P A2
4 L % B A o

BREZZRET A= HILFEEBHEAH
ZHBALN M T

Note 1: Mr. SHI Kun has served as Member of the Company’s
Nomination & Remuneration Committee since
April 16, 2020.

Note 2: Mr. XIAO Geng and Mr. SHENG Lei Ming have
served as Members of the Company’s Nomination &
Remuneration Committee since June 8, 2020.

Note 3: Mr. BEN Sheng Lin and Mr. JIANG Min have ceased
to serve as Members of the Company’s Nomination &
Remuneration Committee.

During the serving of XIAO Geng and SHENG Lei
Ming as members, the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee did not hold any meeting because there
was no sufficient and suitable issue submitted to
the Nomination & Remuneration Committee for
consideration.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management by band is
set out below:

A¥

Number of

S AL (A R ) Remuneration band (RMB) persons
1,000,000 PAF Less than 1,000,000 4
1,000,000 % 2,000,000 1,000,000 to 2,000,000 0
2,000,001 % 4,000,000 2,000,001 to 4,000,000 1

Mk : ERRT B ER W A BN B )45 3 I R D) A Y R Note: The members of the senior management disclosed
H o above refer to the employees other than directors and
supervisors.

Further particulars regarding the directors, supervisors

HLAE Bl LA R SN PR i o - R R A

T 2 DA J% T 44 fie oot 57 T A B o P S 285 Sk 32 M s
Jee highest paid employees as required to be disclosed

and senior management’s emoluments and the five

pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out
in note 8 to the financial statements.
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IV. Supervisory Mechanism

Board of Supervisors

As at 31 December 2020, the ninth session of Board
of Supervisors is comprised of 4 supervisors as
shareholders’ representative and 3 supervisors as
employees’ representative. The profile of the current
supervisors is set out in “Profiles of Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Manager” in this Annual Report.

The Board of Supervisors legally exercises the
supervision power to prevent the legal rights and
interests of sharcholders, the Company and its
employees from being offended. In 2020, the Board of
Supervisors held 8 meetings in total to supervise on
behalf of shareholders over the Company’s finance,
legality and compliance of directors and senior
management officers on performing their duties and
responsibilities, and attended all board meetings and
general meetings. Details of the work of Board of
Supervisors are set out in “Report of the Supervisors”
in this Annual Report.

Internal control and risk management

2.1 According to Internal Control Guide to Listing
Companies of Shanghai Stock Exchange
published by SSE, Listing Rules, and the
requirements of the specific regulations of
internal control, the Company worked out a
series of internal control regulations which
play corresponding roles in the Company’s
production and operating activities, and promote
the Company’s normalized operation. Pursuant
to the requirements of the internal control
regulatory system, it is the responsibilities of
the Board to establish and effectively implement
the internal control and assess its effectiveness,
and truly disclose the internal control evaluation
report. The Board of Supervisors supervises the
establishment and implementation of internal
control of the Board, while the managers are
responsible for organizing and leading the
ordinary operation of the internal control.
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The target of the Company’s internal control is to
reasonably ensure the operating management is
lawful and in compliance, the safety of the assets,
the authenticity and completeness of financial
report and related information, the improvement
of operating efficiency and its effects, and
the promotion and realization of development
strategy. However, due to the existing limitation
to the internal control, the Company can provide
reasonable assurance for realizing the above
targets only.

The Internal Audit Department of the Company
makes annual identification and evaluation of
risks existing in the Company’s production,
operation and internal control activities, and
improve the Company’s internal control system
based on the results of risks evaluation by ways
of internal control evaluation, and etc. According
to the Company’s internal control system and
standards, the Internal Audit Department and
other functional departments carry out the internal
control evaluation and management inspection
from the two aspects of the effectiveness of the
design and the implementation of internal control
to promote the improvement and upgrade of the
Company’s internal control system. The Internal
Audit Department reports to the Audit Committee
about the effectiveness and problems existing in
the risk management and internal control systems
every year.

After having conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems, the Board has reached the
conclusion that the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems were in place,
effective and adequate.

Evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control
operation

The Company establishes the 3-tier internal
control evaluation mechanism which combines
the independent internal control evaluation of
head office, self-evaluation of internal control
of functional departments of head office,
and the self-evaluation of internal control of
branches/subsidiaries. It arranges the annual
internal control evaluation work to audit and
evaluate the effectiveness of the design and the
implementation of internal control, and present
an independent internal control evaluation report.
The functional departments of the Company
and the branches/subsidiaries also carry out the
regular self-evaluation work as required, and
make corrections to the problems found.
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The Company appointed an external auditor to
inspect the Company’s internal control system
from a professional prospective, which effectively
promoted the improvement of the establishment
of the Company’s internal control system.
The Company had also established the sole
communication mechanism between the external
auditor and the Company’s Audit Committee
to ensure the independence and the right of
information of the external auditor to practically
play the role of external auditor.

(1) The Board’s self-evaluation of internal
control system

The Company’s 2020 internal control
evaluation report was considered and
approved at the fifteenth meeting of the
ninth session of the Board. According
to the affirmation standards of internal
control defects identified by the Company,
during the Reporting Period, the Company
did not have any material weakness or
significant weakness of internal control in
the financial reporting, nor discover any
material weakness or significant weakness
of internal control in the non-financial
reporting.

(2) Evaluation by the Company’s domestic
certified public accountant to the internal
control in financial reporting

PwC Zhong Tian was appointed by
the Company to audit and appraise the
effectiveness of the internal control in
financial reporting, who was of the view
that, as at 31 December 2020, the Company
had maintained effective internal control in
financial reporting in all material aspects
according to Basic Standards of Corporate
Internal Control and related regulations.

The full text of the evaluation report to
the Company’s 2020 internal control and
the auditing report of the internal control
in financial reporting presented by PwC
Zhong Tian are published on the websites
of SSE, the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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2.3 In terms of the handling and releasing inside
information, the Company has established
such an internal system as the Administrative
Policies for the Registration of Information
Insiders, specifying the range, reporting process,
registration and record-keeping and prohibitive
behaviors for inside information and information
insiders to strictly control the range of insiders
and prevent the risk of leaking inside information.

External auditor and its remuneration

The financial statements included in this Annual Report
are prepared in accordance with CAS and have been
audited by PwC Zhong Tian who has provided auditing
service to the Company for 19 consecutive years. In
2020, the Company should pay RMB6.6 million to
PwC Zhong Tian for its full-year work of auditing the
financial statements, and RMB1.98 million for its work
of auditing the internal control, which is inclusive of
tax, traveling expenses and miscellaneous expenses. The
auditor’s responsibilities on the account are set out in
the disclosed content in “Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements” of this Annual
Report.

Shareholders and other Interest-
related Parties

General meeting

The Company has been devoting to protecting the legal
rights and interests of all shareholders. The convening
and holding of general meetings are strictly pursuant
to the provisions in Articles of Association and Rules
of Order for General Meeting. The Company’s general
meetings are convened by the Board and hosted by the
Chairperson of the Board. The executive directors make
reports over proposals at the general meetings, while
the representatives of sharecholders, representatives of
supervisors, witness lawyers, profession accountant
from Hong Kong (scrutineers for the vote-taking)
jointly inspect and count the votes to the proposals,
and have the chairperson of the meeting (Chairperson
of the Board) announce the voting results and approval
of resolutions of the meetings formally. The lawyer
appointed by the Company would witness the meetings
and present legal comments.
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General meeting is the highest authority of the
Company, which legally exercises its authorities to
determine the significant events for the Company.
The annual general meeting is a channel of direct
communication between the Board and the shareholders
of the Company. Therefore, the Company pays high
regards to the general meetings by dispatching the
meeting notice 45 days prior to the meeting date,
and the chairperson and other attending executive
directors make extensive and intensive communications
and interpretation over the issues concerned by the
shareholders at the annual general meetings. On April
16, 2020, the Company held the first extraordinary
general meeting of 2020 in the form of onsite meeting
and online voting combined in Qingdao. The proposal
on electing Mr. SHI Kun as a non-executive director
of the ninth session of the Board of Directors of the
Company was considered and approved; the proposal
on amending the Articles of Association was approved
as a special resolution.

On June 8, 2020, the Company held the annual general
meeting of 2019 and the first A-share class meeting of
2020 in the form of onsite meeting and online voting
combined in Qingdao and the first H-share class
meeting of 2020 in the form of onsite meeting. At the
annual general meeting, six proposals were considered
and approved, including the Report of the Board of
Directors, Report of the Board of Supervisors, Audited
Financial Report, Profit Distribution Plan, continued
appointment of auditors for financial reports and
internal audit, and the proposal on electing Mr. XIAO
Geng and Mr. SHENG Lei Ming as Independent Non-
executive Directors of the ninth session of the Board
of Directors of the Company; the work report of the
independent non-executive directors of 2019 was
briefed. At the annual general meeting and the share
class meetings, three proposals were considered and
approved as special resolutions, including the Proposal
on the Restricted A Share Incentive Plan of Tsingtao
Brewery Company Limited (Draft) and the Abstract,
the Proposal on the Management Measures for the
Implementation and Appraisal of the Restricted A Share
Incentive Plan of Tsingtao Brewery Company Limited
and the Proposal on Requesting the Annual General
Meeting to Authorize the Board of Directors to Handle
Affairs in Relation to the Restricted A Share Incentive
Plan.

For the resolutions approved at the aforesaid general
meetings, please refer to the related announcements
published by the Company on the nominated domestic
newspapers for information disclosure, and the websites
of SSE and the Stock Exchange.
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Shareholders’ rights

As one of the measures that secure the interests and
rights of the shareholders, the Company makes a single
resolution at the general meetings for each significant
issue for the shareholders’ consideration and voting. All
resolutions submitted to the general meetings are voted
with polls. The voting result will be published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange, SSE and the Company
after the corresponding general meeting.

Shareholders who solely or collectively hold more than
10% (10% inclusive) of publically listed shares with
voting right issued by the Company may requisite in
writing the convening of extraordinary general meeting
pursuant to Rule 86 (1) in Articles of Association. Such
requisition must be clearly stated to the general meeting
the issues needed to be considered with the signature
by the person who makes the requisition and notifies in
writing to the Board. The sharecholders should follow
the rules and procedures for convening extraordinary
general meeting set out in Articles of Association.

Shareholders have the right to inquire the information set
out in Rule 52(5) of Articles of Association, and can make
inquiry or request for such right by sending mail to the
Company’s Secretarial Office of the Board or emailing
to the Company’s email address of “Investor Relations”
(secretary@tsingtao.com.cn). Shareholder who inquires
for the related information should provide corresponding
written verification document and will be provided with
such information after his/her identification as shareholder
has been verified by the Company.

Amendments of Articles of Association

On 16 April 2020, the resolution on amending the
Articles of Association was considered and approved at
the first extraordinary general meeting of shareholders
held by the Company in 2020, and the business scope of
the Company in the Articles of Association was revised.

On 29 July 2020, the Board approved the resolutions in
accordance with the authorization in the shareholders’
annual meeting to revise the share capital structure
and registered capital in the Articles of Association
in response to the change in the share capital of the
Company after the first grant of the Restricted A Share
Incentive Plan of the Company.

The abovementioned amendments took effect on
16 April 2020 and 29 July 2020 when the relevant
resolutions were passed.

Please refer to the relevant announcements published
by the Company on the website of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the website of the SSE (www.
sse.com.cn) for the contents of the abovementioned
amendments of the Articles of Association.
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Investor relations and communications

The Company pays high regards to the management
of investor relations, strives to strengthen the
communications and exchanges with the investors
through various channels and forms, and makes timely
response to the hot issues concerned by the investors.
At the same time, the Company has been devoting to
improving its transparency to help the investors have
a better understanding of the business situation and
prospects of the Company, and carefully listening to the
comments and proposals made by investors to improve
the Company’s corporate governance and operating
management.

The abrupt epidemic at the beginning of the Spring
Festival in 2020 had severe impact on market
consumption of products and normal operations of
companies in the industry. In such a challenging
market context that did not allow roadshows or face-
to-face communication, the Company strengthened
communication with its investors through a combination
of flexible measures, including teleconferences and
online meetings. In 2020, the Company held more
than 100 various investor meetings, winning broad
recognition from the capital market for its shares. In
addition, as a response to the call of Qingdao Securities
Regulatory Bureau and Qingdao Association for Public
Companies for educating and protecting investors, the
Company in September attended the “Day of Online
Collective Reception of Investors” of listed companies
in the administration of Qingdao of 2020 and other
investor communication events. The Chief Financial
Officer and Board Secretary of the Company attended
the events and talked with investors online with regard
to their concerned issues, such as the Company’s
development strategy and operation status.

Other interest-related parties

The Company is of the view that, it should insist on the
operation with integrity and serious fulfillment of social
responsibilities, and establishing a harmonic, win-win
and long-term cooperation relationship with interest-
related parties of the Company to ensure its long-lasting
existence and continuous operation. For years, the
Company has been insisting on making full payment of
taxes, operating with integrity, rewarding the society
and actively participating in the social charity activities
and environmental protection with the steady growth of
its operating results.

Good corporate governance is helpful to the sound
development of the Company and in raising the
investors’ confidence, while the effectiveness of the
Board is the key to the good corporate governance.
Therefore, the Board will be dedicated to the continuous
improvement of efficiency and quality of decision-
making, so as to promote the steady development of the
Company and improve shareholder’s value.
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Analysis of Principal Financial Data during the Reporting Period (calculated in

accordance with China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises)
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Analysis of main business and operating situation of the Company
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Analysis of fluctuation of related items in income statement and cash flow statement

Bifr o oo WEE : AR
Unit: RMB’000 Currency: RMB

RETE E

S L Amount of S0 LB (%)

Amount of corresponding Increase/

this Reporting  period in prior (Decrease)

#H Item Period year (%)

BwEBA Revenue 27,759,711 27,983,760 (0.80)

B Cost of sales 16,540,610 17,080,443 (3.16)

e Selling and distribution 4,984,550 5,103,506 (2.33)
expenses

(Egiikedit] General and administrative 1,678,051 1,881,053 (10.79)
expenses

iR 5= diil Research and development 21,467 21,089 1.79
expenses

W EN Finance expenses (470,921) (484,172) 2.74

g a2 Credit impairment losses 1,574 7,091 (77.80)

it T WL Gains on disposals of assets (5,204) 59,171 (108.79)

aEIMIA Non-operating income 14,587 34,665 (57.92)

o LIS Non-operating expenses 25,122 5,644 345.14

BTGB A A MBI 4 E  Net cash flows from operating 4,953,422 4,016,553 23.33
b} activities

REEE A MBI 4R Net cash flows from investing (1,487,738) (347,766) (327.80)
b activities

EYrEm AL B4R} Net cash flows from financing (356,091) (768,717) 53.68

activities
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Output and sales volume analysis statement

Hpr : # T

Unit: ten million litre

LA A:A P [ V54
FAERB %) FEER©%)  HEREE %)

Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) in (Decrease) in (Decrease) in
TR JEfAHE output volume sales volume inventory
Main Wipi M B Inventory from prior from prior volume from
product  Unit Output Sales volume volume year (%) year (%)  prior year (%)
L] HTT
Beer ten million litre 742 782 49 (4.52) (2.84) 0.12)
JE RS 6 D0 W Explanation of the information of output and
sales volume
AW > A A BN A AR A ] B K During the Reporting Period, the output volume
A LT A A SE AP I A A o of the Company excludes that of the outsourcing

products from the associated plants and joint
ventures of the Company.
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Cost analysis statement

Bpr oo WP ARW
Unit: RMB’000 Currency: RMB

SRR
By industries
yS Ex
LR B LAERM
BRARH  REEH (%)
ARG B AR (%) Increase/
WHil (%) Percentage of (Decrease)
Percentage of the total cost as compared
AMA®  thetotal cost  LARFBIAH in the with the
Amount during this Amount of  corresponding  corresponding
JAHE 5 H during this Reporting  corresponding period period
ik Items in the Reporting Period periodin in prior year in prior year
By industries costs Period (%) prior year (%) (%)
BB
Direct materials 11,334,514 68.53 11,727,706 68.66 -3.35
HEAT
WL G Direct labor 906,887 5.48 966,372 5.66 -6.16
Sales of beer HERM
Overhead 2,911,093 17.60 2,990,747 17.51 -2.66
B EE
Outsourcing cost 1,083,710 6.55 1,178,041 6.90 -8.01
Jofl 8 B
Other non-principle sales business 304,406 1.84 217,577 1.27 39.91
frat
Total 16,540,610 100 17,080,443 100 -3.16
FUE RN AHBEL

Composition of production costs

19.21%

5.99%
50.89%
Oz @xx @Er @k O HyHH
Malt Rice Hops Water

12.19%

Aucxillary materials

4.86%
0.74%
0.23%
1.58%
6.16%

RO axn

Energy Packaging materials

@ =EAT

51.10%

@ wsns

Direct labor costs

Overhead
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Selling and distribution expenses

2020 47 84 & % i Il Lb A 2.33% » BRI
PRI A A7 2 R 7 5 8 16 5 2B BURE Ul 9+ 1
P Kz 2 F DA % 7 il 4 9 45 ¢ P ) B Tk e
o

In 2020, selling and distribution expenses
decreased by 2.33% from the corresponding
period in prior year, which was mainly
due to that the government reduced or
exempted social insurance expenses and
product transportation expenses decreased
from the corresponding period in prior year
because of COVID-19 pandemic during the
year.

gub 4]

General and administrative expenses

2020445 B % F W] L IR 4 10.79% > 1%
JER PRI A A JRE TR 68 98¢ 1% 5 S BURS Tk 4 A
TR SR -

In 2020, general and administrative
expenses decreased by 10.79% from the
corresponding period in prior year, which
was mainly due to that the government
reduced and exempted social insurance
expenses in view of the COVID-19
pandemic during the year.

WEE ¢ 1

Research and development expenses

2020 47 fF 58 # 1 ] b 38 1.79% > EZJR
PRI A A RE TF 8 52t B [l B 39 m i 2 -
In 2020, research and development
expenses increased by 1.79% year-on-year,
mainly due to the year-on-year increase in
research and development expenses.

“

(5

Y5 2

Finance expenses

2020 45 B4 5 ¢ 1 I] Lo 3 Im 2.74% > FEHJR
PRI ik A 4 BE W 4 i 81 66 ek BB S 4L K I EL 3
e -

In 2020, finance expenses increased by
2.74% from the corresponding period in
prior year, mainly due to the increase in
exchange loss because of exchange rate
fluctuations during the year as compared
with the corresponding period in prior year.

GUIE AR EES

Credit impairment losses

2020 4F 5 i B # 5% [7 Eb 9 4> 77.80% »
5 R R A4 LA ) LA W el 2R 4R A
R AL 45 % 4 B R TR I B A T B
In 2020, credit impairment losses decreased
by 77.80% from the corresponding period
in prior year, mainly due to the individual
units’ year-on-year decrease in accounts
receivable of the accrued credit impairment
losses during the year.
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Gains on disposals of assets

2020 45 ¥ 72 & B WA R B 4 108.79%
2 PR R AR A JEE AR B 2 ) IOAS
b £ P B 45 R0 A MR IR LE ek A B
o

In 2020, gains on disposals of assets
decreased by 108.79% from the
corresponding period in prior year, which
was mainly due to individual subsidiaries’
year-on-year decrease in the gains from
disposals of land use and other long-term
assets during the year.

E 2L I

Non-operating income

2020 48 SEA N W] BB I A 57.92% > F
S J5 PR AR BE AR ) A ) R A B R
L8 HE B AN IR e b B 8 o

In 2020, non-operating revenue
had decreased by 57.92% from the
corresponding period in the previous year,
mainly due to the year-on-year decrease in
non-operating related revenue recognized
by some subsidiaries during the year.

—

EBI2H

®

e S

Non-operating expenses

2020488 385032 W Fe 3 hn 345.14% » F
S5 PR A AR B 2 ) RN AT AL AT
JH USSR B 1 S AR I P B

In 2020, non-operating expenditure
increased by 345.14% from the
corresponding period in prior year,
which was mainly due to that the
Company proactively fulfilled its social
responsibilities to make external donations
used in COVID-19 prevention and control
during the year.

-
Lol 1R
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Tourist Centre
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WEEEBEA
Research and development expenditures
WEEE B AW LR
Information of research and development
expenditures
#fr: T
Unit: RMB’000
A LR B A Research and development expenditures of the
Reporting Period 21,467
AREE AL B IEA Research and development expenditures of the
Reporting Period capitalised 0
R AGTT Total research and development expenditures 21,467
WF A AR 2 E A BB (%) Percentage of total research and development
expenditures in revenue (%) 0.08
ATEFEE N BB E Number of research and development personnel 52
WHEE N\ B SR AL A R N Percentage of number of research and development
1 B (%) personnel in total number of employees of the
Company (%) 0.15
B A B AL L T (%) Percentage of research and development expenditures
capitalized (%) 0
BLa In 2020, net cash flows from investing
Cash flow activities decreased by 327.80% from the
corresponding period in prior year, which
(€)) SR % W s 2 Y B4 U B R was mainly due to that Tsingtao Finance

(2)

Net cash flows from operating activities

2R B A A B B R R R ) L B
23.33% > B R ACAR BE M el BE W 5
5B L T O RS2 5 S A B B 4 I b s A
PE o

In 2020, the net cash flow from operating
activities increased by 23.33% from the
corresponding period in prior year, mainly
due to the impact of the COVID-19
epidemic led to cash decrease in cash
payment for the purchase of goods and
services on a year-on-year basis during the
year.

B G ) e 2 Wy B

Net cash flows from investing activities

B 3 W 2 2k B B4 i R A bR A
327.80% > 42 B 5 PR R ARAE EEAR A R 2 &
BTN ) AR A ) S0 A S AT A A 4 DL % B
e N 2 )1

3

Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, paid reserve funds
to the central bank and had a year-on-
year increase in the net costs for wealth
management during the year.

SR ) A Y B VR

Net cash flows from financing activities

50 W) A A W B i B AR B Bg
53.68% > REHHRAFEEANF Z2HE
bk T EE S TN <A Tl - Yl
o

In 2020, net cash flows from financing
activities increased by 53.68% from
the corresponding period in prior year,
which was mainly due to the year-on-year
increase in the inter-bank borrowings funds
of Tsingtao Finance Company, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, during
the year.



F — F F F H ANNUAL REPORT 2020

HH g W B} Br  Management Discussion and Analysis

(=) ¥ow -~ AU O A

Analysis of assets and liabilities

1~ WEAMHEI R

Analysis of assets and liabilities

Bifr : Foo WRE: AR
Unit: RMB’000 Currency: RMB

AR 2

LR 1]

(%)

Increase/

LAY (Decrease)

AMIAY T4 Ay at the end of

AR Y ILhil (%) this Reporting

el (%) LAY Percentage of Period as

Percentage of Amount at  total assets at  compared with

YRR total assets ~ the end of the  the end of the  the end of the

Amount at the at the end of  corresponding  corresponding  corresponding

end of this  this Reporting reporting period period

Reporting Period period in in prior year in prior year

FWHAH Item Period (%) prior year (%) (%)
s Cash at bank and on hand 18,466,881 44.48 15,301,983 41.01 20.68
FE 5 Notes receivable 5,649 0.01 75,100 0.20 (92.48)
E Advances to suppliers 239,884 0.58 117,156 0.31 104.76
BT Construction in progress 339,805 0.82 178,994 0.48 89.84
1 v Right-of-use assets 168,329 0.41 66,970 0.18 151.35
REGEER Long-term prepaid expenses 86,258 0.21 35,255 0.09 144.67
K Short-term borrowings 703,273 1.69 270,907 0.73 159.60
TEA} 4 Notes payable 149,492 0.36 220,825 0.59 (32.30)
T 56 T 55 Employee benefits payable 1,906,199 459 1,438,666 391 30.68
—HENE MW B A Current portion of non-current liabilities 42,089 0.10 22,208 0.06 89.52
HEAR Lease liabilities 115,840 0.28 37472 0.10 209.14
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(2)

(3)

e
Cash at bank and on hand

B W 4 AR AT B TSR LU U A 38 20.68% - E B
5 PR e A A P 40 ) A B 4 TR AT L o
Monetary funds increased by 20.68% compared
with the beginning of the year, mainly due to the
net cash inflow from operating activities during
the year.

HE W AR

Notes receivable

G 5 A AR A R R LU BT A R 92.48% » B
J5 PRI A AR JBE O ] B R Ay SRAT AR L E TR ©
GRS

Notes receivable decreased by 92.48% compared
with the beginning of the year, mainly due to
the endorsement and transfer of some bankers’
acceptances received by the Company during the
year.

Bk

Advances to suppliers

B SR ACAE BEI R LEII R0 104.76% » 1%
B PR A A BE AR BT Bk Oy R g DB A 40 ek
B E o

Advances to suppliers increased by 104.76%
compared with the beginning of the year, mainly
due to the increase in the purchase of raw
materials by advance payments during the year.

©

(5)

(6)

1Egk TR

Construction in progress

5 T RR A AR 391 R b 91 0134 n 89.84% > L%
J5 PRI S A A JBE 8 43 - 4 ) 8 B A T 84 o
o

Construction in progress increased by 89.84%
compared with the beginning of the year,
mainly due to the increase in the relocation and
expansion projects of some subsidiaries during
the year.

A JH 4l 6

Right-of-use assets

A58 FHBE S AR A B OR ER TR0 151.35% > &
S5 PR A AR BE P 43 - O v R 1 AL 3
e

Right-of-use assets increased by 151.35%
compared with the beginning of the year, mainly
due to the increase in the long-term leasing
properties of some subsidiaries during the year.

RS

Long-term prepaid expenses

T o 8 2 P AR A7 BEJ9I R LU ST B0 389 144.67% >
R R AR B 1 A R R 5 A
AR -

Long-term deferred expenses increased by
144.67% compared with the beginning of the
year, mainly due to the increase in the decoration
fees of some subsidiaries for their long-term
leasing properties during the year.
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Short-term borrowings

S JOUAF R AR AE BESYI A L ST 0 384 159.60% > 1%
Do PR R AR AR A W] 2 A TN R B B A )
EJEABEE -

Short-term loan at the end of this Reporting
Period increased by 159.60% compared with the
beginning of the year, mainly due to the inter-
bank borrowings funds of Tsingtao Finance
Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, during the year.

A 5245
Notes payable

T A 52 5% A A B 39K L T kA 32.30% » B
JE PR AR 4 B 4R P 5 4 O 5465 B0 B A I Rk sk
WA PE o

Notes payable at the end of this Reporting
Period decreased by 32.30% compared with the
beginning of the year, mainly due to the decrease
in the settlement of payables for raw materials by
notes during the year.

HEAS Wk 3557 P
Employee benefits payable

B AR Wk 357 M A 4 P8 39 K B 39 0 384 30.68% >
By P AR K3 Sk NI SR i)
FH > DA G N B L o

Payroll payable at the end of this Reporting
Period increased by 30.68% compared with
the beginning of the year, mainly due to the
integration and calculation of staff related
expenses for the relocation of some subsidiaries
and the increase in staff bonuses and other
remunerations.

(10)

an

— 4 14 2191 iy Il 5 B £1 6

Current portion of non-current liabilities

4 P B0 0 A0 B AR A B R L ST A 3
1n89.52% > F B B AAE 4 7 A F R
RLER B3 BE G0 > I A S A A LB A sk T o p AR A
AE—4F DL I Ak B BLAE 5 m B 2 -

Current portion of long term loans and obligations
at the end of this Reporting Period increased by
89.52% compared with the beginning of the year,
mainly due to the increase in the present value of
the payment due within one year of the leasing
payment yet to be paid, which was caused by the
increase in the long-term leasing properties of
some subsidiaries during the year.

AT fLf

Lease liabilities

HH BT A AR BRI R B IR 38 m 209.14% > 1 E
J5 PR R AR 4 B 43 - 2 R U AL 5 3
I AR 3 A Y AL A 28 o R A — 4R DL R R A
KRB 0 T 8L -

Leasing liabilities at the end of this Reporting
Period increased by 209.14% compared with the
beginning of the year, mainly due to the increase
in the present value of the payment due more
than one year of the leasing payment yet to be
paid, which was caused by the increase in the
long-term leasing properties of some subsidiaries
during the year.
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Interpretation of other operating situations Capital expenses

B AR
Debt/Capital Ratio

A 20204 12 A 31 H AT B B A R R 0%
(20194F 12 H 31 H 2 0.001%) ° fif B & A K iy
RSB R RIS A (R S48 %+
it o T P O ] SR M AR ) o

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s debt/
capital ratio was 0% (31 December 2019:
0.001%). The calculation of debt/capital is: total
amount of long-term borrowings/(total amount of
long-term borrowings + interests attributable to
the Shareholders of the Company).

R

Assets mortgage

20204 12 H 31 H » A A W] B A K4 o
(2019412 H 31 H = ) -

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have
any assets mortgages (31 December 2019: Nil).

BE 24 5 5 o B

Risk of fluctuate exchange rate

H R A2 ) R 2 A SR RE R 2
FZAORME T > R I 0 5 I R AR A
] B S REORE SR BAS 5 A > A A AR 43 L
FE ity Y T AM 8 > B A Y 5 ) L AR A ]
R E i R O 5 DL B SR IS A O ) 1 28
NE s — R

As the Company currently relies on imported
barley among the raw materials for the production
of its core brand products, the fluctuate exchange
rate would indirectly affect the purchase cost
of raw materials of the Company; besides, the
fluctuate exchange rate would also directly
affect the product export income of the Company
as some beer products of the Company are
exported for sale; these matters would impact the
profitability of the Company in certain extent.

2020 A AR A2y W] B APE BT A 4008 B ol
H AR AR 12.95 6850 « KA H T
e RBFES > ARREHEAE SR
BB B S IRAN R AR B AT A MG &
In 2020, the Company invested in approximately
RMB1295 million in aggregate for the capital
projects of new construction, relocation,
reconstruction and expansion. Based on
the Company’s present fund situation and
profitability, there are sufficient self-owned
funds and continuous net operating cash in-flow
to satisfy the Company’s needs for funds for its
capital projects.

Ei'd

Investments

B AEMEEEIE | RN ERR
HHIH -

Please refer to II. Significant investment matters
during the Reporting Period of “Significant
Events” in this annual report.

LR ERER

Contingent liabilities

I o
Nil.
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Analysis of operational information
in brewing industry

1 A3 AR B

The existing production capacity of the Company

A F BT TR R B RE 1,349 B F I - BB AE B934
BT Tl o o v BB B R AR B 1 45 Ml T 355 4 4 R HE
FREKMBE ~ K&~ HWAEE - MRISEERR
1% » R EPTREE S| W R TR A R ) o

The designed production capacity of the existing
plants of the Company is 13.49 million kI, of which
the actual production capacity is 9.34 million kl. The
Company’s actual production capacity is the actual
annual production capacity that the brewing plants
can reach after combining and leveraging the factors
including the indicators of peak season and low season
in different markets, holidays and festivals, overhaul,
routine maintenance and cleaning of equipment.

2. EERRIIR AR
Inventory quantity at the end of the Reporting

Period
By {HTT
Unit: million litre
)5 il 0 2 8 (A5 SR )
Finished beer product Semi-finished beer product (including base beer)
487 484
3. AR
Product information
B T W ARK
Unit: RMB000  Currency: RMB
il b Il b Il b
(%) (%) (%)
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease)
it from the it from the RS from the E
(BT corresponding (BT corresponding (%) corresponding R
Output period in  Sales volume period in  Sales-output period in Main
(ten million prior year (ten million prior year  Percentage BifA prior year representative
S Product class litre) (%) litre) (%) (%) Sales income (%) brand
HE Tsingtao Brand 380 (6.81) 388 (4.25) 10220 17,250,881 (0.75) HE
Tsingtao
oAl e Other brands 362 (199) 394 (141) 108.93 10,087,097 (147) Al
Laoshan
At Total 74 (452) 782 (2.84) 10548 27337978 (L02)  FHE- B

Tsingtao and
Laoshan
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Classification criteria of products:

()]

(2

[ 055 WL i R 2 I 4L+ K b 4 R AR 2
— o A2 B P9 4D T 3 EL AR O A R B D R
e PR 4 JEE > T AR VO i R 3 e R g
WG EATHE R A B > AR T AR N
Hh e i T 5 A GE SE AL 5 DA U L MRS A5 AR R Y
At i BRI R S - BN
JE i S I A R T 7 A I I O I 8 Y
T Gh ARG AR o

The “Tsingtao Beer” brand owned by the
Company is one of China’s first top 10 well-
known brands, which has strong brand impact and
high popularity in domestic and overseas markets.
Tsingtao Beer products are mainly promoted and
sold in the mid-and-high-end beer consumption
markets, and maintain a leading position in the
domestic mid-and-high-end markets; products of
other brands which are represented by Laoshan
Beer are mainly for the sales in mass consumption
markets, which jointly builds an improved brand
and product mix system covering the markets in
the whole country with the core brand products.

e 2 ) A % I S0 LG SO S A AR ] I
B R AT B s A SR A R o

The aforesaid output and comparison data of the
Company of the corresponding period exclude
the output of the associated and joint investment
brewing plants of the Company.

4

JEORHR 4 D2

Information of purchase of raw materials

a

B

Purchasing mode

A ) R 4 2 B TR R A 4 R I AR
A PR BE U5 A5 > R ICHR 0 A [ dg A v PR
Be A E A 36 B IR M 45 6 I AR B IR BE SR 3L
o L B A JRUORE R 2 Y R AR U s R O
F o B3Rk b B R o W] R PR R R
SR AT R AR AR A AT S MR
JE AT ~ A OB R RSB o IR R BRHT AT 3%
BT AT R 0 R o AR IR R AT
HTH R R R E S o A% B SRR A
A ESE AR > R T B BT R > SRR
b7 BEIETE &5k

The Company mainly purchases raw materials
including those for brewing, packaging materials
and energy, and adopts the comprehensive
purchasing mode combining with the centralized
purchasing in the head office and regional areas,
and the purchase by brewing plants themselves.
The Company mainly purchases barley, the main
raw material in brewing beer, through import,
and purchases packaging materials in China.
The Company purchases the bulk materials in
centralized manner through the unified bidding
by the head office, of which the most materials
are in annual bidding, and some materials are
in quarterly bidding, and also makes timely
adjustment by keeping an eye on the industry to
determine the industry situation. The Company
also expands the bidding mode that it establishes
e-commerce purchasing platform of Tsingtao
Beer to purchase the raw materials by including
the self-purchased materials in the Internet
platform, to extend the excellent supplying teams,
and to continuously optimize the suppliers’

structure.
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) L H
Purchasing amount
Bpr oo WP ARW
Unit: RMB’000 Currency: RMB
BRUEPS g A5 90 AR M A
Purchasing WILE (%)
91 ok 4 amount of the Percentage of total
Purchasing amount corresponding purchasing amount
of the Reporting period in prior of the Reporting
J5 B8 0 Class of raw materials Period year Period (%)
R ¥ DA ) Raw materials for brewing 4,049,279 4,300,899 33.21
AR Packaging materials 8,045,480 8,693,678 66.00
TR Energy 96,429 104,747 0.79
R TRV Jrffe Ak KINE - B2B ~ ALIE PS5 > &
Information of sales SR T 2 LT A A 2 S A R R
5 -
) HEHEA On the basis of a deep region-based distribution
Sales mode model in the domestic market, the Company

A A B BEOL T B S 0 o BT I kR
Ao A B~ R O S B AR IR R A ke - T
A S MRAT BE - BT R BRI - Al
SEF R RE AL I o LR B BE R ) k) 5T
SRR ~ 4 R B B A TR AT

The Company has established Tsingtao Brewery
Marketing Center to perform such business
functions as marketing and management, product
sales and after-sales services. It consists of a
number of specialized functional departments,
including Brand Management, Sales Management,
Modern Channels and Innovation Business, to
formulate and implement marketing strategies
and annual marketing plans according to the
Company’s development planning.

A T AR I 1A I 05 7 4 S TR P 4 K
B b o S B ART B AR AR R Sr B AL 2 i SR
B4 e o 35 3 [t A 0 S A0 o A A O
AT A B IR B RS S A - AR
A P 45 S5 4% ST WG AL B 3% T A [ i
SR IRIE o vl RN SE S YE R AR
SO A oy T AR~ S S TR R S R B S A
S - S B B R T 5 ) o B RE T - A
i 7 5 A B PR fE ) A0 BHE R R > B
N vl S B A o ALK SR > M
B ¥ P [ LU A+ 3RGE R R IR
W W SEALAK > AN BUHORT 'S J5 O + B 5 T
W+ ERE T 8 5B I iLE T
B R S S MRS SE =05 F A R B &
A > A5 52 175 FA A Bk IR 30T DR AT 8 B AN - R

continues to expand business on multiple
chains both online and offline. It carries out
product sales and exercises market management
by market region and sub-divided channel,
developing and maintaining regional market sales
channels through business branches, including
sales branches, province-based regional branches
and province-based offices. The Company
makes active steps to cultivate professional
distributors on multiple channels. By taking
a suite of measures, including network-based
collaboration, professional market planning and
promotional support, the Company continues
to improve its distribution capacity on regional
markets, strengthen its management of end
customers and expand its brand influence among
consumers in a bid to boost product sales. The
Company develops new sales models and builds
up the “internet+” channel system. By setting up
professional e-commerce channels, the Company
continues to amplify the leading edge of a multi-
dimensional e-commerce channel system that
combines “Official Flagship Store + Official
Mall + Online Retailers + Franchised Store”.
On top of that, it collaborates with third-party
platforms to quickly create new sales models in
the special period of the epidemic. By vigorously
promoting such business activities as “Giving
Back to Consumers”, B2B and Community Group
Purchase, the Company satisfies the buying needs
and consumption experience of consumers in the
internet era through multiple channels.
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&)

O ) AE AT 3 0 8 I B Ah 1 4 R A e
FRBHRHEAT » i o RS E P A 1 U Bl o
Ja& Ak g 36 5 B R BB > A0 T R ML 1
sl LA BT B B > TG R A A B
T35 3 9 T35 K5 VL 04 7 I B v 35 Y R i i R
% o

Through distributors and other local resources,
the Company attempts to establish localized
business development teams to fully exert the
brand equity of Tsingtao Beer, implement brand
promotion and build and enhance the upmarket
brand image of Tsingtao Beer in international

The Company realizes sales in overseas markets market.
through overseas subsidiaries and local agents.
b 515 %
Regional information
B T B AR
Unit: RMB’000  Currency: RMB
Hogs =k
A (T7h)
AW Sales Income AMfik AWGER  Sales volume AW
KA of the (%) (1) of the (%)
Sales income of ~ corresponding  Percentage of  Sales volume of  corresponding  Percentage of
the Reporting  period in prior ~ the Reporting  the Reporting  period in prior  the Reporting
14 6 Region Period year Period (%) Period (kl) year (kl) Period (%)
U e Shandong Region 18,026,420 18,298,983 65.94 5,143,182 5,265,417 65.75
R North China 6,489,668 6,268,693 23.74 1,889,799 1,831,009 24.16
ERRE South China 3,268,886 3,431,341 11.96 943,260 999,352 12.06
RO East China 2,802,879 2,759,270 10.25 972,505 1,000,058 1243
R E South-east China 822,715 823,004 301 230,777 220,602 295
RIS Hong Kong, Macau and 561,744 672,434 2.05 95,541 115,624 1.2
i other overseas regions
bk ki Elimination between regions (4,034,334) (4,035,446) (16.95) (1,452,382) (1,381,044) (18.57)
At Total 27,337,978 27,618,479 100 7,822,682 8,051,017 100
[ 358 8] 4 4 e Standard for dividing the regions:
AN T AR B R [R] IR 38 T 35 1 2% A% Bk e A B R R The Company sets up different business structures
A R T 35 B SE SR AT B 4y o in the markets throughout the country based on
the operation strategy and development needs in
different regional markets.
HEATR N
Information of distributors
L ey
Unit: PCS
T4 B0 A A 0 W
Number of 35300 A 1 o A A A

distributor as at the
end of the Reporting

Increased number Decreased number

during the Reporting  during the Reporting

i8R Region Period Period Period
W5 Domestic market 14,417 2,971 4,134
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The 30th TSINGTAQO International Beer Festival

hE - 58S

ARG A R L

Information on the management of distributors:

AFFRIIGA -~ s R A EEE > &
N B AESE b BRSOl A -
The Company persists in the concept of “win-win
cooperation” and strives to create value-added
platforms for different partners on the value
chain.

TG AT IEYE T e 5 > QS PR TOHE 7 AT 22 b
REMERTE - WA REETE - A S AL
FET: 10 HBR A 33 4 BT SX R DG I S
B Bk AT SRR | o A ) I IO A G e B
P S B R B A T AR T P A B A
HE > EELBFIRE S M B TT - 48 57 B A Ak 2
B > FRRHRTI I B AT > TIBLME R -

With an insight into the development trend
of the industrial channels, the Company has
creatively implemented a new model of channel
transformation that aims at “improving the
product structure, increasing the market share
and enhancing the professionalization of sub-
divided segments”. The Company balances the
“responsibilities, authority and interests” between
itself and its distributors on a scientific basis and
wields their exclusive advantages, helping the
distributors to improve internal management and
operation capacity and raise profitability. These
efforts aim to strengthen the foundation of its
network, promote its control over the market and
achieve win-win results.
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A FBA B

Analysis of the Company’s income

) AT B8 2 7] 1 5 KBk

Disclosure of composition of the Company’s
principal business in different classes

and Analysis

M T BE:ARK
Unit: RMB’000  Currency: RMB
ik (%) Wk (%)
Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) (Decrease) I (%)
from the from the Increase/(Decrease)
corresponding corresponding L% (%) from the corresponding
BEUA period in ETT period in Gross margin period in prior year
FipE L Class Revenue  prior year (%) Cost of sales ~prior year (%) (%) (%)
SRERBK By levels of products
Gl Tsingtao brand 17,250,881 (0.75) 8,927,199 (3.38) 815 B 141 RS
Increased by 1.41 percentage points
Jb i Other brands 10,087,097 (147) 7,309,005 1) 27.54 o A A%
Increased by 2 percentage points
Nt Total 21337978 = 16,236,204 = = =
HBEAR By regions
5l Shandong Region 18,026,420 (149) 11,681,623 (239) 35.00 B 0.6 5
Increased by 0.6 percentage points
#JWE  North China 6,489,668 353 40500 141 3490 B 136 fA 2
Increased by 1.36 percentage points
M South China 3,268,886 (4.73) 2,120,732 (1.25) 35.12 w7 WEAE
Increased by 1.75 percentage points
R East China 2,802,879 1.58 1,937,267 (590) 30.88 549 WA Y
Increased by 5.49 percentage points
RHBE South-east China 822,715 (0.06) 579435 (119) 2957 wims4mAaY
Increased by 5.4 percentage points
WML Hong Kong, Macau and
WMEE other overseas regions 561,744 (16.46) 365,648 (1421) 3491 WA LA RS
Decreased by 1.71 percentage points
AIEHEE  Elimination between regions (4,634,334) (4,673,526)
it Total 27,337,978 - 16,236,204 - - -
1% DL AL : Explanation:

O [~ 3R A I B A 2 T b 43 5 B4 o 5.49
Be5.40 1 7 43 36 > 532 E PR A ACAR BE E il 65

AL B AR M W B T B o

The gross profit margins in East China and
South-east China increased by 5.49 and 5.40
percentage points respectively, mainly due to

the optimization of the product structure and the

price adjustment during the year.
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Discussion and analysis of the future
development of the Company

A7 SR8 T H Do A0 5% S i 5

Industrial competition layout and development trend

b JR] WERL G T 355 A0 % A R R R I WL A A T T B o
ROBETERFRBRNT RN BRCERBRERRE
B> ATERAA P A e AL B S AR » FRATHE
LA A 4 T RO o A1 L A A I
AE TR PR i 355 S DA R - B v R A M i 3
AT 35 80% FIA 4 - T B4R R B LT > B
THERREN TS RFER o

As the world’s largest beer production and consumption
market, China’s beer industry is showing phased
stabilization from decades of continued development.
Large-scaled enterprises in the industry are accelerating
the speed of production capacity optimization and
integration and continue to promote large-scale
production to improve operational efficiency. Foreign-
owned beer and imported beer are also accelerating
their deployment in the domestic market. At present,
China’s top five beer enterprises account for nearly
80% of the market share. Market concentration has
continued to rise, forming a relatively stable market
competition pattern.

IR 2R B 25 vl R AR A S B T > WG N e T 0 LR
REVEERTE S » WIRE P BRIl - A AR
TE DA R AEAR T > AE S B MR K P B AT Bk
W BRI 22 ] 5 Il IRF 3 BB AR ~ T 355 AR 5 SRS IHE R K
A% b R T 45 PR 2% A6 7R 3 30 T T IR A A

With continuous development of China’s economy
in the future, the beer consumption market still has
a relatively large development potential, increasing
consumption and profitability can be achieved through
further optimization of capacity, upgrade of product
structure and price adjustment. Meanwhile, market
competition will remain relatively fierce due to factors
such as overcapacity, weak market demand and rising
cost.

o o] L i 3553 e T A DL T R R A 25 oA 1 L
AT IR e 2 M TR 0 AR R U > T 2 PR AR 3B KR
ooty LB R~ A P O > I B T T R

LA B IR R e DUVRURERY - SRR AR T -
S T SRR AU AR o DASESE R ~ RS R N 2 AR Y
o 2 A AG BRI AR S T RAF I BE R B3 -

The upgrade of consumption and diversification of
consumer demand in the Chinese beer market is causing
the pace of the consumption structure transformation
in the beer industry to continuously accelerate.
Consumers begin to pursue higher quality and more
personalized beer product. Market competition turns
from the expansion of production capacity and scale to
competition mainly based on quality and differentiation.
Medium- to high-end markets will continue to grow,
and the proportion of high-end products represented by
canned beer and craft beer will increase and maintain a
good development trend.

57 928 Tl % 82 1 S WL it 4 B IR T A 35 5 DL e v 357
T NTEROTE & B AR 7 B > DU GRS I i 35 2
T IR S AL BT T R > AR R A R IE
PRE IR o )Y T T M L Y Y S R
B AR > 2 BB ORI 2 A2 7 B O A~ PR
T K o

COVID-19 pandemic has affected the sales channels
and scenarios of beer productions and the consumption
habits of market consumers. The proportion of
traditional channels dominated by the ready-to-drink
markets such as the food and beverage market has
declined. The e-commerce platforms have developed
quickly. Mature e-commerce applications have also
promoted the digital transformation of product sales,
bringing a more convenient and efficient way of
consumption for consumers.
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The Company’s development strategy

N ) BRE RS WO HEIE o R B B MM > A BEH S
ML A iR REL - AR ARM AR E RS A
VRS > 35 ) 4 8 e Uy A o ARBRT b RS 4
AURTEREY ~ BESE— - AR EESE - AL - Bk
Je 175 R B M i 51 > S0 0 TG T 2 B v 35 B e 2
Jon b E b &5 R TH A~ R TE ML B~ B O B
B BB - DAL - B ReAL IR T
5 W - S A A R AN B AR AR B R R 2 3
Wim AW BT W E R R AR > 4T
L P R AL i R

The Company will firmly promote high-quality
development strategy, give full play to the advantages
of Tsingtao Brewery’s brand, quality, production base,
and channel network and other platform resources, and
strive to promote the transformation of development
method. Under the six strategic guidelines of “Led by
Brand, Driven by Innovation, Quality First, Prioritizing
Efficiency, Optimizing Structure and Coordinated
Development”, the Company will strengthen its core
business by implementing a number of strategic
measures, including building the strategic belt of market
base, speeding up product structure upgrade, enhancing
brand equity, creating attractive quality, expanding the
global market, continuing to unswervingly strengthen
and improve the main beer business with large-
scale and intelligent upgrades to help enhance the
enterprise’s market competitiveness, achieve high-
quality sustainable development and build a first-class
international brand enterprise.
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Operating plan

O I% I R 3 > A [ P S 3 e T3 S A
T 2 TH AR AR 0 B8 Tl > T4 BRI IR WL A b
AR R BB > B AT & B IR PR 3% B 9 S 85 >
KT 455 A B g BE s I PR T A > A 3
WA~ TR - 3R BB R AN B AT R L
3 DU S AR A 0 A S BILAR ) B A SRR
AR OBF N > MBI mERRR -

The Company will base itself on the main beer industry
and seize the development opportunity brought by the
recovery of the domestic beer consumption market and
consumption upgrades. The Company will fully utilize
Tsingtao Brewery’s brand and quality advantages and
integrate platform and resources to actively expand
the domestic and international markets and intensify
marketing promotion, accelerate transformation and
upgrade. Through increasing output, restructure, price
adjustments, increasing cost efficiency, the main
beer business will be unswervingly strengthened and
optimized. With excellent cost control and enterprise
management ability to increase business efficiency and
core competitiveness, the Company will achieve high-
quality development.

2 ) N A A L A R S I 05 M A A A g A A At
i Ry R B > R PR 41 R P9 Ah T35 > 5 R SR T B
5 R > RATIE T FE WA B
BTG RIR o FERBET S > DL B A
L~ R ATUAS AR e T R A S A A A e R S A A
SAERR > AN BB TTE fh Y BRI BB -

The Company will continue to take advantage of the
production and sales network layout that cover main
markets across China, actively expand the domestic
and international markets, continue to consolidate and
improve the strategic belt of the base market, rely on
the competitive edge at the base market, radiate to drive
the growth in peripheral markets. At the international
market, the Company will continue to strengthen the
international brand communication and promotion
from the angle of Tsingtao Brewery’s high-quality,
competitive pricing and high visibility, constantly
increasing sales and international influence.



O VL AR AR TR AL HE T 7 5 L 2 L+ B Ly O 5
AR LR R > DARE R AN - HALE SRR
8% AR BB YUE K A R ER 5 AR T MR B
175 K PG 5t R R B - AR IRAE S RERAE o AR
TR > FF AR ST R A T R R B R - R
TR B B+ 0 Bk R S B

) 1% TSR A1 Dy v i A R e i A8 o e i 2 2 G
TR oo v A2 1 o O L 5 SR T A R R T
AR T4 ] o i 3 A e T A A

The Company will continue to deepen the promotion of
the brand strategy of “Tsingtao Beer as Core Brand +
Laoshan Beer as Second Brand”. With sports marketing,
music marketing and experience marketing, the
Company will continue to improve brand influence and
Tsingtao Brewery’s brand to become more international,
youthful and fashionable through immersive brand
experience. The Company will accelerate innovation,
and continue to shape and improve the attractive
quality with the characteristics of Tsingtao Brewery to
brew a differentiated product of “fundamental quality
+ characteristic quality + charismatic quality”. The
Company will accelerate the deployment of the high-
end and ultra-high-end markets, and the transformation
and upgrading of the high-value products represented
by canned and craft beer products to continue to
consolidate and enhance the Company’s competitive
advantages in medium- and high-end products.

I BRGE A RS EHE WAL BT > A A eSS R R
A REAY TR DL B A S A E A SR I AR - T
BESEGE ~ BEGEBLAL K F » TS 28 SR 4R T - A
R A AT PR L B R R B
B o SERIRE AL E - moRAR L& B > R
EE SRR TR Y0 SIFITUL LIk

The Company will firmly implement digital
transformation, continue to accelerate the construction
of factories with an intelligent system and the
construction of intelligent supply chain and industrial
internet, improve the modernization level of industrial
chain and supply chain to form advantageous industrial
clusters. The Company will continue to accelerate the
transformation of digital marketing and integrate the
overall digital marketing planning to complete the
deployment of digital channels, increase online sales,
and form a dual engine for industrial upgrade through
new channels and new categories.
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The Company will continue to develop new businesses
such as health drinks and fashionable bars and develop
the chain business, Tsingtaol903 Tsingtao Beer Bars,
quickly in China to further create a new height of beer
immersion experience; taking the advantage of the
opportunity of transformation and upgrading of the
beer production bases, the Company will co-ordinate
beer brewing, warehousing and logistics, industrial
tourism, fashionable bars and other businesses formats
to create a diversified consumption ecosystem that
is complementary, mutually beneficial and win-
win by integrating consumer experience, cultural

communication and brand promotion.
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In 2021, the Board and the management of the
Company will lead the staff to speed up its
transformation from old growth drivers to new ones,
and maximize the advantages of quality, brand and
technology to constantly improve core competitiveness
and sustainable development ability of the Company
to achieve high-quality development and create higher
value for the shareholders.

il i 3 V¥ L B

Potential Business Risks

W P8 T 355 405 T S 1 A i 355 52 7 SR I 9 8 A A 5 AR R
BN > RN B E BN BR B R - R RE
SRIEAR - B0 2 AT 00 3 22 38 4 T 0 o B A 30 R A
AT BEAL > BRI SGAG BT W > A5 IR 0 A A i BE
ZB| BN -

The beer industry, especially in overseas markets, are
slow in recovery due to COVID-19 pandemic. The
epidemic prevention and control have caused a decrease
of people mobility and reduced demand for social
catering, thus causing changes to the consumption
habits and consumption channels of people, which
means the proportion of the ready-to-drink market has
declined, and traditional channels and ultimate barriers
have been greatly impacted.

A B IR g S i 355 4R e R S B B TR e R T A
BB > A7 38 2 BRI R B B A (1l ~ 04 305 55 ) Bl bk
bk Y E PN K YN R 3 3 QB s
T AT R SR > DA B A WG O TR A T R
T 355 T B Af 53 A n K AR 8 g B 46 2 T IR A o — 25
TATEBERIE ) > v v s A i P T 355 5 T 8 U
20 B MR TS H H R DR R > DL EORE
Be A SERRME RS A N T2 B 4 4o 25 b R A 24 B 5088 R
T BE AR R R - AR R B RIE G
f 13

With multiple factors such as the continuous increase of
market concentration of the domestic beer market and
the upgrading of the trend of the consumption structure
in China, the rapid development of overcapacity in
the industry and the rapid development of substitutes
(liquor and wine etc.), the trend of younger consumers,
changes in consumption behavior caused by the concept
of healthy drinking, and the accelerated deployment and
promotion of foreign-owned beer and imported beer in
the domestic market, the pressure of industry growth
has aggravated, making market competition of mid- to
high-end products to remain relatively fierce. Market
expenses such as advertising and promotion continue
to increase, and operating pressure brought by the
continuous increase in the prices of raw materials for
beer and packaging materials and labor costs will have
an impact on the future sales, revenue and profit growth
of the Company.
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NFIEILEEF TR E M/ Members of the Ninth Session of the Board:
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Mr. HUANG Ke Xing, aged 58, graduated from Shandong University of Industry and obtained a
Master’s degree in business administration from the Guanghua School of Management of Peking

University. He holds an on-the-job postgraduate degree and is qualified as a Senior Engineer.
He is currently Secretary of the Party Committee and Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company and Secretary of the Party Committee and Chairman of the Board of Directors of Tsingtao
Group. He was General Manager of Tsingtao Brewery Engineering Company Limited, Assistant
to the President of the Company and Head of Strategic Investment Management Department, Vice
President of the Company, Vice President of Tsingtao Group, and President and Marketing President
of the Company. He has rich experience in strategy planning, investment management, operation
management, marketing and brand management of beer industry. Mr. Huang’s honors include
“National Model Worker”, “National 5.1 Labor Medal”, “Model Worker” of the National Light
Industry, the 2nd Session of “Craftsman of the Great Country” of the Light Industry, “Excellent
Entrepreneur in Shandong Province” and First Class Merit Award. Mr. Huang is also Delegate of the
13th Shandong Provincial People’s Congress and Member of the 11th Committee of the Shandong
Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.

TS > BUAE 595K » AL AR B2 o A A BN B v 4 SRR - 52 3% > WL WRJE AR B0 > IE
AR EET o BUEARRARIRATES - MR HIRMBARE o AL R MBS AN R - A%
BB - AREEHE o T WISe R AE A W AR B AT B SRR - BY R > S A R R AT LR
B> R A o ¥ B O ) 3 A A B S (oM D C Y BB A B R A0 A Y R SRR > BA
SR EEHE BAL - BUCGEE - HBAT B - SR - PR - BT B A KSR o
732019 4 2 B Se e @ 5T TAEH SO IR o B 2020 4R F Bl L — S5 ) 08 o

Mr. YU Zhu Ming, aged 59, graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
with a master’s degree in business administration and is a senior accountant. He is currently the

executive director, a member of the Party Committee and finance director of the Company. He was
the head of the financial management department, assistant to the president and chief accountant
of the Company. Mr. Yu has made important contributions to the Company’s innovative financial
management, integration of business and finance, operation support, and the establishment and
improvement of the financial management system that is in line with the Company’s development
model and strategic positioning. He has extensive experience in accounting informatization, tax
planning, financial management, finance management, internal control audit, risk management and
capital operation. He was awarded the honorary title of National Advanced Accountant in 2019 and
won Qingdao 5.1 Labor Medal of 2020.
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Mr. WANG Rui Yong, aged 55, holds a master’s degree in business administration from Peking
University and is a senior engineer. He is the executive director, a member of the Party Committee
and the vice president of the Company and is the 16th National People’s Congress of Qingdao. He
was the general manager of Beijing Five Star Tsingtao Brewery Co., Ltd, the general manager of
Tsingtao Brewery Huaihai Marketing Co., Ltd, the general manager of Shanghai Tsingtao Brewery
Huadong Marketing Co., Ltd, the general manager of Tsingtao Brewery Marketing Center in
Shandong Province, the assistant to the President of the Company and the president of Marketing
of the Company. He has rich experience in marketing, production operation and enterprise
management.

AR > BUAF 405K > ST SOBOG REHF B e » A PILELA L B AL > TR R R OR BRGSO B B
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Mr. SHI Kun, aged 40, graduated from The London School of Economics and Political Science
with a Master’s degree in management and Nanjing University with a Bachelor’s degree in
literature. He currently serves as Non-executive Director of the Company, Vice President and
Co-Chief Investment Officer of Fosun Group, Vice Chairman of Fosun Hive, Co-Chairman of
Yuyuan Inc. and Director of Jinhui Liquor Co., Ltd. Mr. SHI Kun proactively promotes the modern
manifestation of time-honored Chinese brands and traditional culture. His other titles include
Member of the 12th Session of the Committee of Shanghai Youth Federation, Vice President of
Shanghai International Fashion Federation and Chairman of Shanghai Watch and of Sea-gull Watch
Group.

TR > B4R 655K » PR AT (@ 3ah) B 1L - PGt i > BUEA LA R8Ik H
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Mr. YU Zeng Biao, aged 65, holds a Doctorate degree in economics (accounting) from Xiamen
University and is a certified public accountant in China. He is currently an independent non-
executive director of the Company, a professor of accounting and a doctoral supervisor of the
School of Economics and Management of Tsinghua University. Mr. Yu is currently a member of the
American Accounting Institute, Vice Chairman of China Cost Research Society, Vice Chairman of
China Chief Association of Accountants, and a consulting expert in management accounting in the
Ministry of Finance. He also serves as an independent director of China Film Co., Ltd., Chia Tai
Investment Co., Ltd. and Shanghai MicroPort Robot (Group) Co., Ltd..
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Mr. XIAO Geng, aged 57, holds a Doctorate degree in economics from the University of
California, Los Angeles. He is currently an independent non-executive director of the Company, a
professor of financial practice of Peking University HSBC Business School (PHBS) and Director
of the Research Institute of Maritime Silk-road of Peking University. His other positions include
Chairman of Hong Kong Institution for International Finance, Member of the Expert Committee for

Hengqin Area of Zhuhai of China (Guangdong) Pilot Free Trade Zone, Member of the Academic
Committee of International Monetary Institute of the Remin University of China, and independent
non-executive director of UBS (China) and Bank of Jinzhou. He was a professor of finance and
public policy practice and tenured professor of economics in The University of Hong Kong, Vice
President of the Fung Global Institute of Hong Kong, Adviser to the Chairman and Head of the
Research Department of the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong, independent non-
executive director of HSBC China and Emerging Market Fund of London, and External Supervisor
of Shenzhen Development Bank.
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Mr. SHENG Lei Ming, aged 50, holds a Doctorate degree in law from the East China University of
Political Science and Law and is a senior lawyer. He is an independent non-executive director of the
Company, Chairman of partners’ meetings of Guantao Law Firm in Beijing and a partner of Guantao
(Shanghai) Law Firm. His other positions include Vice President of All China Lawyers Association,
Vice President of Shanghai Law Society and independent director of three A-share listed companies,
which are Shanghai Zhenhua Heavy Industries Co., Ltd., China National Medicines Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. and Arcplus Group PLC. He was the President and Deputy Secretary of the Party
Committee of Shanghai Lawyers Association.

LHWRE > BUE 490K » IR KRB BEER L o BUEAN l Br AT HF > (86 R E
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Mr. JIANG Xing Lu, aged 49, holds a Bachelor’s degree from the Law School of Shandong
University. He is currently an independent non-executive director of the Company, General
Manager of Shandong Blue Economy Industry Fund Management Co., Ltd. and Executive Partner of
Qingdao Yulin Fund Management Center (Limited Partnership). He is also an independent director
of Qingdao Neusoft Carrier Technology Co., Ltd., Hailier Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd., Qingdao
Compton Technology Co., Ltd. and Liqun Commercial Group Co., Ltd.. Since 1994, Mr. Jiang has
successively served as Deputy Director and Senior Partner of Qindao Law Firm (Shandong), Partner
of Grandall Law Firm and Partner of King & Wood Mallesons (Beijing). In 2017, he was awarded
as “High-Calibre Financial Professional of Shandong Province”.
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Mr. LI Gang, aged 60, graduated from the major of Management Science and Engineering of Xi’an
Jiaotong University with a Doctorate degree in management. He is currently Chairman of the Board
of Supervisors of the Company. He was Deputy Chief of Shibei Branch of Qingdao Local Taxation
Bureau, Assistant to the Chief of Qingdao Local Taxation Bureau & Chief of Laoshan Branch of
Qingdao Local Taxation Bureau, Chief of Inspection Bureau of Qingdao Local Taxation Bureau,
Deputy Chief of Qingdao Local Taxation Bureau, Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of Tsingtao
Group and Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of Qingdao Municipally Administered Enterprises.
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Mr. YAO Yu, aged 40, holds a Bachelor’s degree in engineering and a Master’s degree in
economics. He is currently serving as a shareholder supervisor of the Company, Executive General
Manager of Shanghai Fosun Chuangfu Investment Management Co., Ltd., and a supervisor of Jinhui
Liquor Co., Ltd.. He was a former investment manager of Beijing Qingke Investment Management
Co., Ltd..
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Ms. LI Yan, aged 63, graduated from the Central Institute of Finance. She is currently the
independent supervisor of the Company, the professor and the doctoral supervisor of the School of
Finance and Taxation of Central University of Finance and Economics, the director of the Institute
of Government Budget, the non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the director of China Finance Society, the director of the Finance and Taxation Law
Research Society of China Law Society, and an independent director of Qingdao Port International
Co., Ltd., Beijing Donghua Software Co., Ltd., Hwa Create Co., Ltd. and Jiangxi Fushine
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd..
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Mr. WANG Ya Ping, aged 56, holds a bachelor’s degree in law from East China University
of Political Science and Law and is a senior lawyer in China. He is currently the independent
supervisor of the Company and the executive director and senior partner of Shandong Qindao Law
Firm, the vice president of Shandong Lawyers Association, the arbitrator of Qingdao Arbitration
Commission. He is also the independent director of Qingdao Gon Co., Ltd, the independent non-
executive director of Ruigang Construction Holdings Co., Ltd and the independent supervisor of
Qingdao Port International Co., Ltd.
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Mr. HUANG Zu Jiang, aged 55, graduated from the major of marine chemistry of the Ocean
University of China, holds a Master’s degree in business administration from the School of
Economics of Nankai University and is a Senior Engineer. He is Supervisor as Employees’
Representative of the Company, Assistant to the President of the Manufacturing Center of the
Company, and Secretary of the Party Committee and Director of Factory No. 2 of Tsingtao Brewery.
He was Assistant to the Manufacturing President and Head of Production Management Headquarters
of the Company, Assistant to Marketing President and General Manager of Logistics Management
Headquarters of the Company, and Assistant to Manufacturing President and Head of Safety and
Environmental Protection Headquarters of the Company. He has extensive experience in production,
operations and logistics management.
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Ms. SUN Li Hong, aged 45, undergraduate of Major of International Economic Law in Department
of Economic Law at Qingdao University. She is currently Supervisor as Employees’ Representative
and Head of Law Affairs Department of the Company. She also served as Deputy Head of
Secretarial Office of the Board, and Deputy Head of Law Affairs Department of the Company with
substantial experience in law affairs.
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Mr. MENG Qing Shang, aged 55, graduated from the major of electrical and automation of
Shandong University of Industry and is a Senior Engineer. He is currently Supervisor as Employees’
Representative of the Company and Secretary of the Party Committee and Director of Tsingtao
Brewery Factory. He was Assistant to the Director and Deputy Director of Tsingtao Brewery

Factory, Deputy General Manager of Tsingtao Brewery No. 3 Co., Ltd., Deputy Director of Tsingtao
Brewery No. 2 Factory, General Manager of Tsingtao Brewery (Shijiazhuang) Co., Ltd. and General
Manager of Tsingtao Brewery (Jiujiang) Co., Ltd.. He has rich experience in production, operations
and enterprise management.
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Mr. CAI Zhi Wei, aged 53, MBA at Xiamen University, Senior Engineer. He is currently President
of Marketing Center of the Company. Mr. CAI also served as Workshop Supervisor and Deputy
Factory Manager of Tsingtao Brewery No. 2 Factory, General Manager of Tsingtao Brewery
(Xiamen) Co., Ltd., General Manager of Xiamen Tsingtao Brewery South-East Sales Company
Limited, General Manager of Shanghai Tsingtao Brewery East-China Sales Company Limited,
General Manager of Shandong Area of Marketing Center of the Company, Vice President of
Marketing Center of the Company and General Manager of Sales Management Head Department
of Marketing Center, and Executive Vice President of Marketing Center of the Company with
substantial management experience in marketing.
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Mr. JIANG Zong Xiang, aged 48, graduated from Shandong University of Technology with a
bachelor’s degree and obtained a master’s degree in economics from Nankai University. He is
currently the vice president and supply chain president of the Company. He served as deputy general
manager of Tsingtao Brewery (Wuhu) Co., Ltd, deputy head of the Company’s strategic investment
management headquarters, head of information management headquarters, head of procurement
management headquarters of manufacturing center, assistant to manufacturing president and head
of procurement management headquarters of the Company. He has rich experience in production
operation and business management.
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Ms. XU Nan, aged 53, graduated from Shandong Institute of Light Industry with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering and is a senior engineer. She is currently the vice president, manufacturing
president and chief winemaker of the Company. She served as chief brewer and general manager of
Tsingtao Brewery (Shouguang) Co., Ltd, assistant to the manufacturing president of the Company
and the director of Tsingtao Brewery No. 2 Factory, assistant to the manufacturing president of
the Company and director of Tsingtao Brewery No. 3 Factory, and assistant to the manufacturing
president and head of production technology management headquarters of the Company. She has
rich experience in production operation and quality assurance.
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Mr. WANG Shao Bo, aged 53, graduated from Shanghai Jiaotong University with a bachelor’s
degree, obtained a master’s degree in business administration from Antai School of Management
of Shanghai Jiaotong University and is a senior engineer. He is currently the vice president of
the Company. He served as the assistant to the director of Tsingtao Brewery of the Company, the
deputy general manager of Shenzhen Tsingtao Brewery Asahi Co., Ltd, the production and operation
director of the operation management department of the Company, and the assistant to the president
and head of strategic investment management headquarters of the Company. He has extensive
experience in strategic planning, M&A investment management and production and operation in the
beer industry.
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Mr. ZHANG Rui Xiang, aged 56, Bachelor’s Degree at Shandong Normal University, an
economist. He is currently Board Secretary & Head of Secretarial Office of the Board, Company
Secretary and Authorized Representative of the Company. He also served as Assistant to Director,
Deputy Director, and Director of Secretarial Office of the Board & Representative to Securities
Affairs of the Company with long-term experience in the operation of listed company, information

disclosure and financing in capital market.
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II.

Restricted A Share Incentive Plan

Please refer to “XVI. Restricted A Share Incentive
Plan” of the Report of the Directors.

Significant investment matters
during the Reporting Period

1.

The Company held the 2019 fourth extraordinary
meeting of the ninth session of the Board on 6
December 2019, which approved the feasibility
report of the Tsingtao Brewery Smart Industry
Demonstration Park (Phase I) project with an
investment budget of approximately RMB150
million for such project and a new beer
production capacity of 240,000 kiloliters/year.
The project was completed and put into operation
in July 2020.

On 13 January 2020, the Company held the ninth
meeting of the ninth session of the Board and
approved the feasibility report on the project
concerning the establishment of Zaozhuang
Company with the capacity of 600,000 kI beer
production. The Zaozhuang Company was
invested and established by the Company (as
the sole shareholder) on 4 June 2020, with a
registered capital of RMB200 million. The
construction of such project started in February
2021.
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3. On 29 October 2020, the Company held the
thirteenth meeting of the ninth session of the
Board to review and approve the feasibility
report of Tsingtao Brewery West Coast Craft
Beer Garden project, and approved Culture
Company to build a craft beer garden in Golden
Beach Beer Town in West Coast New Area with
a total fixed asset investment of approximately
RMB250 million. After the completion of such
project, the project will become a new location
for brand promotion, consumer experience and
craft beer consumption of Tsingtao Brewery.
Tsingtao Brewery (West Coast) Culture and
Tourism Development Co., Ltd. was registered
on 26 March 2020 by Culture Company,
with a registered capital of RMB9 million.
The Company made a capital increase of
approximately RMB170 million to Tsingtao
Brewery (West Coast) Culture and Tourism
Development Co., Ltd., holding 95% of equity in
such company, and invested in the construction of
craft beer garden with such company as the main
entity. Culture Company continues to hold 5% of
equity in Tsingtao Brewery (West Coast) Culture
and Tourism Development Co., Ltd..

During the Reporting Period, the Company was not
involved in any material litigation or arbitration and
no material litigation or arbitration was pending or
threatened or made against the Company so far which
the Company is aware of.

Events after the Reporting Period

At the first extraordinary meeting of 2021 of the
ninth session of the Board of Directors and the first
extraordinary meeting of 2021 of the ninth session
of the Board of Supervisors held by the Company on
March 22, 2021, the resolution on the reserved grant of
restricted A shares to the participants was considered
and approved. According to the approval, 300,000
reserved restricted A shares under the Incentive Plan
would be granted to 35 eligible participants. For more
information, please refer to the announcement published
on March 22, 2021 on HKEXnews (www.hkexnews.hk)
of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.
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PwC ZT Shen Zi (2021) No. 10023
(Page 1 of 5)
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TSINGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED,
Opinion
What we have audited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tsingtao Brewery Company Limited (hereinafter “Tsingtao Brewery”),
which comprise:

. the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2020;

. the consolidated and company income statements for the year then ended;

. the consolidated and company cash flow statements for the year then ended;

. the consolidated and company statements of changes in shareholders’ equity for the year then ended; and
. notes to the financial statements.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and company’s
financial position of Tsingtao Brewery as at 31 December 2020, and their financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (“CASs”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing (“CSAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We are independent of Tsingtao Brewery in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“CICPA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the CICPA Code.

H R E R T HTH TS T (155 a5 )

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP, 11/F PricewaterhouseCoopers Center
Link Square 2, 202 Hu Bin Road, Huangpu District, Shanghai 200021, PRC

T: +86 (21) 2323 8888, F: +86 (21) 2323 8800, www.pwccn.com
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

(1)  Shandong Xin Immense Brewery Co., Ltd. (“Immense Brewery Company”) — Impairment assessment on goodwill

(2) Impairment test on fixed assets

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

(1) Immense Brewery Company — Impairment
assessment on goodwill (Refer to Note 2(28) and Note
4(15) to the financial statements)

Tsingtao Brewery has acquired 100% equity interest in
Immense Brewery Company in prior years. The carrying
amount of the goodwill arising from the acquisition of
Immense Brewery Company amounted to approximately
RMB958.87 million as at 31 December 2020.

Management conducted an impairment assessment of the
goodwill formed by the acquisition of Immense Brewery
Company by comparing its recoverable amount of an asset
group containing goodwill with its carrying value. The
recoverable amount shall be determined based on the higher
of the net amount of the fair value of the asset group less cost
of disposal and the present value of the estimated future cash
flow of the asset group. Management involved an independent
valuer to evaluate the recoverable amount of the assets group.

We considered this area as a key audit matter because the
carrying amounts of the goodwill of Immense Brewery
Company are significant to the financial statements and the
reasonableness of the aforesaid managements’ estimates would
have a significant impact on the result of the impairment
assessment.

In connection with the impairment assessment on goodwill of
Immense Brewery Company, we have performed the following

procedures:

. Understood and validated the managements’ internal
controls over the assessment of impairment of the
goodwill;

. Evaluated the competency, professionalism and

objectivity of the independent valuer;

. Combining interviews with the management and the
information obtained, we involved internal valuation
experts to assist us in assessing the rationality of the
valuation model and valuation methodology adopted
by the management and the independent valuers
employed by them; By comparing historical financial
data, approved budgets, industry experience and
market forecast, we evaluated the reasonableness of
the key assumptions used by the management and the
independent valuers employed by them, including sales
growth rate during the forecast period, perpetual growth
rate, gross profit margin, discount rate and etc.

. Review key assumptions used by the management in
impairment assessment, such as sensitivity analysis of
perpetual growth rate, gross profit margin and discount
rate, and consider its potential impact on the results of
the impairment assessment if these assumptions are to be
changed within a reasonable range.

According to the procedures performed, the valuation
methodology of recoverable amount, valuation model, key
assumptions and estimates adopted by the management and the
employed independent valuers, and the results of impairment
assessments made by the management are acceptable.
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Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

(2) Impairment test on fixed assets (Refer to Note 2(28)
and Note 4(11) to the financial statements)

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of fixed
assets as recognized in the consolidated financial statements
of Tsingtao Brewery amounted to approximately RMB10.30
billion.

Management analysed and identified the indication of
impairment, conducted impairment assessment by comparing
the recoverable amount with carrying amount of group
of assets containing those fixed assets with indication of
impairment. The recoverable amount shall be determined based
on the higher of the net amount of the fair value of the group
of assets containing those assets less cost of disposal and the
present value of the estimated future cash flow of the asset.

The impairment test involved the determinination of valuation
parameters (e.g. discount rate), and also the assumptions in
operating and financial performance in the coming years,
including sales growth rate and gross profit margin in the
coming years.

We considered this area as a key audit matter because the
carrying amounts of the fixed assets with indication of
impairment are significant to the financial statements and
the reasonableness of the aforesaid managements’ estimation
would have a significant impact on the results of the
impairment test.

In connection with the impairment test on fixed assets, we
have performed the following procedures:

. Understood and validated the management’s internal
controls over the test of impairment of fixed assets;

. Validated the management’s processes in identifying the
indications of impairment;

. For those fixed assets with indication of impairment,
examined the management’s impairment test model as
follows:

—  Combining interviews with the management and
the information obtained, we involved internal
valuation experts to assist us in assessing the
rationality of the valuation model and valuation
methodology adopted by the management in
impairment assessment.

—  Evaluated the rationality of key assumptions
adopted by the management by comparing
historical financial data, approved budget, industry
experience and market forecast, including sales
growth rate, gross profit margin and discount rate
and etc.

—  Review key assumptions used by the management
in impairment assessment, such as sensitivity
analysis of gross profit margin and discount rate,
and consider its potential impact on the results of
the impairment assessment if these assumptions
are to be changed within a reasonable range.

According to the procedures performed, the valuation
methodology of recoverable amount, valuation model,
key assumptions and estimates adopted, and the results
of impairment assessments made by the management are
acceptable.
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Other Information

Management of Tsingtao Brewery is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in 2020 annual report of Tsingtao Brewery other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Audit Committee for the Financial Statements

Management of Tsingtao Brewery is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with the CASs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing these financial statements, management is responsible for assessing Tsingtao Brewery’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intend to liquidate Tsingtao Brewery or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing Tsingtao Brewery’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether these financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with CSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by management.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
Tsingtao Brewery’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in these financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause Tsingtao Brewery to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Tsingtao Brewery to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP Signing CPA
Song Shuang (Engagement Partner)

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China Signing CPA
26 March 2021 Zhang Dong
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As at
Note 4 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
(unless otherwise 2020 2019 2020 2019
ASSETS stated) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Current assets
Cash at bank and on hand (1) 18,466,880,608  15,301,983,408 7,498,667,378 6,073,903,675
Financial assets held for trading (2) 1,888,862,835 1,523,793,019 - -
Notes receivable (3) 5,648,580 75,100,000 3,500,000 75,100,000
Accounts receivable (4),15(1) 119,506,428 151,069,427 1,289,784,383 1,191,236,318
Advances to suppliers (5) 239,884,336 117,156,091 173,715,881 81,193,236
Other receivables (6),15(2) 73,893,587 86,269,436 767,551,777 661,842,853
Inventories (7),15(3) 3,281,033,526 3,181,769,333 1,484,423,351 1,440,374,542
Other current assets (8) 552,409,778 564,677,336 213,704,493 337,621,348
Total current assets 24,628,119,678 21,001,818,050  11,431,347,263 9,861,271,972
Non-current assets
Debt investment 15(4) - - - 163,325,489
Long-term equity investments (9),15(5) 374,333,837 376,641,802  10,797,859,391  10,452,229,369
Other non-current financial assets 600,000 600,000 300,000 300,000
Investment properties (10) 27,183,434 36,504,682 28,097,551 28,074,694
Fixed assets (11),15(6) 10,302,628,630  10,222,034,465 2,207,215,759 2,075,232,310
Construction in progress (12) 339,805,369 178,993,842 29,042,168 29,888,393
Right-of-use assets (13) 168,329,047 66,970,435 33,604,316 29,566,778
Intangible assets (14), 15(7) 2,503,842,988 2,558,572,455 495,947,407 507,006,725
Goodwill (15) 1,307,103,982 1,307,103,982 - -
Long-term prepaid expenses (16) 86,258,334 35,255,388 4,265,112 3,897,707
Deferred tax assets 17 1,718,307,625 1,455,035,532 1,044,203,455 885,429,696
Other non-current assets (29) 57,672,911 72,852,914 20,751,654 31,543,686
Total non-current assets 16,886,066,157 16,310,565,497  14,641,286,813  14,206,494,847
TOTAL ASSETS 41,514,185,835  37,312,383,547  26,072,634,076  24,067,766,819
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As at 31 December 2020
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As at
Note 4 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
(unless otherwise 2020 2019 2020 2019
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY stated) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings (20) 703,273,054 270,906,631 - -
Notes payable (21) 149,491,592 220,825,323 118,344,729 119,897,333
Accounts payable (22) 2,222,601,042 2,167,178,181 2,945,975,684 2,454,746,492
Contract liabilities (23) 6,567,320,256 5,970,644,849 4,816,661,431 4,221,446,260
Employee benefits payable (24) 1,906,199,446 1,458,665,786 630,441,397 531,653,920
Taxes payable (25) 523,026,847 513,058,160 82,987,488 99,681,934
Other payables (26) 3,074,878,208 2,424,857,501 1,389,865,972 1,011,094,365
Current portion of non-current liabilities (27) 42,089,297 22,208,025 12,694,927 9,183,992
Other current liabilities (23) 296,065,856 305,436,538 255,389,916 251,218,368
Total current liabilities 15,509,945,598  13,353,780,994  10,252,361,544 8,698,922,664
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings (28) - 209,180 - -
Lease liabilities (29) 115,839,869 37,471,885 17,840,026 17,127,751
Long-term payables (30) 462,046,060 372,579,660 - -
Deferred income (31) 2,899,626,024 2,519,926,935 399,473,516 425,786,239
Long-term employee benefits payable (32) 991,111,582 931,008,557 543,156,836 425,765,776
Deferred tax liabilities 17) 167,564,536 184,035,480 - -
Total non-current liabilities 4,636,188,071 4,045,231,697 960,470,378 868,679,766
Total liabilities 20,146,133,669  17,399,012,691  11,212,831,922 9,567,602,430
Equity
Share capital (33) 1,364,182,795 1,350,982,795 1,364,182,795 1,350,982,795
Capital surplus (34) ,15(9) 3,675,291,623 3,444,317,455 4,710,298,947 4,306,633,811
Less:  Treasury stock (35) (279,576,000) - (279,576,000) -
Other comprehensive income (35) ,15(10) (19,851,339) (47,347,633) (30,438,000) (47,445,000)
Surplus reserve (37) 1,400,704,380 1,400,704,380 1,400,704,380 1,400,704,380
General reserve (38) 260,344,554 234,715,680 - -
Undistributed profits (39) ,15(11) 14,220,864,502  12,788,210,357 7,694,630,032 7,489,288,403
Total equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company 20,621,960,515  19,171,583,034  14,859,802,154  14,500,164,389
Non-controlling interests 746,091,651 741,787,822 — —
Total equity 21,368,052,166  19,913,370,856  14,859,802,154  14,500,164,389
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 41,514,185,835 37,312,383,547  26,072,634,076  24,067,766,819

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative:
HUANG Kexing

Principal in charge of accounting:
YU Zhuming

Head of accounting department:
HOU Qiuyan
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Note 4
(unless otherwise 2020 2019 2020 2019
ITEM stated) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Revenue (40),15(12) 27,759,710,926  27,983,760,363  19,545,284,577  20,169,631,508
Less: Cost of sales (40),(46),15(12),(14) (16,540,609,624) (17,080,443,282) (15,283,475,672) (16,042,976,582)
Taxes and surcharges (41) (2,219,072,099) (2,313,322,793) (527,104,870) (558,846,365)
Selling and distribution expenses (42),(46),15(14)  (4,984,549,837) (5,103,505,734) (3,105,864,352) (3,307,273,882)
General and administrative expenses (43),(46),15(14)  (1,678,050,722)  (1,881,053,486) (582,652,267) (450,304,837)
Research and development expenses (44),(46),15(14) (21,467,092) (21,088,710) (21,467,092) (21,088,710)
Finance expenses (45),15(13) 470,921,460 484,172,216 191,970,722 159,701,910
Including: Interest expenses (13,662,682) (13,621,266) - -
Interest income 524,029,340 514,830,422 214,047,815 166,807,682
Add:  Other income (49) 517,048,836 602,897,696 130,682,050 103,473,086
Investment income (50),15(17) 25,243,596 24,508,766 880,607,513 1,112,100,794
Including: Share of profit of
associates and a joint
venture 18,098,320 21,182,903 17,796,928 19,996,888
Profits arising from changes in fair value
(Losses are listed with “-) (51) 55,092,634 56,754,451 - -
Credit impairment losses
(Losses are listed with “-) (48),15(16) 1,574,159 7,091,211 33,882,576 (30,1006,734)
Asset impairment losses
(Losses are listed with “-) (47),15(15) (130,553,700) (121,051,420) (138,844,216) (264,289,789)
Gains on disposals of assets
(Losses are listed with “-”) (52) (5,204,016) 59,170,551 (1,391,237) (7,154,072)
Operating profit 3,250,084,521 2,697,889,829 1,101,627,732 862,866,327
Add:  Non-operating income (53) 14,586,892 34,664,591 4,875,560 7,638,286
Less: Non-operating expenses (54) (25,122,089) (5,643,591) (23,185,909) (3,993,988)
Total profit 3,239,549,324 2,726,910,829 1,083,317,383 866,510,625
Less: Income tax expense (55),15(18) (912,580,519) (797,794,436) (134,935,217) (49,121,713)
Net profit 2,326,968,805 1,929,116,393 948,382,166 817,388,912
Classified by continuity of operations
Net profit from continuing operations 2,326,968,805 1,929,116,393 948,382,166 817,388,912
Net profit from discontinued
operations - - - -
Classified by ownership of the equity
Attributable to non-controlling
interests 125,645,249 77,013,017 — —
Attributable to shareholders of the
company 2,201,323,556 1,852,103,376 948,382,166 817,388,912
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Consolidated and Company Income Statements (Continned)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

Note 4
(unless otherwise 2020 2019 2020 2019
ITEM stated) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (36) 27,496,294 (2,650,829) 17,007,000 1,037,000
Other comprehensive income attributable to
shareholders of the Company, net of tax
Items that will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss
Changes arising from remeasurement of
defined benefit plan 17,790,000 907,000 17,007,000 1,037,000
Items that will be subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss
Shares of other comprehensive income
of investees accounted for using
the equity method that will be
subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss 72,326 9,413 - -
Currency translation differences 9,633,968 (3,567,242) - -
Total comprehensive income 2,354,465,099 1,926,465,564 965,389,166 818,425,912
Attributable to shareholders of the Company 2,228,819,850 1,849,452,547 965,389,166 818,425,912
Attributable to non-controlling interests 125,645,249 77,013,017 — —
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (56) 1.629 1.371 — —
Diluted earnings per share (56) 1.627 1.371 — —

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative: Principal in charge of accounting:

HUANG Kexing YU Zhuming

Head of accounting department:

HOU Qiuyan



= ~FF F | ANNUAL REPORT 2020 231

Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

2020 2019 2020 2019
ITEM Note 4 Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from sales of goods or
rendering of services 32,249,365,646  33,048,233,130  22,805,199,928  23,823,793,769
Refund of taxes and surcharges 17,073,564 18,516,847 12,486,674 8,071,138
Cash received relating to other operating
activities (57)(a) 1,733,115,735 1,807,961,603 464,645,732 525,159,748
Sub-total of cash inflows 33,999,554,945  34,874,711,580  23,282,332,334  24,357,024,655
Cash paid for goods and services (15,263,953,862) (16,451,021,182) (15,932,533,345) (17,071,424,198)
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees (4,471,128,901)  (4,830,268,740)  (1,629,430,523) (1,701,438,298)
Payments of taxes and surcharges (4,943,789,057)  (5,210,668,233)  (1,247,625,874)  (1,138,905,880)
Cash paid relating to other operating activities (57)(b) (4,367,260,763)  (4,366,200,846)  (2,744,536,860) (2,789,719,269)
Sub-total of cash outflows (29,046,132,583) (30,858,159,001) (21,554,126,602) (22,701,487,645)
Net cash flows from operating activities (58)(a) 4,953,422,362 4,016,552,579 1,728,205,732 1,655,537,010
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash received from disposal of investments 2,530,178,900 1,669,900,000 381,460,000 642,760,000
Cash received from returns on investments 87,605,830 76,740,009 772,672,950 922,428,055
Net cash received from disposal of fixed
assets, intangible assets and other long-term
assets 20,462,220 248,098,952 3,512,260 1,007,829
Cash received relating to other investing
activities (57)(c) 308,074,044 701,467,374 1,000,500 3,902,150
Sub-total of cash inflows 2,946,320,994 2,696,206,335 1,158,645,710 1,570,098,034
Cash paid to acquire fixed assets, intangible
assets and other long-term assets (1,295,167,063)  (1,155,246,070) (369,140,677) (264,803,287)
Cash paid to acquire investments (3,000,100,000) (1,867,622,367) (607,778,181)  (1,341,860,000)
Cash paid relating to other investing activities (57)(d) (138,792,096) (21,103,503) (1,669,800) (3,873,350)
Sub-total of cash outflows (4,434,059,159)  (3,043,971,940) (978,588,658) (1,610,536,637)
Net cash flows from investing activities (1,487,738,165) (347,765,605) 180,057,052 (40,438,603)
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from investment 12 281,576,000 - 279,576,000 -
Cash received from borrowings 720,120,000 256,620,000 - -

Sub-total of cash inflows 1,001,696,000 256,620,000 279,576,000 -
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H OO %A R A A TSINGTAO BREWERY CO., LTD.

Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

2020

2019 2020 2019
ITEM Note 4 Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Cash repayments of borrowings (270,540,000) (289,545,200) - -
Cash payments for distribution of dividends,
profits or interests expenses (793,126,772) (710,882,300) (732,397,535) (645,739,858)
Including: Cash payments for dividends,
profit to minority shareholders
of subsidiaries (48,402,856) (54,705,496) — —
Cash payments relating to other financing
activities (57)(e) (294,120,079) (24,909,652) (16,926,317) (14,316,229)
Sub-total of cash outflows (1,357,786,851)  (1,025,337,152) (749,323,852) (660,056,087)
Net cash flows from financing activities (356,090,851) (768,717,152) (469,747,852) (660,056,087)
Exchange effect on cash and cash equivalents (23,863,277) 4,035,205 (12,601,181) 2,079,794
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (58)(a) 3,085,730,069 2,904,105,027 1,425,913,751 957,122,114
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of period 14,557,393,355  11,653,288,328 6,043,843,854 5,086,721,740
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (58)(b) 17,643,123,424  14,557,393,355 7,469,757,605 6,043,843,854

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative:

Principal in charge of accounting:

HUANG Kexing YU Zhuming

Head of accounting department:
HOU Qiuyan



—F ~FF FH ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders” Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

Less: Other Non- Total
Treasury  comprehensive Surplus General  Undistributed controlling ~ shareholders’
ITEM Note4  Share capital  Capital surplus stock income Teserve Teserve profifs inferests equity
Balance at 1 January 2019 1350982795 3444186312 (4,696,804) 1,400,704,380 199312331 11,619,782,072 719480301 18,689.951,387
Movements for the year ended
31 December 2019
Total comprehiensive income
Net profit - 1,852,103,376 0017 1929116393
Other comprehensive income (30) (2,630,829) (2,650829)
Total comprehensive income for
the year (2,650829) 1,852,103,376 TO017 1,926465,564
Profit distribution (39)
Appropriation to general reserve 35,203,349 (35,203,349) - -
Profit distribution to shareholders - (648.471,742) (54,705,496) (703,177.238)
Others (39 131,143 131,143
Balance at 31 December 2019 1350982795 3444317455 (47347,633) 140,704,380 BATISE0 12788210357 L8182 19913370856
Balance at 1 January 2020 1.350982,795 3444317455 (47.347,033)  1,400,704,380 BATISR0 12788210357 41787822 19913370856
Movements for the year ended
31 December 2020
Total comprehensive income
Net profit - 2,01,323,556 1564549 2,326,968.805
Other comprehensive fncome (36) 27496094 21,496,204
Total comprehensive income for
the year 27,496,294 2,201,323,556 125,645.49  2,354465,0%9
Sharcholder investment and capital
reduction
Equity incentive capital (39 13,200,000 266,376,000 (279,576,000) - -
Share-based payment (34 142,725 847 354337 143,080,184
Subsidiary minority sharcholders
invested capital 1,167,966 832,034 2,000,000
Profit distribution (39)
Appropriation to general reserve 25,628 874 (25,628,874) -
Profit distribution to sharcholders - (743,040,537) (60,103,024) (803,143,561)
Others (3 (179,205,645) (62424767)  (41,720412)
Balance at ended 31 December 2020 1364182795 3675291623 (279,576,000) (19851,339) 140,704,380 260344554 14220864302 TA6091,651  21,368,032,166

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative:
HUANG Kexing

Principal in charge of accounting:
YU Zhuming

HOU Qiuyan

Head of accounting department:
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H OO %A R A A TSINGTAO BREWERY CO., LTD.

Company Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2020
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

Less: Other Total
Share Capital Treasury comprehensive Surplus  Undistributed shareholders’
ITEM Note 15 capital surplus stock income reserve profits equity
Balance at 1 January 2019 1,350,982,795  4,306,625,628 (48,482,000) 1,400,704,380  7,320,371,233  14,330,202,036
Movements for the year
ended 31 December 2019
Total comprehensive
income
Net profit - - 817,388,912 817,388,912
Other comprehensive
income (10) - 1,037,000 1,037,000
Total comprehensive
income for the year - 1,037,000 817,388,912 818,425,912
Profit distribution
Profit distribution to
shareholders (11) - - (648,471,742)  (648,471,742)
Others ) 8,183 - 8,183
Balance at 31 December 2019 1,350,982,795  4,306,633,811 (47,445,000) 1,400,704,380  7,489,288,403  14,500,164,389
Balance at 1 January 2020 1,350,982,795  4,306,633,811 (47,445,000) 1,400,704,380  7,489,288,403  14,500,164,389
Movements for the year
ended 31 December 2020
Total comprehensive
income
Net profit - - 948,382,166 948,382,166
Other comprehensive
income (10) - 17,007,000 17,007,000
Total comprehensive
income for the year - 17,007,000 948,382,166 965,389,166
Shareholder investment
and capital reduction
Equity incentive capital ~ 4(34) 13,200,000 266,376,000  (279,576,000) - -
Share-based payment 137,278,847 - 137,278,847
Profit distribution
Profit distribution to
shareholders (11) - - (743,040,537)  (743,040,537)
Others ) 10,289 - 10,289
Balance at 31 December 2020 1,364,182,795  4,710,298,947  (279,576,000)  (30,438,000) 1,400,704,380 7,694,630,032 14,859,802,154

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative:
HUANG Kexing

Principal in charge of accounting:

YU Zhuming

HOU Qiuyan

Head of accounting department:
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Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

1 General information

Tsingtao Brewery Company Limited (the “Company”) was established in the People’s Republic of China on 16 June 1993. The
Company obtained business license as a Sino-foreign joint stock limited company on 27 December 1995. The registered address
and head office address of the Company is Qingdao, Shandong province, the PRC, with a total share capital of RMB482,400,000 at
establishment.

The Company’s H shares have been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 15 July 1993, and
its A shares have been listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange since 27 August 1993. The total share capital upon issue amounted
to RMB900,000,000. Subsequently, the Company increased its total share capital to RMB1,308,219,178 after issuing new RMB
ordinary shares and corporate convertible bonds which were converted into H shares.

Approved by the Circular [2008] No.445 issued by the China Securities Regulatory Commission, the Company issued convertible
bonds with detachable warrants subscription rights on 2 April 2008 at a total size of RMBI1.5 billion with the term of 6 years.
Upon the exercise period ended on 19 October 2009, 42,763,617 A shares of the Company were issued and the total number of the
Company’s shares was increased from 1,308,219,178 to 1,350,982,795.

In 2020, the company implemented equity incentives with 13.2 million restricted shares, and the total number of shares of the
company increased from 1,350,982,795 shares to 1,364,182,795 shares.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are principally engaged in the production and distribution of beer
products.

Subsidiaries which are included in the scope of consolidation are disclosed in Note 5 and Note 6.

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 26 March 2021.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates

The Group applied the accounting policies and accounting estimates based on its business operations characteristics, including
provision of expected credit loss (“ECL”) of receivables (Note 2(9)), cost formulas (Note 2(10)), depreciation of fixed assets ,
amortization of intangible assets and Right-of-use asset (Note 2(13),(16)and(25)), revenue recognition (Note 2(21)),etc.

The areas including significant judgments to determine the critical accounting policies of the Group are disclosed in Note 2(28).

(1) Basis of preparation
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises - Basic Standard,
and the specific accounting standards and other relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance on 15 February 2006
and in subsequent periods (hereafter collectively referred to as “the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises” or “CAS”)
and the disclosure requirements in the Preparation Convention of Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities to
the Public No.15 — General Rules on Financial Reporting issued by the China Securities Regulatory Commission.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

The new Hong Kong “Companies Ordinance” came into effect in 3 March 2014. According to the requirement of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, there are changes to presentation and disclosures of certain information in the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

2

(2

3

C))

€))

Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)

Statement of compliance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 are in compliance with CAS, and truly

and completely present the Consolidated and the Company’s financial position as at 31 December 2020 and their financial

performance, cash flows and other information for the year then ended.

Accounting year

The Company’s accounting year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.

Recording currency

The Company’s recording currency is Renminbi (RMB). The recording currency of the Company’s subsidiaries is determined

based on the primary economic environment in which they operate. The recording currency of subsidiaries in Hong Kong,

Macau and Vietnam is Hong Kong Dollar (HKD), Macau Pataca (MOP) and Vietnamese Dong respectively. The financial

statements are presented in RMB.

Business combinations

(@)

(b)

Business combinations involving enterprises under common control

The consideration paid and net assets obtained by the absorbing party in a business combination are measured at the
carrying amount. If the merged party was acquired by the final control party from a third party in the previous year,
then the consideration was measured based on carrying amount of assets and liabilities of the merged party (including
the goodwill arising from acquisition by the final control party) in the final control party's consolidated financial
statements. The difference between the carrying amount of the net assets obtained from the combination and the
carrying amount of the consideration paid for the combination is treated as an adjustment to capital surplus (share
premium). If the capital surplus (share premium) is not sufficient to absorb the difference, the remaining balance
is adjusted against retained earnings. Costs directly attributable to the combination are included in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred. Transaction costs associated with the issue of equity or debt securities for the
business combination are included in the initially recognized amounts of the equity or debt securities.

Business combinations involving enterprises not under common control

The cost of combination and identifiable net assets obtained by the acquirer in a business combination are measured at
fair value at the acquisition date. Where the cost of combination exceeds the acquirer’s interests in the fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the difference is recognized as goodwill; where the cost of combination is lower than
the acquirer’s interests in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the difference is recognised in profit
or loss for the current period. Costs directly attributable to the combination are included in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred. Transaction costs associated with the issue of equity or debt securities for the business
combination are included in the initially recognized amounts of the equity or debt securities.
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Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

2

6))

(6

)

Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
Business combinations (continued)
(c)  Purchase of minority equity in subsidiaries

After the acquisition of the control right over the subsidiary, the Group obtained all or part of the minority equity
of the subsidiary owned by the minority shareholder of the subsidiary. In the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are reflected by the amount continuously calculated from the date of purchase
or combination. The capital surplus shall be adjusted according to the difference between the newly increased long-
term equity investment and the net asset share of the subsidiary calculated continuously from the date of acquisition or
merger with the newly increased shareholding ratio. If the capital surplus (share premium) is not sufficient to offset the
difference, the retained earnings shall be adjusted.

Preparation of consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control and are de-consolidated from the date that
such control ceases. For a subsidiary that is acquired in a business combination involving enterprises under common control,
it is included in the consolidated financial statements from the date when it, together with the Company, comes under
common control of the ultimate controlling party. The portion of the net profits realized before the combination date is
presented separately in the consolidated income statement.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, where the accounting policies and the accounting periods of the Company
and subsidiaries are inconsistent, the financial statements of the subsidiaries are adjusted in accordance with the accounting
policies and accounting period of the Company. For subsidiaries acquired from a business combination involving enterprises
not under common control, the individual financial statements of the subsidiaries are adjusted based on the fair value of the
identifiable net assets at the acquisition date.

All significant intra-group balances, transactions and unrealized profits are eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.
The items which can’t be attributable to the shareholders of the Company in subsidiary’s equity, net profit or loss, and total
comprehensive income of the period, are separately presented in the equity item, in net profit item and total comprehensive
income item of the consolidated financial statement respectively. Elimination of intra-group unrealized profit on sale of assets
by the Company to its subsidiaries should be in full of the net profit attributable to the shareholders, and elimination of intra-
group unrealized profit on sale of assets by subsidiaries to the Company should be allocated between the net profit attributable
to the shareholders and non-controlling interests in the ratio of their interests. Elimination of intra-group unrealized profit on
sale of assets amongst the subsidiaries should be allocated between the net profit attributable to the shareholders and non-
controlling interests, according to the Company’s share interest in the subsidiary of selling party.

If the identification of the same transaction is different between the Group and the Company or the subsidiaries as accounting
entity, the adjustment should be made in the Group’s view.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits that can be readily drawn on demand, and short-term highly liquid

investments which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in

value.
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(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

2

®

®

Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)

Foreign currency translation

(@)

(b)

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions.

At the balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into functional currency
using the spot exchange rates on the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising from these translations are
recognised in profit or loss for the current period, except for those attributable to foreign currency borrowings that have
been taken out specifically for the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets, which are capitalized as part of the
cost of those assets. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at historical costs are
translated at the balance sheet date using the spot exchange rates at the date of the transactions. The effect of exchange
rate changes on cash is presented separately in the cash flow statement.

Translation of foreign currency financial statements

The asset and liability items in the balance sheets for overseas operations are translated at the spot exchange rates on
the balance sheet date. Among the shareholders’ equity items, the items other than “undistributed profits” are translated
at the spot exchange rates on the transaction dates. The income and expense items in the income statements of overseas
operations are translated at the spot exchange rates of the transaction dates. The differences arising from the above
translation are presented separately in the shareholders’ equity. The cash flows of overseas operations are translated
at the spot exchange rates on the dates of the cash flows. The effect of exchange rate changes on cash is presented
separately in the cash flow statement.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity meanwhile form a financial liability or

equity instrument of another entity. When the Group becomes a party of the contract, relative financial assets or liabilities are

recognised.

(@)

Financial assets
(i)  Classification and measurement

Based on the business mode for management of the Group and cash flow characteristics of contracts, the financial
assets are classified into the following categories: (1) financial assets measured at amortized cost; (2) financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income; (3) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are fairly valued at initial recognition. For financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
related transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss for the current period; for other financial assets, related
transaction costs are recognised in the amount of initial recognition. Accounts receivable or notes receivable
arising from sales of products or rendering of services (excluding or without regard to significant financing
components) are initially recognised at the consideration that is entitled to be charged by the Group as expected.

Debt instruments

Debt instruments held by the Group are instruments that meet the definition of financial liabilities from the
perspective of the issuer, and are measured by the following three ways:
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Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(@)

Financial assets (continued)

0)

Classification and measurement (continued)
Measured at amortized cost:

The Group’s business mode of managing this type of financial assets is to collect contractual cash flows. The
contractual cash flow characteristics of such financial assets are consistent with basic loan arrangement, which
means the cash flow generated at certain date is only the payment for the principal and the corresponding interest
based on unpaid principal. The interest income from such financial assets is recognised by effective interest
method. These financial assets include cash at bank and on hand, notes receivable, accounts receivable, other
receivables and debt investments. Debt investments due within 1 year (inclusive) at the balance sheet date are
listed as the current portion of non-current assets; at acquiring date, debt investments with maturities within one
year (inclusive) are listed as other current assets.

Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)

The Group’s business mode of managing this type of financial assets is to collect contractual cash flows as
well as capture profit by selling. The character of contractual cash flows is consist with the normal borrowing
arrangement. These financial assets are measured at fair value and movements in the carrying amount are taken
through other comprehensive income but the impairment loss or gain, exchange gain or loss and interest income
using the effective interest rate method are recognised into current profit or loss. These financial assets are listed
as other debt investment. The Group lists other debt investment due within one year (including one year) from
the balance sheet date as non-current assets due within one year; as at acquiring date, other debt investments, that
the due dates are within one year (including one year), are listed as other current assets.

Measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”):

The Group lists those debt instruments that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI as financial
assets held for trading that are measured at FVTPL. At the initial recognition, for eliminating or dramatically
reducing accounting mismatch, the Group specifies parts of financial assets as those measured at fair value
through current profit or loss. The Group lists those expired for more than one year from the balance sheet date
and expected to be held for more than one year as other non-current financial assets.

Equity instruments

The Group recognises its equity instruments that have no control, joint control and significant influence on the
fair value through profit or loss and list them as financial assets held for trading ; the equity instruments that
are expected to be held for more than a year from the balance sheet date are listed as other non-current financial
assets.

Besides, the Group specifies certain non-tradable equity instrument investments as financial assets that are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and presented as other equity instrument investments.
The relevant dividend income of such financial assets is included in the current profit and loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(@)

Financial assets (continued)

(if)  Impairment

In terms of financial assets measured at amortised cost, investments in debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the Group recognises their loss provision on the basis of ECL.

Considering the reasonable and supportable information that is related to past events, current situation and forecasting
on future economic conditions, the Group, based on the default risk weight, calculates the probability-weighted amount
of the present value of the difference between contractual cash flows receivable and cash flows expected to be received,
so as to recognise the ECL.

At each balance sheet date, the Group separately calculates the ECL of financial instruments at different stage.
Financial instruments whose credit risk did not increase significantly after the initial recognition belong to stage 1 and
the Group calculates their loss provision based on the ECL in the next 12 months. Financial instruments whose credit
risk increased significantly after the initial recognition without credit impairment yet belong to stage 2 and the Group
calculates their loss provision based on the lifetime ECL. Financial instruments suffering from credit impairment since
initial recognition belong to stage 3 and the Group calculates their loss provision based on the lifetime ECL.

For the financial instruments with low credit risk at the balance sheet date, the Group assumes their credit risk did not
increase significantly after the initial recognition and calculates their loss provision based on the ECL in the next 12
months.

For the financial instruments at stage 1 and stage 2, and those with low credit risk, the Group calculates their interest
income based on their book value before deducting provision for impairment and their effective interest rate. For the
financial instruments at stage 3, the Group calculates their interest income based on their amortised cost, which is book
value less the provision for impairment, and their effective interest rate.

For notes receivable, accounts receivable formed from daily operations such as sales of goods and rendering of services,
whether significant financing components exists or not, the Group calculates their loss provision based on the lifetime
ECL.

When a single financial asset is unable to assess ECL at a reasonable cost, the Group classified receivables into certain
groupings based on their credit risk characteristics and calculated ECL based on the grouping basis. Basis for grouping
is as follows:

Bank acceptance notes combination Banks with low credit risk
Accounts receivable combination Dealers

Accounts receivable combination Subsidiaries

Other receivables combination Guarantee deposits

Other receivables combination Receivables from subsidiaries

Other receivables combination Receivables from other entities
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Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(@)

(b)

Financial assets (continued)

(if)  Impairment (continued)

For accounts receivable on the grouping basis and notes receivable formed from daily operations such as sales of
goods and rendering of services, the Group calculates the ECL by referring to historical credit loss experience,
considering current situation and future economic conditions, and based on the exposure at default (“EAD”) and
lifetime ECL ratio. For other receivables on the grouping basis, the Group calculates the ECL by referring to
historical credit loss experience, considering current situation and future economic conditions, and based on the
EAD and the ECL ratio within 12 months or for the lifetime.

The Group recognizes provision for or reversal of losses in profit or loss for the current period. For debt
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income, the Group recognises impairment losses or gains
into profit or loss for the current period and adjusts other comprehensive income in the meanwhile.

(iii)  De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized when any of the below criteria is met: (1) the contractual rights to receive the
cash flows from the financial asset terminate; (2) the financial asset has been transferred and the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset to the transferee; or (3) the financial
asset has been transferred and the Group has not retained control of the financial asset, although the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset.

When the investment of other equity instruments is de-recognized, the difference between carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and the change of fair value accumulated in the original direct accounting
of other comprehensive income shall be recorded into the retained earnings; when the recognition of other
financial assets is de-recognized, the difference between carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the change of fair value accumulated in the original direct accounting of other comprehensive
income shall be recorded into the current profit and loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into financial liabilities at amortised cost and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss at initial recognition.

Financial liabilities of the Group are mainly financial liabilities at amortised cost, including notes payable and accounts
payable, other payables, borrowings and etc. These financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Those with
maturities no more than one year are classified as current liabilities; those with maturities over one year but due within
one year at the balance sheet date are classified as the current portion of non-current liabilities; others are classified as
non-current liabilities.

A financial liability is derecognized or partly derecognized when the current obligation is discharged or partly
discharged. The difference between the carrying amount of the derecognized part of the financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognized in profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(©)

Determination of fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument that is traded in an active market is determined at the quoted price in the active
market. The fair value of a financial instrument that is not traded in an active market is determined by using a valuation
technique when it is applicable under current conditions and there are enough available data and other information to
support. Those inputs should be consistent with the inputs a market participant would use when pricing the asset or
liability, and should maximize the use of relevant observable inputs. When related observable inputs can’t be acquired
or are not feasible to be acquired, then use unobservable inputs.

(10) Inventories

11

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Classification

Inventories comprise raw materials, packing materials, work in progress and finished goods, and are measured at the
lower of cost and net realizable value.

Cost formulas

Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprise raw
materials, direct labour and systematically allocated production overhead based on the normal production capacity.

Basis for determining net realizable values of inventories and method for making provision for decline in the value
of inventories

Provision for decline in the value of inventories is determined at the excess amount of the carrying amounts of the
inventories over their net realizable value. Net realizable value is determined based on the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs to completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale and
related taxes.

The Group adopts the perpetual inventory system.

Amortization methods of low value consumables and packaging materials

Low value consumables and packaging materials are written off once used and amortised based upon fractional method
respectively.

Long-term equity investments

Long-term equity investment is comprised of the Company’s long-term equity investments in its subsidiaries, and the Group’s

long-term equity investments in its joint ventures and associates.

Subsidiaries are the investees over which the Company is able to exercise control. A joint venture is a joint arrangement

which is structured through a separate vehicle over which the Group has jointly control together with other parties and has

rights to the net assets of the arrangement based on legal forms, contractual terms and other facts and circumstances. An

associates is the investee over which the Group has significant influence by participating in the financial and operating policy

decisions.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)

Long-term equity investments (continued)

Investments in subsidiaries are presented in the Company’s financial statements using the cost method, and are adjusted to

the equity method when preparing the consolidated financial statements. Investments in joint ventures and associates are

accounted for using the equity method.

(@)

(b)

Determination of investment cost

For long-term equity investments acquired through a business combination: for long-term equity investments acquired
through a business combination involving enterprises under common control, the investment cost shall be the absorbing
party’s share of the carrying amount of shareholder’s equity of the party being absorbed at the combination date; for
long-term equity investment acquired through a business combination involving enterprises not under common control,
the investment cost shall be the combination cost.

For long-term equity investments acquired not through a business combination: for long-term equity investment
acquired by payment in cash, the initial investment cost shall be the purchase price actually paid; for long-term equity
investments acquired by issuing equity securities, the initial investment cost shall be the fair value of the equity
securities issued.

Subsequent measurement and recognition of related profit and loss

Long-term equity investments accounted for using the cost method are measured at the initial investment costs, and
cash dividends or profit distribution declared by the investees are recognised as investment income in profit or loss.

For long-term equity investments accounted for using the equity method, where the initial investment cost of a long-
term equity investment exceeds the Group’s share of the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the
acquisition date, the long-term equity investment is measured at the initial investment cost; where the initial investment
cost is less than the Group’s share of the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the acquisition date, the
difference is included in profit or loss and the cost of the long-term equity investment is adjusted upwards accordingly.

For long-term equity investments accounted for using the equity method, the Group recognises the investment income
according to its share of net profit or loss of the investee. The Group discontinues recognising its share of net losses
of an investee after the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment together with any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the investor’s net investment in the investee are reduced to zero. However, if the Group
has obligations for additional losses and the criteria with respect to recognition of provisions under the accounting
standards in the contingencies are satisfied, the Group continues recognising the expected losses and the provisions. For
changes in shareholders’ equity of the investee other than those arising from its net profit or loss, the Group records
its proportionate share directly into capital surplus other comprehensive income, and profit distribution. The carrying
amount of the investment is reduced by the Group’s share of the profit distribution or cash dividends declared by an
investee. The unrealised profit or loss arising from the intra-group transactions amongst the Group and its investees
is eliminated in proportion to the Group’s equity interests in the investees, and then based on which the investment
income is recognised. For the loss on the intra-group transaction amongst the Group and its investees attributable to
asset impairment, any unrealised loss is not eliminated.
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12)

Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
Long-term equity investments (continued)
(c) Basis for determining existence of control, jointly control or significant influence over investees

Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the investee so as to obtain benefits from its
operating activities and can influence the amount.

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control over an economic activity, and exists only when the strategic
financial and operating decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

(d)  Impairment of long-term equity investments

The carrying amounts of long-term equity investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are reduced to the
recoverable amounts when the recoverable amounts are below their carrying amounts (Note 2(18)).

Investment properties

Investment properties are buildings that are held for the purpose of leasing, are measured at the initial cost. Subsequent
expenditures incurred in relation to an investment property are included in the cost of the investment property when it is
probable that the associated economic benefits will flow to the Group and their costs can be reliably measured; otherwise, the
expenditures are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are occurred.

The Group adopts cost model for subsequent measurement of investment properties. Land use rights are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their approved useful period of 50 years. Buildings are depreciated to their estimated net residual
values over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives, the estimated net residual values that are expressed as a
percentage of cost and the annual depreciation rates of investment properties are as follows:

Annual

Estimated Estimated depreciation

useful lives residual value rate

Buildings 20 - 40 years 3% to 5% 2.4% to 4.9%
Land use rights 50 years - 2.0%

When an investment property is transferred to owner-occupied properties, it is reclassified as fixed asset or intangible asset
at the date of transfer. When an owner-occupied property is transferred out for earning rentals or for capital appreciation, the
fixed asset or intangible asset is reclassified as investment properties at its carrying amount at the date of transfer.

The investment property’s estimated useful life, net residual value and depreciation method applied are reviewed and adjusted
as appropriate at each year end.
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13)

Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised when it is disposed or when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no future

economic benefits are expected from its disposal. The net amount of proceeds from sale, transfer, retirement or damage of

an investment property after its carrying amount and related taxes and expenses is recognised in profit or loss for the current

period.

The carrying amount of investment properties shall be reduced to the recoverable amount if the recoverable amount is below

the carrying amount (Note 2(18)).

Fixed assets

(@)

(b)

Recognition and initial measurement of fixed assets
Fixed assets comprise buildings, machinery and equipment, motor vehicles and other equipment.

Fixed assets are recognised when it is probable that the related economic benefits will flow to the Group and the costs
can be reliably measured. Fixed assets purchased or constructed by the Group are initially measured at cost at the
acquisition date. The fixed assets contributed by the State shareholders at the reorganization of the Company into a
corporation entity are recognised based on the revaluated amounts approved by the state-owned assets administration
department.

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed asset are included in the cost of the fixed asset when it is probable that the
associated economic benefits will flow to the Group and the related cost can be reliably measured. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All the other subsequent expenditures are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the assets to their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives. For the fixed assets that have been provided for impairment loss, the related
depreciation charge is prospectively determined based upon the adjusted carrying amounts over their remaining useful

lives.

The estimated useful lives, the estimated residual values expressed as a percentage of cost and the annual depreciation
rates of fixed assets are as follows:

Annual

Estimated Estimated depreciation

useful lives residual value rate

Buildings 20 - 40 years 3% to 5% 2.4% to 4.9%
Machinery and equipment 5 - 14 years 3% to 5% 6.8% to 19.4%
Motor vehicles 5 - 12 years 3% to 5% 7.9% to 19.4%
Other equipment 5 - 10 years 3% to 5% 9.5% to 19.4%

The estimated useful lives, the estimated residual value of a fixed asset and the depreciation method applied to the asset
are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate at each year-end.
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13)

(14)

1s)

Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
Fixed assets (continued)

()  The carrying amount of fixed assets shall be reduced to the recoverable amount if the recoverable amount is below the
carrying amount (Note 2(18)).

(d) Disposal of fixed assets

A fixed asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
The amount of proceeds from disposals on sale, transfer, retirement or damage of a fixed asset net of its carrying
amount and related taxes and expenses are recognised in profit or loss for the current period.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress is measured at actual cost. Actual cost comprises construction costs, installation costs, borrowing
costs that are eligible for capitalisation and other costs necessary to bring the fixed assets ready for their intended use.
Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets when the assets are ready for their intended use, and depreciation begins
from the following month. The carrying amount of construction in progress is reduced to the recoverable amount when the
recoverable amount is below the carrying amount (Note 2(18)).

Borrowing costs

The borrowing costs incurred in the Group that are directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of an asset that
needs a substantially long period of time for its intended use commence to be capitalised and recorded as part of the cost of
the asset when expenditures for the asset and borrowing costs have been incurred, and the activities relating to the acquisition
and construction that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use have commenced. The capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when the asset under acquisition or construction becomes ready for its intended use and the borrowing costs
incurred thereafter are recognised in profit or loss for the current period. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
during periods in which the acquisition or construction of a fixed asset is interrupted abnormally and the interruption lasts for
more than 3 months, until the acquisition or construction is resumed.

For the specific borrowings obtained for the acquisition or construction of an asset qualifying for capitalisation, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by deducting any interests income earned from depositing the unused
specific borrowings in the banks or any investment income arising on the temporary investment of those borrowings during
the capitalisation period.

For the general borrowings obtained for the acquisition or construction of an asset qualifying for capitalisation, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying the weighted average effective interest rate of general
borrowings, to the weighted average of the excess amount of cumulative expenditures on the asset over the amount of specific
borrowings. The effective interest rate is the rate at which the estimated future cash flows during the period of expected
duration of the borrowings or applicable shorter period are discounted to the initial amount of the borrowings.
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(16)

Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise land use rights, trademarks, marketing networks, computer software, technology known-how and

others. All intangible assets are measured at cost. The intangible assets contributed by the State-owned shareholders at the

time of reform of corporate system into a corporation are recognised based on the revaluated amounts approved by the state-

owned assets administration department.

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(®)

®

Land use rights

Land use rights are amortised on the straight-line basis over their approved useful period from 30 to 50 years. If the
acquisition costs of the land use rights and the buildings located thereon cannot be reasonably allocated between the
land use rights and the buildings, all of the acquisition costs are recognised as fixed assets.

Trademarks

Trademarks mainly include the “TSINGTAO BEER” trademark which was injected by the founding shareholders into
the Company on 16 June 1993 as their capital contributions. The recorded value of the trademark was assessed based
on the results of the valuation approved by state-owned assets administration department. Based on the forecast of
beer industry and the business position of the Company, the directors are of the view that the “TSINGTAO BEER”

trademark has an indefinite useful life, accordingly, it is not subject to amortisation but annual impairment assessments.

Other trademarks were acquired as a result of acquisitions of certain subsidiaries. They are amortised over their
estimated useful lives ranging from 5 to 10 years.

Marketing networks

Marketing networks are the distribution channel identified in the process of business combination of the Company,
which are amortised over their estimated useful lives with a range of 5 - 10 years using the straight-line method.

Computer software

Computer software are amortised over their estimated useful lives ranging from 5 to 10 years.

Technology known-how

Technology known-how is amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Periodical review of useful life and amortisation method

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, review of its useful life and amortisation method is performed at each
year-end, with adjustment made as appropriate.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)

(16) Intangible assets (continued)

a7

(9)

(h)

Research and development

The expenditure on an internal research and development project is classified into expenditure on the research phase
and expenditure on the development phase based on its nature and whether there is material uncertainty that the
research and development activities can form an intangible asset at end of the project.

Expenditure on the research phase, such as planned investigation, evaluation and selection for improvement of the beer
technology, is recognised in profit or loss in the period when it is incurred. Expenditure on the development phase, such
as the designing and testing for the final application of the beer technology before the large-scale production, should be
capitalised only if all of the following conditions satisfied:

. The development of the beer technology has been sufficiently proved by the technical team;

. The budget relating to the beer technology improvement has been approved by the management;

. It can be demonstrated that the products due to beer technology improvement have potential market from
previous marketing investigation;

. There are adequate technical and financial resources for improvement of the beer technology and the large-scale
production; and

. The expenditure attributable to the improvement of beer technology during its development phase can be liable
measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet the conditions above are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred. Development costs previously recognised as expenses are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period. Capitalised expenditure on the development phase is presented as development costs in the balance
sheet and transferred to intangible assets at the date that the asset is ready for its intended use.

Impairment of intangible assets

The carrying amount of intangible assets is reduced to the recoverable amount when the recoverable amount is below
the carrying amount (Note 2(18)).

Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses comprise the expenditure for improvements to right to use assets, and other expenditures that

have been incurred but should be recognized as expenses over more than one year in the current and subsequent periods.

Long-term prepaid expenses are amortised on the straight-line basis over the expected beneficial period and are presented at

actual expenditure net of accumulated amortisation.
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19)

Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
Impairment of long-term assets

Fixed assets, constructions in progress, right-of-use assets intangible assets with finite useful lives, investing properties
measured at cost method and long-term equity investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are tested for
impairment if there is any indication that the assets may be impaired at the balance sheet date. The intangible assets not
ready for intended use yet, are treated at least annually for impairment, irrespective of whether there are any indications of
impairment. If the result of the impairment test indicates that the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying
amount, a provision for impairment and an impairment loss are recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Provision for asset impairment is determined
and recognized on the individual asset basis. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
recoverable amount of a group of assets to which the asset belongs is determined. A group of assets is the smallest group of
assets that is able to generate independent cash inflows.

Goodwill that is separately presented in the financial statements is tested at least annually for impairment, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that it may be impaired. In conducting the test, the carrying value of goodwill is allocated
to the related group of assets or group of asset combinations which are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
business combination. If the result of the test indicates that the recoverable amount of a group of assets or group of assets
combinations, including the allocated goodwill, is lower than its carrying amount, the corresponding impairment loss is
recognized. The impairment loss is first deducted from the carrying amount of goodwill that is allocated to the group of assets
or group of asset combinations, and then deducted from the carrying amounts of other assets within the group of assets or
groups of asset combinations in proportion to the carrying amounts of assets other than goodwill.

Once the above asset impairment loss is recognized, it will not be reversed for the value recovered in the subsequent periods.
Employee benefits

Employee benefits include short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits, termination benefits and other long-
term employee benefits provided in various forms of remuneration in exchange for service rendered by employees or
compensations for the termination of employment relationship.

(@) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits include employee wages or salaries, bonus, allowances and subsidies, staff welfare,
premiums or contributions on medical insurance, work injury insurance and maternity insurance, housing funds, union
running costs and employee education costs. The employee benefits liabilities are recognized in the accounting period
in which the service is rendered by the employees, with a corresponding charge to the profit or loss for the current
period or the cost of relevant assets. Employee benefits which are non-monetary benefits are measured at fair value.

(b)  Post-employment benefits

The Group classifies post-employment benefit plans as either defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans.
Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into
a separate fund and will have no obligation to pay further contributions; and defined benefit plans are supplemental
post-employment benefit plan that are not defined contribution plan. During the reporting period, the Group post-
employment benefits mainly include defined contribution plans such as basic pension and unemployment insurance, and
which belong to supplemental post-employment benefit plan.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)

(19) Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

Post-employment benefits (continued)

Basic pension insurance

The employees of the Group participated in the basic social pension insurance organised and implemented by the local
labour and social security departments. The Group pays the basic social pension insurance to related local agencies
monthly, following the demanding proportion and base. When the employees retire, the local labour and social security
departments have obligations to pay the entire basic social pension. When an employee has rendered service to the
Group during the accounting period, the Group should recognise liabilities and costs of assets or expenses.

Supplemental post-employment benefit plan.

In addition to the basic social pension plans, the Group also provides supplementary post-employment benefits to
those employees qualified for certain criteria. Such supplementary benefits are classified as defined benefit plans. The
defined benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet is the present value of the defined benefit obligation, net of
the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated by a independently actuary using the Projected
Unit Credit method and applying interests rates of government bonds that have similar currency and terms to maturity
to those of the related pension obligation.. The service cost and net interest income related to supplemental post-
employment benefits are recognized as assets or expenses, and actuarial gains or losses arising from re-measurement of
net defined benefit obligation is recognized as other comprehensive income.

Termination benefits

The Group provides compensation for terminating the employment relationship with employees before the end of the
employment contracts or as an offer to encourage employees to accept voluntary redundancy before the end of the
employment contracts. The Group recognises a liability arising from compensation for termination of the employment
relationship with employees, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss at the earlier of the following dates: 1) when
the Group cannot unilaterally withdraw the offer of termination benefits because of an employment termination plan
or a curtailment proposal; 2) when the Group recognises costs or expenses related to the restructuring that involves the
payment of termination benefits.

Early retirement benefits

The Group offers early retirement benefits to those employees who accept early retirement arrangements. The early
retirement benefits refer to the salaries and social security contributions to be paid to and for the employees who
accept voluntary retirement before the normal retirement date prescribed by the State, as approved by the management.
The Group pays early retirement benefits to those early retired employees from the early retirement date until normal
retirement date. The Group accounts for the early retirement benefits in accordance with the treatment of termination
benefits, in which the salaries and social security contributions to be paid to and for the early retired employees from
the off-duty date to the normal retirement date are recognized as liabilities with a corresponding charge to the profit or
loss for the current period. The differences arising from the changes in the respective actuarial assumptions of the early
retirement benefits and the adjustments of benefit standards are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they
occur.

The termination benefits expected to be paid within one year since the balance sheet date are classified as current
liabilities.
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1)

(22)

Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
Dividends distribution

Cash dividend is recognized as a liability for the period in which the dividend is approved by the shareholders’ meeting.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized by the Group based on the amount of consideration that is expected to be charged when clients obtain
the control of relative goods and services.

Sale of goods

The Group manufactures and sells beer products to the regional dealers. Based on contracts, the Group delivers beer products
to dealers. After the acceptance of the goods and signing of the goods delivery lists by the dealers, the Group recognizes the
net amount after deducting consideration payable to the customer as revenue.

After signing contracts with dealers and receiving orders, the Group recognizes the amount of contract consideration received
from the dealers as contract liabilities before delivering products to dealers.

Government Grants

Government grants are transfers of monetary or non-monetary assets from the government to the Group at nil consideration,
including relocation compensation, refund of taxes and financial subsidies, etc.

A government grant is recognized when the conditions attached to it can be satisfied and the government grant can be
received. For a government grant in the form of transfer of monetary assets, the grant is measured at the amount received or
to be received. For a government grant in the form of transfer of non-monetary assets, it is measured at fair value; if the fair
value is not reliably determinable, the grant is measured at nominal amount.

Government grants related to assets are those obtained for forming long-term assets by purchase, construction or acquisition
in other ways. Grants related to income are government grants other than those related to assets.

The Group recognises government grants related to assets as deferred income and apportions to profit or loss in a systemic
manner over the useful lives of the relevant assets.

For government grants related to income, where the grant is a compensation for related expenses or losses to be incurred in
the subsequent periods, the grant is recognized as deferred income, and included in profit or loss over the periods in which
the related costs are recognized; where the grant is a compensation for related expenses or losses already incurred by the
Group, the grant is recognized immediately in profit or loss for the current period.

The Group presents similar types of government grants consistently in the financial statements.

Government grants that are related to daily activities are included in operating profit, otherwise, they are recorded in non-
operating income or expenses.
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(23)

Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
Government Grants (continued)

The relocation compensations received directly from the government in terms of fiscal budget, which are due to the overall
planning of the town, reservoir construction, shanty areas rebuilding, subsidence area management and other public interests,
are recognized as payables for specific projects. The payables for specific projects, which attributes to the compensations
for the losses on disposal of fixed assets and intangible assets, the expensed expenditure, the downtime losses and the
new purchased and constructed assets after the relocation, in the process of the relocation and rebuilding, are transferred
to deferred income and accounted for in accordance with the regulation of government grant. The excess of relocation
compensation over the amount transferred to deferred income is recognized as capital reserve.

For the policy loans with favourable interest rates, the Group records the loans at the actual amounts and calculates the
interests by loan principals and the favourable interest rates. The fiscal interest discounts directly received by the group offset
the relevant borrowing expenses.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are calculated and recognized based on the differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts (temporary differences). Deferred tax asset is recognized for the
deductible losses that can be carried forward to subsequent years for deduction of the taxable profit in accordance with the
tax laws. No deferred tax liability is recognized for a temporary difference arising from the initial recognition of goodwill. No
deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability is recognized for the temporary differences resulting from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities due to a transaction other than a business combination, which affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit (or deductible loss). At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are only recognized for deductible temporary differences, deductible losses and tax credits to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available in the future against which the deductible temporary differences,
deductible losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the timing of reversal of the temporary difference, and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. When it is probable that the temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures will be reversed in the foreseeable future and that the taxable
profit will be available in the future against which the temporary differences can be utilized, the corresponding deferred tax
assets are recognized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when:

The deferred taxes are related to the same tax payer within the Group and the same taxation authority; and tax payer within
the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
Share-based payment

The restricted share incentive plan of the Group refers to share-based payment which settled with the equity instruments of
the Company granted by the Group as consideration to relevant incentive participants.

For equity-settled share-based payment transactions, the Group shall measure the services received, and the corresponding
increase in equity directly, at the fair value of the services received. If the right can be vested immediately after the grant,
it shall be measured at fair value through current profit or loss on grant date, and the capital surplus shall be increased
accordingly; The equity instruments granted do not vest until the counterparty achieve a specified performance condition
during the vesting period. On each balance sheet date of the vesting period, the Group makes the best estimate based on the
latest information of the number of employees available for exercise, or whether the Group meets the required performance
conditions. On this basis, according to the fair value of equity instrument on grant date, the Group shall recognize the services
to be rendered by the counterparty in current profit or loss based on the most likely outcome of exercisable equity instrument
during the vesting period, with a corresponding confirmation of capital surplus.

The Goup will not recognize the cost or expense for share-based payments that fail to meet the viable conditions ultimately,
unless the vesting conditions are market conditions or non-viable conditions. No matter whether the market conditions or non-
viable conditions are met, as long as meeting all of the non-market conditions, it will be regarded as the vested right.

If the fair value of the equity instruments granted increase after the Goup modifies the terms of the share-based payment
plan, the Goup shall recognize the increase of services obtained according to the difference between the fair value of the
equity instruments before and after the modification. If the Goup cancels the granted equity instrument, it will be treated as
accelerated exercise on the cancellation date, and the amount that should have been recognized during the remaining vesting
period will be immediately included in the current profit and loss, and the capital surplus will be recognized accordingly.

If the Group needs to repurchase the restricted shares that failed to be unlocked and invalid at the pre agreed repurchase price,
the Group shall recognize the liabilities and treasury stocks according to the number of restricted shares and the corresponding
repurchase price.

Lease

Leases is a contract in which the lessor transfers the use rights of assets to the lessee to obtain consideration for a certain
period.

The Group as the lessee

The Group recognises the right-of-use assets at the starting date of the lease term, and recognises the lease liabilities at the
present value of the outstanding lease payment. Lease payment include fixed payments and payments to be made if it is
reasonably certain that the option to purchase or terminate will be exercised. The variable rent determined according to a
certain proportion of sale shall be recognized in profit or loss instead of being included in the lease payment when actually
incurred. The Group lists the lease liabilities paid within one year (including one year) from the balance sheet date as current

portion of non-current liabilities.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
Lease (continued)
The Group as the lessee (continued)

The Group’s right-of-use assets include leased buildings, land use rights, machinery and equipment etc. The right-of-use
asset is initially measured according to the cost, which includes the initial measurement amount of the lease liability, the
lease payment paid on or before the starting date of the lease term, the initial direct expense and etc., and deducts the lease
incentive received. When the Group can reasonably determine the ownership of the leased asset upon expiration of the lease
term, depreciation is recognized within the remaining useful life of the leased asset. If it is impossible to reasonably determine
whether the ownership of the leased asset can be acquired at the end of the lease term, the depreciation is calculated within
the shorter period between the lease term and the remaining useful life of the leased asset. When the recoverable amount is
lower than the book value of the right-of-use assets, the Group writes down the book value to the recoverable amount.

For short-term leases, whose lease period is no more than 12 months, and low-value asset leases, which the value of brand-
new individual asset is low, the Group chooses not to recognize the right-of-use assets or lease liabilities. The relevant rent
expenses are recognized into the current profit or loss or the cost of relevant assets by straight-line method during each period
of the lease term.

The Group shall treat the lease as a separate item, when the lease is changed and meets the following conditions: (1) The
scope of leasing is expanded by adding the right to use one or more leased assets; (2) the increased consideration is equivalent
to the amount of the separate price of the extended lease scope according to the contract.

The Group re-determines the lease term on the effective date of the lease change, uses the revised discount rate to discount
the lease payment after the change, and remeasures the lease liabilities when the change is not accounted for as a separate
lease. Unless the contract changes directly caused by the COVID-19, the simplified method shall be adopted. If the change
causes the scope of the lease to be narrowed or the term of the lease to be shortened, the Group will correspondingly reduce
the book value of the right-of-use asset, and the relevant gains or losses from the partial or complete termination of the lease
shall be included in the current profit and loss. If other changes cause the lease liabilities be remeasured, the Group adjusts
the book value of the right-of-use asset accordingly.

For the rent reduction before 30 June 2021 that related to COVID-19 situation, the Group adopts the simplified method. The
undiscounted amount of deduction shall be included in the current profit and loss when an agreement is reached to relieve the
original payment obligation, and the lease liability shall be adjusted accordingly (Note 4(13))

The Group as the lessor

A financial lease is a lease that substantially transfers almost all the risks and rewards related to the ownership of an asset. An
operating lease is a lease other than a financial lease.

When the Group operatingly lease out self-owned buildings machinery equipments and land use rights, the rental income
from the operating lease shall be recognized in accordance with the straight-line basis over the lease period. The Group will
include variable rents determined based on a certain percentage of sales into rental income when they actually occur.

When a lease is changed, the Group regards it as a new lease from the effective date of the change, and treats the amount of
advance or receivable lease payments related to the lease before the change as the amount of the new lease.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
Held for sale and discontinued operations

A non-current asset or a disposal group is classified as held for sale when all of the following conditions are satisfied: (1) the
non-current asset or the disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for sales of such non-current asset or disposal group; (2) the Group has entered a legally enforceable
sales agreement with other party and obtained relevant approval, and the sales transaction is expected to be completed within
one year.

Non-current assets (except for financial assets and deferred tax assets) that meet the recognition criteria for held for sale are
recognized at the amount equal to the lower of the fair value less costs to sell and the carrying amount. Any excess of the
original carrying amount over the fair value less the costs to sell is recognized as asset impairment losses.

Such non-current assets and assets/liabilities included in disposal groups as classified as held for sale are accounted for as
current assets/liabilities, and are presented separately in the balance sheet

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group that either has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale, and
is separately identifiable operationally and for financial reporting purposes, and satisfies one of the following conditions: (1)
represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations; (2) is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations; and (3) is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

The net profit from discontinued operations in the income statement includes operating profit or loss and disposal gains or
losses of discontinued operations.

Segment information

The Group identifies operating segments based on the internal organization structure, management requirements and internal
reporting system, and discloses segment information of reportable segments which is determined on the basis of operating
segments.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that satisfies all of the following conditions: (1) the component is able to
generate revenues and incur expenses from its ordinary activities; (2) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the
Group’s management to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance; and (3)
for which the information on financial position, operating results and cash flows is available to the Group. If two or more
operating segments have similar economic characteristics and satisfy certain conditions, they are aggregated into one single
operating segment.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The Group continually evaluates the critical accounting estimates and key judgments applied based on historical experience

and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable.

(@)

Critical accounting estimates and key assumptions

The critical accounting estimates and key assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next accounting year are outlined below:

0)

(in)

Accounting estimates on impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment. The recoverable amount of group of
assets or groups of asset combinations is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from
them. These calculations require use of estimates (Note 4(15)).

If management revises the sustainable growth rate, gross margin or the pre-tax discount rate that is used in
the calculation of the future cash flows of group of assets and group of asset combinations, and the revised
sustainable growth rate is lower than the one currently used, gross margin is lower than the one currently used
or the revised pre-tax discount rate is higher than the one currently applied, the Group would need to recognize
further impairment against goodwill. If the actual sustainable growth rate and gross margin is higher or pre-tax
discount rate is lower than management’s estimates, the impairment loss of goodwill previously provided for is
not allowed to be reversed by the Group.

Accounting estimates on impairment of fixed assets

According to the accounting policies stated in Note 2(18), the Group tests whether fixed assets have suffered any
impairment on the balance sheet date. The recoverable amounts of the fixed assets have been determined based
present value of the expected future cash flow to sell. These calculations require the use of accounting estimates.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognized impairment losses of 130,553,700 (2019:
121,339,530) for fixed assets based on such evaluation. As at 31 December 2020, the Group recognized the
cumulative provision for fixed assets impairment amounting to 527,812,271 (31 December 2019: 469,369,758)
(Note 4(11)).

If management revises the sales growth rate, gross margin or the pre-tax discount rate that is used in the
calculation of the future cash flows of group of assets and group of assets combinations, and the revised sales
growth rate is lower than the one currently used, the revised gross margin is lower than the one currently used
or the revised pre-tax discount rate is higher than the one currently applied, the Group would need to recognize
further impairment against fixed assets. If the actual sales growth rate and gross margin is higher or pre-tax
discount rate is lower than management’s estimates, the impairment loss of fixed assets previously provided for
is not allowed to be reversed by the Group.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)

(28) Critical accounting estimates and judgments (continued)

(@)

Critical accounting estimates and key assumptions (continued)

(iii)  Accounting estimates on recognition of deferred tax assets

(iv)

V)

The estimates of deferred tax assets require estimates over future taxable profit and corresponding applicable
income tax rates of respective years. The realization of deferred tax assets depends on the realization of sufficient
profitability (taxable profit) of the Group. The change in future income tax rates and timing of reversals of
taxable temporary differences would affect income tax expense (benefits) and balances of deferred tax. Deviation
of aforesaid estimates could result in material adjustment to the carrying amount of deferred income tax.

As at 31 December 2020, deferred tax assets of 1,718,307,625 have been recognized in the Group’s balance sheet.
As stated in Note 4(17), the Group has unrecognized deferred tax assets aggregated to approximately 952,239,000
as at 31 December 2020, which mainly attributable to accumulated tax losses in 5 years and deductible temporary
difference of certain subsidiaries. The Group has unrecognized deferred tax assets for such deductible losses and
deductible temporary differences due to the fact that there is no certainty of their respective realization of these
tax benefits through available future taxable profits of those subsidiaries concerned. In cases where the actual
future assessable profits are more or less than expected, a recognition or reversal of deferred tax assets may arise
accordingly.

Post-employment benefits Actuary

As stated in Note 2(19)(b), the present value of the post-employment obligation estimated on an actuarial basis
using a number of assumptions. The actuarial valuations, in which discount rate was determined by government
bonds of China and the mortality rate was based on published statistics by China Life Annuitant Mortality Table
2010 - 2013, are the best estimation on the post-employment obligation on balance sheet date. Any changes
in these assumptions will have impact on the carrying amount of post-employment obligations, which will be
recognized as other comprehensive income in the future.

Measurement of ECL

The Group calculates the expected credit loss based on the default risk exposure and the expected credit loss
rate, and determines the expected credit loss rate based on the default probability and the default loss rate. When
determining the expected credit loss rate, the Group uses internal historical credit loss experience and other data,
combined with current conditions and forward-looking information to adjust the historical data.

When considering forward-looking information, the Group considers different macroeconomic scenarios. The
Group regularly monitors and reviews important macroeconomic assumptions and parameters related to the
calculation of expected credit losses, including the risk of economic downturn, external market environment,
changes in customer conditions, gross domestic product and consumer price index, etc. In 2020, the Group has
considered the uncertainty caused by the COVID-19 updated relevant assumptions and parameters accordingly.
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1

Taxation

The main categories and rates of taxes applicable to the Group are set out below:

Category

Tax base

Tax rate

Enterprise income tax (a)

Value added tax
(“VAT”) (b)

Consumption tax (C)

City maintenance and
construction tax

Education surcharge

Taxable income

Taxable value added amount (Tax payable is calculated using the
taxable sales amount multiplied by the effective tax rate less deductible
VAT input of current period or calculated using the taxable sales
amount multiplied by the effective tax rate)

Sales Price of Beer Consumption Tax per Unit
More than or equal to RMB3,000 RMB250 per ton

per ton
Less than RMB3,000 per ton RMB220 per ton

Amount of VAT and consumption
tax paid

Amount of VAT and consumption
tax paid

(@) Enterprise income tax

(i)  Hong Kong profits tax, Macau profits supplemental tax and Vietnam corporate income tax

3%-12%,
16.5%, 20%, 25%

13% ,9%
6% and 3%
as charge rate

5% and 7%

5%

Tsingtao Brewery Hong Kong Trading Co., Ltd. (“Hong Kong Company”) and Asia Brewery (Macau) Co.,

Ltd. (“Macau Company”) and Tsingtao Brewery Vietnam Co., Ltd. (“Vietnam Company”), the Company’s
subsidiaries, were established in Hong Kong, Macau and Vietnam, applying Hong Kong profits tax, Macau

profits supplemental tax and Vietnam enterprise income tax respectively.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Macau profits supplemental tax is imposed on the estimated taxable profit for the year at a progressive rate scale

ranging from 3% to 12%. Vietnam enterprise income tax is calculated and paid at a tax rate of 20% based on the

estimated taxable income for the year.

(ii)  Pursuant to the Circular on the Deduction Policies of Relevant Enterprise Income Tax for Equipment and

Apparatus (Cai Shui [2018] No. 54) and related regulations issued by the State Administration of Taxation,
during the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020, the newly purchased equipment under RMBS5

million can be recognized in cost and expense of the current period in the month after the aseets are put into use,

and can be duducted when calculating the taxable income.
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Taxation (continued)

The main categories and rates of taxes applicable to the Group are set out below: (continued)

(b)

(©)

VAT

Before 1 April 2019, the Group calculated VAT at the VAT rate of 16% on the sales revenue of beer and other
products. Revenue from financial service of Tsingtao Brewery Financial LLC. (“Finance Company”) and revenue
from construction business of Tsingtao Brewery Construction Co., Ltd. (“Construction Company”, a subsidiary of the
Company) are subject to VAT at the rates of 6% and 10% respectively. Input VAT from purchasing goods, machinery
and equipment for production or taxable services can be used to deduct output VAT. VAT payable is the balance of
output VAT after deducting the deductible part of input VAT.

According to the Circular on the adjustment of the VAT rate (Cai Shui [2019] No.39) issued by the Ministry of Finance
and the State Administration of Taxation, the tax rates of the Group’s business which originally applied 16% and 10%
were adjusted to 13% and 9% respectively from 1 April 2019. Since 1 November 2018, the tax refund rate of the export
products of the Group has been changed to 16% and changed to 13% since 1 April 2019.

Withholding Tax

According to Circular Guoshuihan [2008] No. 897 “Notice on the issue about withholding Enterprise Income Tax on
the dividends paid by Chinese resident enterprises to overseas non-resident enterprises H-share holders” issued by State
Administration of Taxation on 6 November 2008, a Chinese resident enterprise shall withhold the enterprise income
tax on the basis of 10% of the dividends, when it pays dividends to its H-share holders who are overseas non-resident
enterprises.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Cash at bank and on hand

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Cash on hand 252,872 203,723
Bank deposits 2,894,339,144 1,262,542,417
Interbank deposits (i) 14,886,572,984 13,408,414,018
Deposit in central bank (ii) 649,651,954 591,561,976
Other cash balances (iii) 36,063,654 39,261,274

18,466,880,608 15,301,983,408
Including: cash at bank and on hand overseas (iv) 87,369,362 94,112,833

259



260

H OO %A R A A TSINGTAO BREWERY CO., LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(1) Cash at bank and on hand (continued)

(i)  Interbank deposits represent bank deposits and its interest receivable deposited in domestic banks by Finance Company,
a subsidiary of the Company.

(i)  Deposits in central bank represent statutory deposit and its interest receivable deposited in the People’s Bank of China
by Finance Company, a subsidiary of the Company. As at 31 December 2020, the statutory deposit reserves ratio of
Finance Company is 6% (31 December 2019: 6%).

(iii) As at 31 December 2020, other cash balances of 32,664,482 (31 December 2019: 31,852,379) represent housing
maintenance fund in the bank; 3,180,000 (31 December 2019: 6,630,000) are pledged as collateral for issuance of bank
acceptance (Note 4(21)); the remaining balances are other deposits of 219,172 (31 December 2019: 778,895).

(iv) As at 31 December 2020, cash at bank and on hand overseas represents the cash and bank deposits of Hong Kong

Company, Macau Company and Vietnam Company held in Hong Kong ,Macau and Vietnam respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents presented in cash flow statements:

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Cash at bank and on hand 18,466,880,608 15,301,983,408
Deposit in third-party Payment platform institutions 1,565,622 924,748
Less: Restricted deposit in central bank (649,651,954) (591,561,976)
Restricted other cash balances (36,063,654) (39,261,274)
Interest receivable on deposits (139,607,198) (114,691,551)
17,643,123,424 14,557,393,355

(2) Financial assets held for trading

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Wealth management products (i)
Fund investment (ii)

1,888,862,835

1,396,589,764
127,203,255

1,888,862,835

1,523,793,019

(i)

It represents the wealth management products purchased by Finance Company, a subsidiary of the Company. As at 31
December 2020, the fair value is measured based on the estimation of the future cash flow.

It represents the money market fund purchased by Finance Company, a subsidiary of the Company. As at 31 December
2019, its fair value is determined based on the market value on the last trading day of December 2019 issued by the
relevant fund management company.
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C))

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Notes receivable

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Bank acceptance notes 5,648,580 75,100,000

(@) As at 31 December 2020, the Group has no pledged notes receivable (31 December 2019: nil).

(b)  Asat 31 December 2020, the Group’s notes receivable which have been endorsed but not yet matured are derecognized
amounting to 119,095,996 (31 December 2019: 196,015,000). There are no discounted bank acceptance notes that are
not yet matured (31 December 2019: nil).

(c)  Provision for bad debt

For notes receivable, irrespective of whether there is significant financing component, the Group measures loss
provision according to the ECL of the lifetime.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group considers the bank acceptance notes held have no significant credit risk and will
not cause major losses due to the bank default, thus no provision for bad debts is recognized.

Accounts receivable

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Accounts receivable 302,944,075 337,040,440
Less: Provision for bad debts (183,437,647) (185,971,013)
119,506,428 151,069,427

The majority of the Group’s domestic sales are made by advances from customers. The remains are settled by letters of credit,
bank acceptance notes or providing credit terms from 30 to 100 days.

(@) The ageing of accounts receivable based on their recording dates is analysed below:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Within 1 year 119,520,059 151,053,718
1 to 2 years 12,134 47,764
2 to 3 years 1,610 239,525
3 to 4 years 197,440 7,393
4 to 5 years 6,946 -
Over 5 years 183,205,886 185,692,040

302,944,075 337,040,440

Accounts receivable are mainly recorded based on the dates of transaction. The ageing of accounts receivable
represented on their recording dates is basically the same as the ageing represented on the dates of invoice.
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
(4) Accounts receivable (continued)

(b) As at 31 December 2020, the top five accounts receivable are analysed as follows:

Provision of % of total
Amount bad debts balance

Total amount of the top five accounts
receivable 62,698,963 (26,242,020) 21%

(c) As at 31 December 2020, there are no accounts receivable derecognized due to the transfer of financial assets (31
December 2019: nil).

(d)  Provision for bad debts

For accounts receivable, irrespective of whether there is significant financing component, the Group measures loss
provision according to the ECL of the lifetime.

(i)  As at 31 December 2020, accounts receivable with amounts that are individually subject to separate assessment
for provision are analysed as follows:

Lifetime Provision for

Ending balance ECL ratio bad debts

Gansu Nongken Brewery Co., Ltd. 14,996,236 100% (14,996,236)
Beijing Tsingtao Brewery Sales Co., Ltd.

(“Beijing Sales Company”) 11,245,784 100% (11,245,784)

26,242,020 (26,242,020)

As the Group has ceased all business transactions with the above companies, the Group is of the view that it is
difficult to collect the receivable amount. Therefore full bad debt provision has been made accordingly. As at 31
December 2020, the carrying amount is the remaining unrecovered portion.
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
(4) Accounts receivable (continued)

(d)  Provision for bad debts (continued)

(i) As at 31 December 2020, accounts receivable that are subject to provision for bad debts on the grouping basis are

analysed as follows:

Group — Dealers

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Ending Ending
balance Provision for bad debts balance Provision for bad debts
Lifetime Lifetime
Amount ECL ratio Amount Amount ECL ratio Amount
Not overdue 119,126,094 - - 150,520,204 - -
Overdue within 1 year 393,965 5% (19,698) 567,465 5% (28,373)
Overdue within 1 - 2 years 12,134 50% (6,067) 20,263 50% (10,132)
Overdue 2 years or more 157,169,862 100%  (157,169,862) 159,680,798 100%  (159,680,798)
276,702,055 (157,195,627) 310,788,730 (159,719,303)

(iii) The provision for bad debts increased in this year is 100,616, the collecting or reversal of provisions for bad
debts is 543,980, the corresponding carrying amount is 1,029,567, the amount of bad debts due to currency
translation differences increases by 4,444 and the provision for bad debts written off due to uncollectable beer

sales is 2,085,558.
(5) Advances to suppliers

(@) The ageing of advances to suppliers is analysed as follows:

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Amount % of total balance Amount % of total balance

Within 1 year 212,636,365 88.6% 111,333,319 95.0%
1 to 2 years 22,917,470 9.6% 3,355,283 2.9%
2 to 3 years 2,278,819 0.9% 1,885,206 1.6%
Over 3 years 2,051,682 0.9% 577,283 0.5%
239,884,336 100% 117,156,091 100%

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of advances to suppliers over 1 year is 27,247,971 (31 December 2019:

5,817,772), which have not been required to deliver yet due to production plan.
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(5) Advances to suppliers (continued)
(b) As at 31 December 2020, the total amount of top five advances to suppliers are analysed as follows:
Amount % of total balance
Total amount of the top five advances to suppliers 120,589,179 50%
(6) Other receivables

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Guarantee deposits 30,663,930 21,877,494
Receivables of refundable cost of land and building 17,441,647 17,441,647
Reservation fund 10,331,110 14,544,689
Payment on behalf for recycling bottles 2,141,753 8,988,995
VAT refund 1,555,693 963,020
Receivables on construction and equipment (i) 615,830 1,997,404
Others 79,149,784 93,821,033
141,899,747 159,634,282

Less: Provision for bad debts (68,006,160) (73,364,846)
73,893,587 86,269,436

(i) It represents receivables on construction and equipment from third parties to subsidiaries of the Company, which are
Tsingtao Brewery Equipment Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (“Equipment Manufacturing Company”) and Tsingtao Brewery
Equipment Co., Ltd. (“Machinery and Equipment Company”).
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(6) Other receivables (continued)

(@)

(b)

The ageing of other receivables is analysed as follows:

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Not overdue

Overdue within 1 year
Overdue within 1 - 2 years
Overdue 2 years or more

Provision for losses and movement in carrying amount

Stage one

72,565,244 83,701,082
1,194,100 2,319,520
395,115 729,620
67,745,288 72,884,060
141,899,747 159,634,282

Stage three

Next 12 months ECL

Lifetime ECL

(Credit impairment losses

(Group) already occurred) Total

Ending Provision for Ending Provision for Provision for

balance bad debts balance bad debts bad debts

31 December 2019 3,049,140 (480,786) 72,884,060 (72,884,060) (73,364,846)
Increase in the current year 5,746,149 (400,130) - (112,120) (512,250)
Reversals in the current year (6,981,834) 507,924 (1,025,802) 1,025,802 1,533,726
Written off in the current year - - (4,337,210) 4,337,210 4,337,210
Transfer to stage three (224,240) 112,120 224,240 (112,120) -
31 December 2020 1,589,215 (260,872) 67,745,288 (67,745,288) (68,006,160)

As of December 31, 2020, the Group has no other receivables in stage two. The analysis of other receivables in stage

one and stage three is as follows:
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
(6) Other receivables (continued)
(b)  Provision for losses and movement in carrying amount (continued)

(i)  As at 31 Dec 2020, the analysis of other receivables for which a single provision for bad debts is made is as
follows:

ECL ratio
for the next Provision for
Stage three Ending balance 12 months bad debts Reason
Receivables of refundable cost of
land use rights and building 17,441,647 100% (17,441,647) 1)
Receivables from other entities 50,303,641 100% (50,303,641) ii)
67,745,288 (67,745,288)
i) A land use right of the Company was expropriated by the government years ago. The government

committed rendering another new land use right instead. The management considers that the possibility
of obtaining new land use right is low, and therefore has transferred the cost of the expropriated land use
right of 8,584,437 and cost of buildings on this land of 8,857,210 to other receivables, and full bad debt
provision has been recorded accordingly.

i)  As these other receivables that are overdue 2 years or more, the Group judged that credit impairment losses
had already occurred and full amount provision for bad debts had been recognized.

(i)  As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, other receivables of provisions for bad debts on grouping basis
are in stage one, and the analysis is as follows:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Ending Ending

balance

Provision for bad debts

balance

Provision for bad debts

% of total

Provision for

% of total

Amount Amount balance bad debts Amount balance

Guarantee deposits 482,989 (146,995) 5% - 50% 1,783,418 (295,918) 5% - 50%

Receivables from other entities 1,106,226 (113,877) 5% - 50% 1,265,722 (184,868) 5% - 50%
1,589,215 (260,872) 3,049,140 (480,786)

By referring to historical credit loss experience, the Group recognized provision for bad debts based on current

conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
(6) Other receivables (continued)

(c) The provision for bad debts increased in the current year is 512,250. The collecting or reversal of provision for bad
debts is 1,533,726, and its corresponding carrying amount is 8,007,636.

(d)  In the current year, carrying amount and bad debt of other receivables of 4,337,210 were written off.

(e) As at 31 December 2020, the top five other receivables are analysed as follows:

% of total  Provision for

Nature Amount  Ageing balance bad debts

No.l  Refundable cost of land 8,584,437  More than five years 6% (8,584,437)
No.2  Receivables on materials 5,000,000  More than five years 4% (5,000,000)
No.3  Receivables on materials 4,616,730  More than five years 3% (4,616,730)
No.4  Advanced payment 4,022,410  More than five years 3% (4,022,410)
No.5  Disposal of assets receivable 3,110,000  More than five years 2% (3,110,000)
25,333,577 18% (25,333,577)

(f)  As at 31 December 2020, the Group does not have government grants recognized as receivable amount.
(7) Inventories

(a) Classification of inventories is as follows:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Ending Carrying Ending Carrying
balance Provision amount balance Provision amount
Raw materials 563,890,545 (968,968) 562,921,577 557,229,799 (1,021,240) 556,208,559
Packaging materials 946,154,798 (2,517,462) 943,637,336 878,527,021 (2,517,462) 876,009,559
Low-value consumables 74,320,823 - 74,320,823 61,236,850 - 61,236,850
Work in progress-outsourced 5,922,378 - 5,922,378 - - -
Work in progress 425,004,935 - 425,004,935 407,440,587 - 407,440,587
Finished goods 1,269,226,477 - 1,269,226,477  1,280,873,778 - 1,280,873,778

3,284,519,956 (3,486,430)  3,281,033,526  3,185,308,035 (3,538,702)  3,181,769,333
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(7) Inventories (continued)

(b)

The movements of inventories is as follows:

2020

31 December
2019

Increase in the
current year

Decrease in the

current year

31 December
2020

Raw materials

Packaging materials
Low-value consumables
Work in progress-outsourced
Work in progress

Finished goods

2019

557,229,799
878,527,021
61,236,850

407,440,587

1,280,873,778

3,185,308,035

31 December
2018

4,145,708,104
8,045,479,533
533,927,096
171,063,443
4,878,363,825
16,350,873,997

Increase in the
current year

(4,139,047,358)
(7,977,851,756)
(520,843,123)
(165,141,065)
(4,860,799,477)

(16,362,521,298)

Decrease in the

current year

563,890,545
946,154,798
74,320,823
5,922,378
425,004,935

1,269,226,477

3,284,519,956

31 December
2019

Raw materials
Packaging materials
Low-value consumables
Work in progress
Finished goods

464,687,748
806,153,659

62,685,451
396,253,676

928,748,247

2,658,528,781

4,405,646,292
8,693,678,209
445,023,058
5,077,236,331
17,353,695,993

(4,313,104,241)
(8,621,304,847)

(446,471,659)
(5,066,049,420)

(17,001,570,462)

557,229,799
878,527,021

61,236,850
407,440,587

1,280,873,778

3,185,308,035
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(7) Inventories (continued)

(c) Provisions for decline in the value of inventories are analysed as follows:

2020

31 December

Increase in the

Decrease in the current year

31 December

2019 current year Reversal Write-off 2020

Raw materials (1,021,240) - - 52,272 (968,968)
Packaging materials (2,517,462) - - - (2,517,462)
(3,538,702) - - 52,272 (3,486,430)

2019

31 December

Increase in the

Decrease in the current year

31 December

2018 current year Reversal Write-off 2019

Raw materials (2,503,854) - - 1,482,614 (1,021,240)
Packaging materials (4,800,201) - 288,110 1,994,629 (2,517,462)
(7,304,055) - 288,110 3,477,243 (3,538,702)

(d)  Provisions for decline in the value of inventories are as follows:

Basis for net realisable value

Reason for writing-off

Raw materials and Estimated selling price less the estimated costs to

packaging materials completion and estimated expenses necessary to

sale and related taxes

Used or disposed of during
the current period

269



270

H OO %A R A A TSINGTAO BREWERY CO., LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

®

®

Other current assets

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

VAT input to be deducted

VAT input to be verified

Prepaid Enterprise Income tax

Treasury bonds reverse repo investment
Credit and factoring business

Others

Less: Provision for other current assets

Long-term equity investments

227,459,185 272,740,541
111,121,227 89,535,948
106,650,613 187,655,849
100,129,662 -
6,383,733 13,426,255
784,296 1,547,000
552,528,716 564,905,593
(118,938) (228,257)
552,409,778 564,677,336

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Joint venture (a)
Associates (b)

Less: Provision for impairment of long-term equity investments

222,529,920 230,912,855
153,023,917 146,948,947
375,553,837 377,861,802

(1,220,000) (1,220,000)

374,333,837

376,641,802
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
(9) Long-term equity investments (continued)
(@) Joint Venture

2020

Movements in the current period

% — F F F H ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Share of Balance of
net profit or loss  Share of other Other Cash provision for
31 December  using the equity  comprehensive equity dividends 31 December  impairment at
2019 method income changes declared 2020 end of year
Hebei Jiahe Beer Co.,Ltd.
(“Hebei Jiahe Company”) 230,912,855 1,617,065 (10,000,000 222,529,920
2019
Movements in the current year
Share of net Balance of
profit or loss ~ Share of other Cash provision for
31 December  using the equity  comprehensive Other equity dividends 31 December impairment at
2018 method income changes declared 2019 end of year
Hebei Jiahe Company 28,842,662 8,070,193 (6,000,000) 230,912,855

The share of equity interests and voting right held by the Company are both 50% in Hebei Jiahe Company, so the
Group owns joint control over Hebei Jiahe Company and accounts for it as a joint venture.

Details of equity interests in the joint venture are disclosed in Note 6(2)(b).
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
(9) Long-term equity investments (continued)
(b) Associate

2020

Movements in the current year

Share of net Balance of
profit or loss Share of other Cash provision for
31 December  using the equity ~ comprehensive Other equity dividends 31 December  impairment at
2019 method income changes declared 2020 end of year
Shandong Yantai Brewery
Co., Ltd. (“Yantai
Brewery Company”) 127,976,623 13,411,296 - - (10,488,900) 130,899,019
Qingdao Zhaoshang Logistics
Company Limited.
(“Zhaoshang Logistics”) 15,181,001 2,823,069 - 10,289 - 18,014,359
Tsingtao Brewery Europe
Trading Co., Ltd.
(“European Company”) 2,516,821 301,392 72,326 - - 2,890,539
Liaoning Shenqing Tsingtao
Brewery Company Limited.
(“Liaoning Shenging”) 54,502 (54,502) - - - - -
Others 1,220,000 - - - - 1,220,000 (1,220,000
146,948,947 16,481,255 72,326 10,289 (10,488,900) 153,023,917 (1,220,000)
2019
Movements in the current year
Share of net Balance of
profit or loss ~ Share of other Cash provision for
31 December  using the equity  comprehensive Other equity dividends 31 December impairment at
2018 method income changes declared 2019 end of year
Yantai Brewery Company 128,559,087 8,462,433 - - (9,044,897 127,976,623
Zhaoshang Logistics 11,672,943 3,499,875 - 8,183 - 15,181,001
European Company 1,321,393 1,186,015 9413 - - 2,516,821
Liaoning Shenqing 90,115 (35,613) - - - 54,502 -
Others 1,220,000 - 1,220,000 (1,220,000
142,863,538 13,112,710 9,413 8,183 (9,044,897 146,948,947 (1,220,000

Details of equity interests in the associates are disclosed in Note 6(2)(c).

Liaoning Shenqing Company’s net assets are negative due to continuous losses, and the Group has no obligation to
bear additional losses. Therefore, when confirming the share of the Group on the net loss incurred, the book value
of the long-term equity investment is written down to zero, As at 31 December 2020, the accumulative unconfirmed
investment loss is 10,981 (31 December 2019: 0).
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(10) Investment properties

2020
Buildings Land use rights Total
Original cost
31 December 2019 84,224,430 8,734,452 92,958,882
Increase in the current period — transfer from fixed assets and
intangible assets (i) 908,328 - 908,328
Decrease in the current period — transfer to fixed assets (18,731,280) (2,587,486) (21,318,766)
31 December 2020 66,401,478 6,146,966 72,548,444
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2019 (51,492,494) (2,612,357) (54,104,851)
Increase in the current period
Accrual (1,962,424) (131,564) (2,093,988)
Transfer from fixed assets and intangible assets (i) (250,124) - (250,124)
Decrease in the current period — transfer to fixed assets 11,653,371 1,308,014 12,961,385
31 December 2020 (42,051,671) (1,435,907) (43,487,578)
Provision for impairment
31 December 2019 (2,349,349) - (2,349,349)
Increase in the current period — transfer from fixed assets (i) (263,426) - (263,426)
Decrease in the current period — transfer to fixed assets 735,343 - 735,343
31 December 2020 (1,877,432) - (1,877,432)
Carrying amount
31 December 2020 22,472,375 4,711,059 27,183,434
31 December 2019 30,382,587 6,122,095 36,504,682
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(10) Investment properties (continued)

2019
Buildings Land use rights Total
Original cost
31 December 2018 75,682,956 - 75,682,956
Increase in the current year — Transfer from fixed assets 10,454,815 8,734,452 19,189,267
Decrease in the current year — Transfer to fixed assets (1,913,341) - (1,913,341)
31 December 2019 84,224,430 8,734,452 92,958,882
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2018 (46,171,652) - (46,171,652)
Increase in the current year
Accrual (2,106,715) (110,127) (2,216,842)
Transfer from fixed assets (4,242.,939) (2,502,230) (6,745,169)
Decrease in the current year — Transfer to fixed assets 1,028,812 - 1,028,812
31 December 2019 (51,492,494) (2,612,357) (54,104,851)
Provision for impairment
31 December 2018 (1,578,536) - (1,578,536)
Increase in the current year — Transfer from fixed assets (i) (770,813) - (770,813)
31 December 2019 (2,349,349) - (2,349,349)
Carrying amount
31 December 2019 30,382,587 6,122,095 36,504,682
31 December 2018 27,932,768 - 27,932,768

(i)  For the year ended 31 December 2020, the self-use land with the carrying amount 394,778 (cost:

reclassified to investment properties as they are used for leasing instead of self-use.

908,328) are

As at 31 December 2020, there is no investment property without ownership certificates (31 December 2019: nil).
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
(11) Fixed assets

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Fixed assets (@) 10,301,504,225 10,221,482,397
Fixed assets pending for disposal (b) 1,124,405 552,068
10,302,628,630 10,222,034,465

(@) Fixed assets

2020
Machinery and Other
Buildings equipment Vehicles equipments Total
Original cost
As at 31 December 2019 7,312,629,435  10,944,686,036 315,594,700 905,875,957  19,478,786,128
Increase in the current year
Purchase - 37,230,148 11,969,782 79,180,158 128,380,088
Transfer from construction in
progress 317,781,254 815,395,506 - 30,029,822 1,163,206,582
Transfer from investment
properties 18,731,280 - - - 18,731,280
Decrease in the current year
Disposal (5,638,626) (307,524,604) (13,502,860) (20,646,845) (347,312,935)
Transfer to construction in
progress (142,263,120) (161,275,883) - (1,667,166) (305,206,169)
Transfer to investment properties (908,328) - - - (908,328)
As at 31 December 2020 7,500,331,895  11,328,511,203 314,061,622 992,771,926  20,135,676,646
Accumulated depreciation
As at 31 December 2019 (1,905,385,451)  (6,001,215,144) (210,994,112) (670,339,266) (8,787,933,973)
Increase in the current year
Accrual (200,024,285) (599,838,514) (22,430,473) (76,642,668) (898,935,940)
Transfer from investment
properties (11,653,371) - - - (11,653,371)
Decrease in the current year
Disposal 1,814,861 207,490,461 11,723,698 19,758,992 240,788,012
Transfer to construction in
progress 52,148,044 97,488,861 - 1,488,093 151,124,998
Transfer to investment properties 250,124 - - - 250,124
As at 31 December 2020 (2,062,850,078)  (6,296,074,336) (221,700,887) (725,734,849)  (9,306,360,150)
Provision for impairment
As at 31 December 2019 (141,826,361) (325,414,187) (1,703,027) (426,183) (469,369,758)
Increase in the current year
Accrual (1,537,248) (127,036,986) (1,398,679) (580,787) (130,553,700)
Transfer from investment
properties (735,343) - - - (735,343)
Decrease in the current year
Disposal 1,438,484 69,237,533 383,595 681,167 71,740,779
Transfer to construction in
progress 625,126 217,199 - - 842,325
Transfer to investment properties 263,426 - - - 263,426
As at 31 December 2020 (141,771,916) (382,996,441) (2,718,111) (325,803) (527,812,271)
Carrying amount
As at 31 December 2020 5,295,709,901 4,649,440,426 89,642,624 266,711,274  10,301,504,225
As at 31 December 2019 5,265,417,623 4,618,056,705 102,897,561 235,110,508  10,221,482,397
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(11) Fixed assets (continued)

(@) Fixed assets (continued)
2019
Machinery and Other
Buildings equipment Vehicles equipments Total
Original cost
As at 31 December 2018 7,087,231,168  10,807,663,003 328,835,951 885,060,869  19,108,790,991
Increase in the current year
Purchase - 29,420,740 7,746,068 87,608,467 124,775,275
Transfer from construction in
progress 386,833,039 686,566,613 - - 1,073,399,652
Transfer from investment
properties 1,913,341 - - - 1,913,341
Decrease in the current year
Disposal (31,278,767) (346,336,544) (20,987,319) (64,797,727) (463,400,357)
Transfer to construction in
progress (121,614,531) (232,627,776) - (1,995,652) (356,237,959)
Transfer to investment properties (10,454,815) - - - (10,454,815)
As at 31 December 2019 7,312,629,435  10,944,686,036 315,594,700 905,875,957  19,478,786,128
Accumulated depreciation
As at 31 December 2018 (1,745,190,417)  (5,776,662,856) (206,536,703) (649,567,230)  (8,377,957,206)
Increase in the current year
Accrual (198,036,044) (591,536,075) (23,109,432) (80,315,974) (892,997,525)
Transfer from investment
properties (1,028,812) - - - (1,028,812)
Decrease in the current year
Disposal 13,306,827 244,459,317 18,652,023 57,729,482 334,147,649
Transfer to construction in
progress 21,320,056 122,524,470 - 1,814,456 145,658,982
Transfer to investment properties 4,242,939 - - - 4,242,939
As at 31 December 2019 (1,905,385,451)  (6,001,215,144) (210,994,112) (670,339,266) (8,787,933,973)
Provision for impairment
As at 31 December 2018 (117,194,676) (312,955,604) (1,806,132) (2,545,307) (434,501,719)
Increase in the current year
Accrual (34,510,559) (86,056,556) (284,985) (487,430) (121,339,530)
Decrease in the current year
Disposal 9,108,061 70,161,277 388,090 2,606,554 82,263,982
Transfer to construction in
progress - 3,436,696 - - 3,436,696
Transfer to investment properties 770,813 - - - 770,813
As at 31 December 2019 (141,826,361) (325,414,187) (1,703,027) (426,183) (469,369,758)
Carrying amount
As at 31 December 2019 5,265,417,623 4,618,056,705 102,897,561 235,110,508  10,221,482,397
As at 31 December 2018 5,224,846,075 4,718,044,543 120,493,116 232,948,332 10,296,332,066

For the year ended 31 December 2020, fixed assets of the Group with the carrying amount of 153,238,846 (cost:
305,206,169; accumulated depreciation 151,124,998, impairment provision 842,325) are transferred to construction in
progress to be upgraded due to technology renewal and the likes.
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
(11) Fixed assets (continued)
(@) Fixed assets (continued)
As at 31 December 2020, there are no fixed assets pledged as collateral for borrowings (31 December 2019: nil).
For the Year ended 31 December 2020, fixed assets accumulated depreciation are 898,935,940 (For the year ended 31
December 2019: 892,997,525), of which 806,066,007, 8,811,419, 81,815,070 and 2,243,444 (For the year ended 31
December 2019: 809,051,082, 7,324,240, 74,241,408 and 2,380,795) have been charged to operating cost, selling and

distribution expenses, general and administrative expenses and research and development expenses respectively.

The cost of fixed assets transferred from construction in progress amounts to 1,163,206,582 (For the year ended 31
December 2019:1,073,399,652).

(i)  Temporarily idle fixed assets

As at 31 December 2020, the buildings and the machinery and equipment with carrying amount of 58,150,534
(cost 209,956,745) are temporarily idle for the reason of products update (31 December 2019: carrying amount of
73,945,969 (cost 229,171,949)). The management planned to reallocate these assets among the Group or upgrade.
The detailed analysis of these assets is as follows:

2020
Accumulated Provision for Carrying
Cost depreciation impairment amount
Machinery and equipment 183,024,452 (120,829,814) (8,148,021) 54,046,617
Buildings 26,932,293 (12,814,560) (10,013,816) 4,103,917
209,956,745 (133,644,374) (18,161,837) 58,150,534

2019
Accumulated Provision for Carrying
Cost depreciation impairment amount
Machinery and equipment 202,425,243 (125,632,434) (7,207,498) 69,585,311
Buildings 26,746,706 (12,485,423) (9,900,625) 4,360,658
229,171,949 (138,117,857) (17,108,123) 73,945,969

277



278

H OO %A R A A TSINGTAO BREWERY CO., LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
(11) Fixed assets (continued)
(@) Fixed assets (continued)
(if)  Provision for impairment
According to the accounting policies stated in Note 2(18), the Group performs impairment testing on buildings,
machinery and equipment with impairment indicator at the balance sheet date, and impairment of 130,553,700
has been recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020.

(itli)  Fixed assets without ownership certificates

The ownership certificates of the Group’s certain buildings have not been obtained. The analysis is as follows:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Reason Carrying amount Carrying amount
In the application process 332,619,000 536,747,000
Unable to obtain 84,764,000 89,578,000

417,383,000 626,325,000

Per consultation with the Company’s legal adviser, the Company’s directors are of the view that this situation
will not prevent the Group from legal possession of such facilities as there is no legal restriction for the Group to
apply for and obtain the building ownership certificates, there are no significant adverse impact on the operations
of the Group, therefore, no provision for fixed assets impairment is provided.

(b) Fixed assets pending for disposal

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Machinery, equipment and buildings 1,124,405 552,068
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
(12) Construction in progress

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Ending  Provision for Carrying Ending Provision for Carrying
balance impairment amount balance impairment amount
Relocation project of Shan Xi 248,125,700 - 248,125,700 3,155,194 3,155,194
Production line improvement of
Ludong Area 16,867,976 - 16,867,976 15,310,982 15,310,982
Production line improvement of
Luxi Area 15,352,065 - 15,352,065 - -
Production line improvement of
Jiang Su 11,620,055 - 11,620,055 475,558 475,558
Production line improvement of
Hu Nan 7,147,614 - 7,147,614 4,736 4,736
Production line improvement of
Ludong Area 3,656,696 - 3,656,696 5,654,908 5,654,908
Production line improvement of
Liao Ning 2,891,483 - 2,891,483 - -
Relocation project of Lu Nan Area 2,834,650 - 2,834,650 - -
Production line improvement of
Fu Jian 2,637,704 - 2,637,704 - -
Production line improvement of
Jiang Su 2,552,424 - 2,552,424 294,662 294,662
Production line improvement of
Shan Xi 2,416,815 - 2,416,815 - -
Production line improvement of
Lu Dong Area 1,865,595 - 1,865,595 2,593,102 2,593,102
Production line improvement of
Lu Zhong Area 1,813,943 - 1,813,943 - -
Production line improvement of
Shang Hai 1,798,960 - 1,798,960 1,385,841 1,385,841
Production line improvement of
Guang Dong 1,218,166 - 1,218,166 1,323,949 1,323,949
Production line improvement of
Zhe Jiang 1,116,083 - 1,116,083 2,914,644 2,914,644
Relocation project of Lu Xi Area 483,186 - 483,186 87,230,868 87,230,868
Other projects 15,406,254 - 15,406,254 58,649,398 58,649,398
339,805,369 - 339,805,369 178,993,842 178,993,842
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(12) Construction in progress (continued)

(@)

Movement in significant construction in progress

2020
Increase in the
Increase inthe  cument year — Expenditures
31 December current year  Transfer from Transferto 31 December  percentageof ~ Completion Source

Name Budget 2019 — Purchase fixed assets fixed assets 2020 budget percentage of funds
Relocation project of

Shan Xi 500,600,250 3,155,194 18319377 (3.408871) 248,125,700 50% 50% Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Ludong Area 261,501,027 15,310,982 119,208,245 2449879 (120,101,130) 16,867,976 85% §5% Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Luxi Area 188,353,854 150,078,683 (134,726,618) 15,352,065 §0% §0% Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Jiang Su 70344470 475,558 50,075,758 11,266,080 (50,197,341) 11,620,055 99% §8% Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Hu Nan 49,966,348 4736 36,113,564 1339398 (36,310,084) 1,147,614 87% §7% Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Ludong Area 118,620,205 5,054,908 18.407,393 26,033,303 (46,458,908) 3,656,696 86% §6% Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Liao Ning 10,146,300 1254817 (4,303,334) 2,891,483 % % Self-funding
Relocation project of

Lu Nan Area 751,860,000 2,834,650 2,834,650 0% 0% Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Fu Jian 20,673,232 4211143 (1573,439) 2,637,704 20% 20% Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Jiang Su 45,594298 294,662 4621213 488,707 (2.858,158) 155244 12% 12% Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Shan Xi 04,227,386 48192735 (45,775,920) 2416815 75% 5% Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Lu Dong Area 151,998,255 2,593,102 120,532,886 4647840 (125,908,233) 1,865,595 §4% §4% Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Luzhong Area 8,851,508 3,533,130 475,030 (2,194217) 1813943 45% 45% Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Shang Hai 17,672,800 1,385,841 §,.208,633 3829251 (11,624,765) 1,798,960 76% 76% Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Guang Dong 10,336,218 1,323,949 7.863,731 240,298 (8.209.812) 1,218,166 94% 91% Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Zhe Jiang 9,090,802 2914644 1,418 465 30972 (3,247,998) 1,116,083 48% 48% Self-funding
Relocation project of Lu Xi

Area 212,110,000 §7,230,868 111,729,974 3484501 (201,962,177) 483,186 95% 95% Self-funding
Other projects 58,049,398 208,108,866 92,933,567 (364,285,577) 15,406,254

178,993,842 1,170,779,263 153238,846  (1,163,200,582) 339,805,369
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
(12) Construction in progress (continued)

(@) Movement in significant construction in progress (continued)

2019
Increase in the
Increase inthe  current year — Expenditures
31 December current year  Transfer from Transferto 31 December ~ percentage ~ Completion Source

Name Budget 2018 — Purchase fixed assets fixed assets 2019 ofbudget  percentage of funds
Relocation project of

LuXi 212,110,000 2,062,286 85,168,582 - - 87,230,868 47% 4%  Self-funding
Office Building project of

Shan Xi 36,367,720 29,465,111 2,922,946 - - 32,388,057 89% 89%  Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Lu Dong 230,143,534 17,771,040 44,968,867 13,573,39 (61,002,321) 15,310,982 60% 52%  Self-funding
Relocation project of

He Bei 250,850,000 137,069,038 47,582,183 609,325 (177,461,963) 7,798,583 82% 8%  Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Lu Dong 106,601,344 4479371 21,661,901 12,185,077 (32,671,441) 5,654,908 §8% §8%  Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Lu Dong 36,147,856 5,610,537 27,093,049 1,693,127 (29,807,688) 4,589,025 99% 9% Self-funding
Relocation project of

Shan Xi 500,606,250 - 3,406,964 - (251,770) 3,155,194 1% 1% Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Zhe Jiang 9,538,504 - 5,490,778 2367432 (4,943,566) 2,914,044 82% 82%  Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Guang Dong 8,416,750 338,462 2,831,604 - (500,611) 2,609,455 53% 38%  Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Lu Dong 08,194,747 1,749,999 57,820,586 6,314,666 (63,292,149) 2,593,102 97% 97%  Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Shang Hai 15,667,898 - 3,310,871 2,669,425 (4,594,455) 1,385,841 38% 38%  Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Guang Dong 16,197,810 - 4954981 - (3,631,032) 1,323,949 31% 3%  Self-funding
Production line improvement

of Gan Su 33,163,105 2,350,068 24,289,042 3,096,682 (28,538.431) 1,197,361 90% 90%  Self-funding
New Plant Project of

He Bei 235,610,000 151,363,810 67,185,114 - (218464457) 84,467 93% 93%  Self-funding
Other projects 2,031,572 266,672,451 164,633,151 (448,239,768) 10,697,406

379,891,204 665359919 207,142,281 (1,073399,652) 178,993,842

For the year ended 31 December 2020, there are no new increased borrowing costs capitalised (2019: nil). The
management has assessed that there is no impairment risk on construction in progress and did not recognise provision

for impairment of construction in progress (2019: nil).
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(13) Right-of-use assets

2020
Land use Machinery and
Buildings rights equipments Others Total
Original Cost
31 December 2019 75,792,267 9,097,754 3,677,046 1,259,170 89,826,237
Increase in the current year and renewal 141,280,420 - - 573,699 141,854,119
Decrease in the current year (9,616,655) (186,098) - (185,125) (9,987,878)
Lease Change (212,652) (49,539) - (150,475) (412,666)
Lease Expiration (9,404,003) (136,559) - (34,650) (9,575,212)
31 December 2020 207,456,032 8,911,656 3,677,046 1,647,744 221,692,478
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2019 (20,913,741) (1,115,220) (720,447) (106,394) (22,855,802)
Accrual (37,708,942) (1,092,574) (720,447) (560,878) (40,082,841)
Disposal 9,404,003 136,559 - 34,650 9,575,212
31 December 2020 (49,218,680) (2,071,235) (1,440,894) (632,622) (53,363,431)
Carrying amount
31 December 2020 158,237,352 6,840,421 2,236,152 1,015,122 168,329,047
31 December 2019 54,878,526 7,982,534 2,956,599 1,152,776 66,970,435
2019
Land use Machinery and
Buildings rights equipment Others Total
Original Cost
31 December 2018 — — — — —
Changes in accounting policies 48,312,421 7,042,220 3,677,046 42,413 59,074,100
1 January 2019 48,312,421 7,042,220 3,677,046 42,413 59,074,100
Increase in the current year and renewal 27,479,846 2,055,534 - 1,216,757 30,752,137
31 December 2019 75,792,267 9,097,754 3,677,046 1,259,170 89,826,237
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2018 — — — — —
1 January 2019 - - - - -
Accrual (20,913,741) (1,115,220) (720,447) (106,394) (22,855,802)
31 December 2019 (20,913,741) (1,115,220) (720,447) (106,394) (22,855,802)
Carrying amount
31 December 2019 54,878,526 7,982,534 2,956,599 1,152,776 66,970,435
31 December 2018 — — — — —

According to the notice of “Regulations on accounting treatment of rent reduction related to COVID-19 situation” (the
“notice”) issued by the Ministry of Finance on 19 June 2020, the Group adopts the simplified method to deal with the rent
reduction meeting the requirements of the notice. The relevant rent reduction with simplified treatment has an impact on the
current profit and loss of about 893,000.
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(14) Intangible assets

2020
Land use Technology Marketing Software
rights Trademarks known-how networks and others Total
Original Cost
31 December 2019 2,624,603,664 449,743,612 18,629,100 974,935,670 486,832,730 4,554,804,776
Increase in the current year
Purchase 103,122,537 - - - 47,017,733 150,140,270
Transfer from investment
properties 2,587,486 - - - - 2,587,486
Decrease in the current year
Disposal (2,534,087) - - - (11,478,945) (14,013,032)
31 December 2020 2,727,839,600 449,743,612 18,629,100 974,935,670 522,371,518 4,693,519,500
Accumulated amortisation
31 December 2019 (541,417,212) (342,358,212) (18,629,100) (822,501,782) (271,326,015)  (1,996,232,321)
Increase in the current year
Accrual (62,189,744) (24,056,586) - (77,867,210) (39,825,332) (203,938,872)
Transfer from investment
properties (1,308,014) - - - - (1,308,014)
Decrease in the current year 429,992 - - - 11,372,703 11,802,695
31 December 2020 (604,484,978) (366,414,798) (18,629,100) (900,368,992) (299,778,644)  (2,189,676,512)
Carrying amount
31 December 2020 2,123,354,622 83,328,814 - 74,566,678 222,592,874 2,503,842,988
31 December 2019 2,083,246,452 107,385,400 - 152,433,888 215,506,715 2,558,572,455
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

2019
Land use Technology Marketing Software
rights Trademarks known-how networks and others Total
Original Cost
31 December 2018 2,528,519,735 449,743,612 18,629,100 974,935,670 432,612,387 4,404,440,504
Increase in the current year
— Purchase 138,413,458 - - - 54,253,068 192,666,526
Decrease in the current year
Disposal (33,535,077) - - - (32,725) (33,567,802)
Transfer into Investment
property (8,734,452) - - - - (8,734,452)
31 December 2019 2,624,663,664 449,743,612 18,629,100 974,935,670 486,832,730 4,554,804,776
Accumulated amortisation
31 December 2018 (500,053,820) (317,931,829) (18,629,100) (739,090,157) (229,050,083)  (1,804,754,989)
Increase in the current year
— Accrual (56,658,427) (24,426,383) - (83,411,625) (42,308,657) (206,805,092)
Decrease in the current year
Disposal 12,792,805 - - - 32,725 12,825,530
Transfer into Investment
property 2,502,230 - - - - 2,502,230
31 December 2019 (541,417,212) (342,358,212) (18,629,100) (822,501,782) (271,326,015)  (1,996,232,321)
Carrying amount
31 December 2019 2,083,246,452 107,385,400 - 152,433,888 215,506,715 2,558,572,455
31 December 2018 2,028,465,915 131,811,783 - 235,845,513 203,562,304 2,599,685,515

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the amortisation amount of intangible assets is 203,938,872 (2019: 206,805,092).

As at 31 December 2020, there are no intangible assets pledged as collateral for borrowings (31 December 2019: nil).
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
(14) Intangible assets (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the relevant legal procedures for certificates application of the Group’s land use rights with
carrying amount of approximately 28,000 (31 December 2019: 2,011,000) are still in process. In addition, buildings of certain
subsidiaries of the Group were located on parcels of allocated land owned by certain local municipal governments. Most of
the relevant local governments have undertaken to implement transfer procedures for these lands. Carrying amount of the
buildings constructed thereon are approximately 31,476,000 as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: 31,976,000). The
Company’s directors consider that there is no significant adverse impact on the operations of the Group.

Development expenditures are set out as follows:

Decrease in the current year

Recognized
31 December Increase in the Charged to as intangible 31 December
2019 current year profit or loss assets 2020

Beer technology improvement
project - 21,467,092 21,467,092 - -

For the year ended 31 December 2020, research and development expenditures of 21,467,092 (2019:21,088,710) are
recognized in profit or loss.

285



286

H OO %A R A A TSINGTAO BREWERY CO., LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(15) Goodwill

2020
31 December Increase in the Decrease in the 31 December
2019 current year current year 2020
Goodwill —
Shandong Region — Immense Brewery Company 958,868,617 - - 958,868,617
Shandong Region — Lulansa Brewery 227,026,482 - - 227,026,482
South China Region — Nanning Company 130,895,740 - - 130,895,740
Southeast China Region — Fuzhou Company/
Xiamen Company/Zhangzhou Company/
Dongnan Sales Company 114,031,330 - - 114,031,330
North China Region — Three Ring Company/
Beifang Sales Company 24,642,782 - - 24,642,782
Other Regions 49,049,770 - - 49,049,770
1,504,514,721 - - 1,504,514,721
Less: Provision for impairment —
Shandong Region — Immense Brewery
Company - - - -
Shandong Region — Lulansa Company - - - -
South China Region — Nanning Company (130,895,740) - - (130,895,740)
Southeast China Region — Fuzhou
Company/Xiamen Company/Zhangzhou
Company/Dongnan Sales Company - - - -
North China Region — Three Ring
Company/Beifang Sales Company (24,642,782) - - (24,642,782)
Other Regions (41,872,217) - - (41,872,217)
(197,410,739) - - (197,410,739)

1,307,103,982

1,307,103,982
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(15) Goodwill (continued)

(continued)
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2019
31 December Increase in the Decrease in the 31 December
2018 current year current year 2019
Goodwill —
Shandong Region — Immense Brewery Company 958,868,617 - - 958,868,617
Shandong Region — Lulansa Brewery 227,026,482 - - 227,026,482
South China Region — Nanning Company 130,895,740 - - 130,895,740
Southeast China Region — Fuzhou Company/
Xiamen Company/Zhangzhou Company/
Dongnan Sales Company 114,031,330 - - 114,031,330
North China Region — Three Ring Company/
Beifang Sales Company 24,642,782 - - 24,642,782
Other Regions 49,049,770 - - 49,049,770

Less: Provision for impairment —

Shandong Region — Immense Brewery
Company

Shandong Region — Lulansa Company

South China Region — Nanning Company

Southeast China Region — Fuzhou
Company/Xiamen Company/Zhangzhou
Company/Dongnan Sales Company

North China Region — Three Ring
Company/Beifang Sales Company

Other Regions

1,504,514,721

1,504,514,721

(130,895,740)

(24,642,782)
(41,872,217)

(130,895,740)

(24,642,782)
(41,872,217)

(197,410,739)

(197,410,739)

1,307,103,982

1,307,103,982
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(15) Goodwill (continued)

All goodwill of the Group has been allocated to relevant assets and group of assets combinations on purchase date. The

goodwill allocation are summarised by operating segments as follows:

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

1,185,895,099
130,895,740
114,031,330
24,642,782
49,049,770

Shandong Region 1,185,895,099
South China Region 130,895,740
Southeast China Region 114,031,330
North China Region 24,642,782
Other Regions 49,049,770

1,504,514,721

1,504,514,721

In the goodwill impairment test, the Group compares the carrying amount of relevant assets or group of assets combinations

(including goodwill) with the recoverable amount. If the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount, relevant

difference will be recorded in profit or loss in the current period. In 2019 and 2020, the company hired Beijing Guoyou

Dazheng Asset Appraisal Co, Ltd. to assess the recoverable amount of the asset group of Immense Brewery Company that

includes goodwill The allocation of goodwill of the group has not changed in 2020.

The recoverable amounts of group of assets and group of assets combinations are calculated using the estimated cash flows

determined according to the five-year financial budgets approved by management. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are

estimated by using a fixed growth rate stated below.
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
(15) Goodwill (continued)

In 2020, the Group applied in calculating discounted future cash flows are as follows:

Shandong Region

Immense
Brewery Lulansa Southeast Other
Company Company China Region Regions
Growth rate in perpetual period 3% 3% 3% 3%
Gross profit margin 37% 32% 31% 25%
Discount rate 14% 14% 14% 14%

In 2019, the group applied in calculating discounted future cash flows are as follows:

Shandong Region

Immense
Brewery Lulansa Southeast Other
Company Company China Region Regions
Growth rate in perpetual period 3% 3% 3% 3%
Gross profit margin 31% 31% 22% 24%
Discount rate 14% 14% 14% 14%

The Group determines growth rate and gross margin based on historic experience and forecast on future market. The discount
rate used by management is the pre-tax interest rate that is able to reflect the risks specific to relevant group of assets and
group of assets combinations. The growth rate in forecast period is determined by the average growth rate of the five-year
budget of the approved sales income of the relevant group of assets and group of assets combinations of 2%-4%. The growth
rate in perpetual period is the weighted average growth rate used by the Group to forecast the cash flow after the five-year
budget.
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(16) Long-term prepaid expenses

2020

31 December

Increase in the

Amortisation in

31 December

2019 current year  the current year 2020
Decoration and renovation expenses 24,953,149 66,583,607 (13,175,382) 78,361,374
Factory hardening expenses 3,517,689 1,511,550 (1,444,959) 3,584,280
Gardening expenses 1,777,987 376,056 (1,223,149) 930,894
Others 5,006,563 171,419 (1,796,196) 3,381,786
35,255,388 68,642,632 (17,639,686) 86,258,334

2019

31 December

Increase in the

Amortisation in

31 December

2018 current year  the current year 2019

Decoration and renovation expenses 21,871,399 11,583,181 (8,501,431) 24,953,149
Factory hardening expenses 4,721,877 1,312,686 (2,516,874) 3,517,689
Gardening expenses 1,496,032 1,364,525 (1,082,570) 1,777,987
Others 5,018,111 645,267 (656,815) 5,006,563
33,107,419 14,905,659 (12,757,690) 35,255,388
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(17) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(@)

(b)

Deferred tax assets without offsetting

31 December 2020

% — F F F H ANNUAL REPORT 2020

31 December 2019

Deductible Deductible
temporary temporary
differences and differences and
deductible Deferred tax deductible Deferred tax
losses assets losses assets
Deductible losses - - 13,396,668 3,349,167
Provision for asset impairment 96,219,816 24,054,954 56,044,968 14,011,242
Deferred income 1,364,996,248 341,249,062 1,072,795,800 268,198,950
Elimination of intra-group unrealised
profit 216,300,624 54,075,156 249,124,220 62,281,055
Accruals of expenses 5,868,448,752 1,467,112,188 4,820,532,160 1,205,133,040
Share-based payment 177,367,392 44,341,848 - -
7,723,332,832 1,930,833,208 6,211,893,816 1,552,973,454
Including:
Expected to reverse within one year
(inclusive) 1,552,562,268 1,171,074,254
Expected to be reverse after one year 378,270,940 381,899,200
1,930,833,208 1,552,973,454
Deferred tax liabilities without offsetting
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Taxable Taxable
temporary Deferred temporary Deferred tax
differences tax liabilities differences liabilities
Business combinations not under
common control 491,075,772 122,768,943 600,029,908 150,007,477
Depreciation of fixed assets 994,820,244 248,705,061 495,297,448 123,824,362
Changes in fair value of wealth
management products 27,042,735 6,760,684 24,589,764 6,147,441
The difference between carrying amount
and tax base resulted from government
grants charged in profit or loss in the
current period 7,421,724 1,855,431 7,976,488 1,994,122
1,520,360,475 380,090,119 1,127,893,608 281,973,402
Including:
Expected to be reverse within
one year (inclusive) 48,179,961 39,386,009
Expected to be reverse after one year 331,910,158 242,587,393

380,090,119

281,973,402
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(17) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities (continued)

(©)

(d)

(e)

Deductible temporary differences and deductible losses that are not recognized as deferred tax assets are analysed as
follows:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Deductible temporary differences 1,645,626,327 1,226,124,839
Deductible losses 2,163,327,814 2,550,471,144
3,808,954,141 3,776,595,983

Given the loss-making position of certain subsidiaries, whether it is probable that sufficient future taxable incomes will
be available against such deductible losses is highly uncertain. Therefore, the Group has not recognized deferred tax
assets of approximately 540,832,000 (31 December 2019: 637,618,000) arising from the accumulated losses that can
set off against taxable incomes under tax laws in the five-year period from 2021 to 2025. In addition, given the loss-
making position of certain subsidiaries, whether it is probable that sufficient future taxable incomes will be available
against temporary differences is highly uncertain or the possibility of obtaining approval on the losses from tax
authorities is low. Therefore, the Group also has not recognized deferred tax assets of approximately 411,407,000 (31
December 2019: 306,531,000) arising from the deductible temporary differences resulting from the impact of provision
for impairment losses.

Deductible losses that are not recognized as deferred tax assets will be overdue in the following years:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

2020 — 574,266,958
2021 508,799,495 529,147,107
2022 492,075,945 544,822,721
2023 578,997,477 609,128,474
2024 310,121,976 293,105,884
2025 273,332,921 —

2,163,327,814 2,550,471,144

The net balances of deferred tax assets and liabilities after offsetting are as follows:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Offsetting Net Offsetting Net
amount amount amount amount
Deferred tax assets 212,525,583 1,718,307,625 97,937,922 1,455,035,532

Deferred tax liabilities 212,525,583 167,564,536 97,937,922 184,035,480
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Provision for asset impairment and loss

2020

Decrease in

Increase
31 December in the the current year 31 December
2019  current year Reversal Written-off Others 2020
Provision for bad debt of
accounts receivable 185,971,013 100,616 (543,980)  (2,085,558) (4,444) 183,437,647
Including: Provision for bad
debt recognized
individually 26,251,710 - (9,690) - - 26,242,020
Provision for bad
debt recognized
on grouping basis 159,719,303 100,616 (534,290) (2,085,558) (4,444) 157,195,627
Provision for bad debt of other
receivables 73,364,846 512,250 (1,533,726)  (4,337,210) - 68,006,160
Provision for bad debt of other
current asset 228,257 - (109,319) - - 118,938
Subtotal 259,564,116 612,866 (2,187,025)  (6,422,768) (4,444) 251,562,745
Provisions for impairment of
inventory 3,538,702 - - (52,272) - 3,486,430
Provisions for impairment of
long-term investment 1,220,000 - - - - 1,220,000
Provisions for impairment of
investment properties 2,349,349 - - - (471,917) 1,877,432
Provisions for impairment of
fixed assets 469,369,758 130,553,700 - (71,740,779) (370,408) 527,812,271
Provisions for impairment of
goodwill 197,410,739 - - - - 197,410,739
Subtotal 673,888,548 130,553,700 - (71,793,051) (842,325) 731,806,872
933,452,664 131,166,566 (2,187,025) (78,215,819) (846,769) 983,369,617
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Provision for asset impairment and loss (continued)

2019

Decrease in

Increase
31 December in the the current year 31 December
2018  current year Reversal Written-off Others 2019
Provision for bad debt of
accounts receivable 191,061,189 41,756 (5,116,804) (16,264) 1,136 185,971,013
Including: Provision for bad
debt recognized
individually 26,751,710 - (500,000) - - 26,251,710
Provision for bad
debt recognized
on grouping basis 164,309,479 41,756 (4,616,804) (16,264) 1,136 159,719,303
Provision for bad debt of other
receivables 77,142,452 377,983 (2,466,905)  (1,688,684) - 73,364,846
Provision for bad debt of other
current assets 155,498 228,257 (155,498) - - 228,257
Subtotal 268,359,139 647,996 (7,739,207)  (1,704,948) 1,136 259,564,116
Provisions for impairment of
inventory 7,304,055 - (288,110)  (3,477,243) - 3,538,702
Provisions for impairment of
long-term equity investment 1,220,000 - - - - 1,220,000
Provisions for impairment of
investment properties 1,578,536 - - - 770,813 2,349,349
Provisions for impairment of
fixed assets 434,501,719 121,339,530 - (82,263,982)  (4,207,509) 469,369,758
Provisions for impairment of
goodwill 197,410,739 - - - - 197,410,739
Subtotal 642,015,049 121,339,530 (288,110) (85,741,225)  (3,436,696) 673,888,548
910,374,188 121,987,526 (8,027,317) (87,446,173)  (3,435,560) 933,452,664
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

19)

(20)

21

Other non-current assets

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Prepayments for construction and equipment

Short-term borrowings

57,672,911

72,852,914

Currency 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Unsecured loan (i) HKD 252,480,000 268,740,000
inter-bank borrowing (ii) RMB 450,000,000 -
Interest payable RMB 793,054 2,166,631
703,273,054 270,906,631

(i)  Asat 31 December 2020, short-term loan represents the borrowing from bank of China, with RMB252,480,000 (Original
foreign currency: HKD300,000,000) to Hong Kong Company, a subsidiary of the Company (As at 31 December 2019:

RMB268,740,000 (Original foreign currency: HKD300,000,000)).

(ii) As at 31 December 2020, inter-bank borrowing has been borrowed by the Finance Company, a subsidiary of the
Company and has been settled at 4 January 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, the interest rate of short-term borrowings is from 1.31% to 3.58% (31 December 2019: from 2.73%

to 3.50%).

Notes payable

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Trade acceptance notes
Bank acceptance notes

Other cash balances of 3,180,000 (31 December 2019:

the Group (Note 4(1)(iii)).

43,437,492 100,758,461
106,054,100 120,066,862
149,491,592 220,825,323

6,630,000) are pledged as collateral for the bank acceptance notes of
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
(22) Accounts payable

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Payable for materials and packing purchase 2,001,620,780 2,013,364,203
Payable for beer purchase due to related parties (Note 8(5)) 140,979,145 102,848,774
Payable for promotional goods 68,107,878 42,206,864
Others 11,893,239 8,758,340

2,222,601,042 2,167,178,181

(i) As at 31 December 2020, accounts payable over 1 year with carrying amount of 15,146,001 (31 December 2019:
14,011,253) are mainly payables for materials purchase, for which has not yet been completed.

(ii)  Accounts payable are mainly recorded based on the dates of transactions and the ageing based on their recording dates
is analysed as follows:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Within 1 year 2,207,455,041 2,153,166,928
1 to 2 years 6,103,714 4,998,759
2 to 3 years 2,476,483 2,245,977
Over 3 years 6,565,804 6,766,517

2,222,601,042 2,167,178,181

(23) Contract liabilities

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Dealer contract liabilities 6,567,320,256 5,970,644,849

A majority of opening balance of contract liabilities has been transferred to revenue in 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group listed the value-added tax corresponding to contract liabilities of RMB296,004,209 in
other current liabilities (31 December 2019: 305,074,854).

(24) Employee benefits payable

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Short-term employee benefits (a) 1,422,262,293 1,160,930,670
Defined contribution plans (b) 21,654,106 23,671,162
Termination benefits (C) 439,981,258 250,713,615
Supplemental post-employment benefits (Note 4(32)) 22,301,789 23,350,339

1,906,199,446 1,458,665,786
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(24) Employee benefits payable (continued)

(@)

Short-term employee benefits

2020

31 December

Increase in the

% — F F F H ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Decrease in

31 December

2019 current year  the current year 2020
Wages and salaries, bonus,

allowances and subsidies 807,442,369 3,567,167,919 (3,343,228,867) 1,031,381,421
Staff welfare 1,036,893 287,688,154 (288,686,547) 38,500
Social security contributions 10,672,749 208,367,214 (208,441,058) 10,598,905
Including: Medical insurance 7,264,574 197,713,469 (197,674,099) 7,303,944
Work injury insurance 1,700,401 3,851,912 (3,898,888) 1,653,425
Maternity insurance 1,707,774 6,801,833 (6,868,071) 1,641,536
Housing funds 16,850,657 289,934,179 (288,876,201) 17,908,635

Labour union funds and employee
education funds 324,928,002 126,453,722 (89,046,892) 362,334,832
1,160,930,670 4,479,611,188 (4,218,279,565) 1,422,262,293

2019

31 December

Increase in

Decrease in

31 December

2018  the current year  the current year 2019
Wages and salaries, bonus,

allowances and subsidies 703,999,357 3,447,969,313 (3,344,526,301) 807,442,369
Staff welfare 871,037 280,558,162 (280,392,306) 1,036,893
Social security contributions 12,725,361 255,081,357 (257,133,969) 10,672,749
Including: Medical insurance 9,160,085 218,244,711 (220,140,222) 7,264,574
Work injury insurance 1,765,883 11,491,750 (11,557,232) 1,700,401
Maternity insurance 1,799,393 25,344,896 (25,436,515) 1,707,774
Housing funds 16,948,486 266,156,357 (266,254,186) 16,850,657

Labour union funds and employee
education funds 299,137,024 121,150,090 (95,359,112) 324,928,002

1,033,681,265

4,370,915,279

(4,243,665,874)

1,160,930,670
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(24) Employee benefits payable (continued)

(b) Defined contribution plans
2020
31 December Increase in the Decrease in the 31 December
2019 current year current year 2020
Basic pension 19,261,897 167,177,448 (168,839,006) 17,600,339
Unemployment insurance 4,409,265 6,199,518 (6,555,016) 4,053,767
23,671,162 173,376,966 (175,394,022) 21,654,106
2019
31 December Increase in the Decrease in the 31 December
2018 current year current year 2019
Basic pension 21,020,996 448,615,915 (450,375,014) 19,261,897
Unemployment insurance 4,469,431 16,747,851 (16,808,017) 4,409,265
25,490,427 465,363,766 (467,183,031) 23,671,162
(c)  Termination benefits

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Early retirement benefits (Note 4(32)) 133,239,157 123,371,385
Other termination benefits (i) 306,742,101 127,342,230
439,981,258 250,713,615

(1) For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has paid other termination benefits of 25,827,396, due to
termination of labor relationship (2019: 59,682,140).
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(25) Taxes payable

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Enterprise income tax payable

Consumption tax payable (i)

Unpaid VAT

City maintenance and construction tax payable
Education surcharge payable

Others

246,490,851 211,357,396
203,604,649 148,495,951
36,915,626 87,811,500
8,168,453 10,016,179
7,048,785 8,377,748
45,798,483 46,999,386
548,026,847 513,058,160

(i) As at 31 December 2020, several subsidiaries of the Company have accrued but not yet paid consumption tax in
previous years. The total amount is approximately RMB41,883,000, and the local tax authorities have not yet required

the relevant subsidiaries to pay.

(26) Other payables

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

752,125,817
379,395,052
285,777,281
319,194,913
106,216,173
73,671,439
52,268,924
43,722,276
12,241,556
19,566,363
380,677,707

Guarantee deposits 800,813,929
Payables for equipments and engineering construction 566,763,419
Accruals for advertising expenses 370,800,664
Accruals for transportation expenses 343,883,695
Restricted stock repurchase obligations (Note 12) 279,576,000
Compensation collected in advance for demolition project 106,216,173
Accruals for labour expenses 78,609,432
Accruals for water, electricity and steam expenses 56,502,716
Accruals for general and administrative expenses 38,127,322
Dividend payable 11,700,168
Withholding social expenses for staff 10,185,931
Absorbed deposits from related parties and interests payables (i) 224,353
Others 411,474,406

3,074,878,208

2,424,857,501

(i) It represents the principal and interest of deposits absorbed from the Company’s associates by Finance Company, a

subsidiary of the Company.

As at 31 December 2020, other payables over 1 year with carrying amount of 587,962,603 (31 December 2019: 433,135,935)

are mainly liabilities due to acquisition of subsidiaries and payables for equipments and engineering construction.
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(27

(28)

(29)

(30)

Current portion of non-current liabilities

30 December 2020

31 December 2019

Current portion of long-term borrowings (note 4(28))
Current portion of lease liabilities (note 4(29))

Long-term borrowings

215,720 418,360
41,873,577 21,789,665
42,089,297 22,208,025

Currency 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Guaranteed DKK 215,720 627,540
Less: Current portion of guaranteed Borrowing (Note 4(27)) (215,720) (418,360)
- 209,180

As at 31 December 2020, bank guaranteed borrowing of RMB215,720 (Original foreign currency: DKK?200,000) (31
December 2019: RMB627,540 (Original foreign currency: DKK600,000)), is guaranteed by Beijing Development and Reform
Commission. The principal amount shall be repaid twice annually based on the equal repayment of principal method, with the
last repayment falling due on 1 April 2021 (31 December 2019: 418,360).

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the long-term borrowings are interest-free borrowings.

Lease liabilities

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Lease liabilities
Less: Current portion of lease liabilities (Note 4(27))

157,713,446 59,261,550
(41,873,577) (21,789,665)
115,839,869 37,471,885

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has no liabilities that will lead to potential cash outflow at the end of the year.

Long-term payables

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Payables for specific projects

462,046,060

372,579,660

Payables for specific projects mainly represent the relocation compensation received by subsidiaries from the government. As
the relocation has not yet been completed, the amount was temporarily accounted for as “payables for specific projects” in
accordance with the requirements under No. 3 Interpretation of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the
Ministry of Finance.
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(31) Deferred income

2020
Increase in the Dcrease in the
31 December 2019 current year current year 31 December 2020 Reason
Grants for
relocation and
technology
improvement
Government grants 2,519,926,935 663,403,883 (283,704,794) 2,899,626,024 projects
Charged to
gains on
31 December Increase in the Charged to disposals of 31 December Related to
Government grants items 2019 current year other income assets 2020 assets/income
Relocation projects
Relocation project of Lu Dong area 399,039,710 - (31,018,941) 368,020,769 Assets
Relocation project of Shan Xi 176,686,902 178,023,196 (5,154,671) 349,555,427 Assets/Income
Relocation project of Lu Xi area 98,699,600 67,641,158 (7,817,618) 158,523,140 Assets/Income
Relocation project of He Bei 41,630,253 101,505,914 (1,218,300) 141,917,867 Assets
Relocation project of Lu Nan area 150,441,211 (10,658,316) 139,782,895 Assets
Relocation project of Hu Bei 149,099,992 (11,461,909) - 137,638,083 Assets
Relocation project of Gan Su 134,427971 (10,753,146) (1,451,907) 122,222,918 Assets
Relocation project of Shan Xi 132,885,544 (11,631,879) - 121,253,665 Assets
Relocation project of Lu Nan area 126,703,263 (10,436,640) - 116,266,623 Assets
Relocation project of Lu Xi area 129,770,199 (10,264,227) (6,657,734) 112,848,238 Assets
Relocation project of Jiang Su 116,180,374 - (9,550,282) 106,630,092 Assets
Relocation project of Lu Nan area - 106,284,976 (2,000,852) 104,284,124 Assets/Income
Other relocation projects 611,144,937 66,000 (68,748,817) 542,462,120 Assets/Income
Technology improvement projects
Technology improvement projects of
Lu Xi area - 145,920,000 (1,760,045) - 144,159,955 Assets
Other Technology improvement
projects 25,940,543 20,000,000 (3,749,970) (214,143) 41,976,430 Assets
Other projects 227,276,436 43,962,639 (77,620,239) (1,535,158) 192,083,678

2,519,926,935 603,403,883 (273,845,852) (9,858,942) 2,899,626,024
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(31) Deferred income (continued)

2019
31 December Increase in the Dcrease in the 31 December
2018 current year current year 2019 Reason
Grants for
relocation and
technology
improvement
Government grants 2,343,747,145 542,738,567 (366,558,777) 2,519,926,935 projects
Charged to
gains on
31 December Increase in the Charged to disposals 31 December Related to
Government grants items 2018 current year other income of assets 2019 assets/income
Relocation projects
Relocation project of Lu Dong area 414,242,128 10,228,702 (25,431,120) 399,039,710 Assets
Relocation project of Shan Xi - 178,577,533 (1,890,631) - 176,686,902 Assets
Relocation project of Lu Nan area 161,122,724 - (10,656,013) (25,500 150,441,211 Assets
Relocation project of Hu Bei 150,824,841 10,044,878 (11,769,727) 149,099,992 Assets
Relocation project of Gan Su 145,327,766 - (10,899,795) 134,427,971 Assets
Relocation project of Shan Xi 80,843,472 73,300,721 (21,258,649) 132,885,544 Assets
Relocation project of Lu Xi area 96,418,152 43,440,000 (10,087,953) 129,770,199 Assets
Relocation project of Lu Nan area 137,399,968 (10,696,705) 126,703,263 Assets
Relocation project of Jiang Su 126,117,012 (9,936,638) 116,180,374 Assets
Relocation project of Gan Su 121,126,737 (11,929,303) - 109,197,434 Assets
Relocation project of Guang Dong 126,494,059 - (12,145,399) (8,750,541) 105,598,119 Assets
Relocation project of Hei Longjiang 108,147,567 92,333 (6,518,124) - 101,721,776 Assets/Income
Other relocation projects 399,319,806 113,425,042 (76,805,334) (981,553) 434,957,461 Assets/Income
Technology improvement projects
Other Technology improvement
projects 62,759,515 11,163,200 (3,504,802) (3,834,082) 66,583,831 Assets
Other projects 213,603,398 102,466,158 (128,985,461) (450,947) 186,633,148
2,343,747,145 542,738,567 (352,516,154) (14,042,623) 2,519,926,935
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(32) Long-term employee benefits payable

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

646,095,319
431,634,962

1,077,730,281

(123,371,385)
(23,350,339)

(146,721,724)

Early retirement benefits (a) 585,171,677
Supplemental post-employment benefits (b) 561,480,851
1,146,652,528
Less: Early retirement benefits within one year (133,239,157)
Supplemental post-employment benefits within one year (22,301,789)
(155,540,946)

991,111,582

931,008,557

The above-mentioned benefits to be paid within one year are represented in employee benefits payable.

(@) Early retirement benefits

Some employees of the Group have retired before their statutory retirement age. As at the balance sheet date, the

significant actuarial assumptions used in estimating the early retirement benefits payable by the Group are as follows:

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Discount rate (yield-to-maturity of the government bond with
the same term) 2.47% - 3.15%

Early retirement benefits charged to profit or loss for the current period:

2.36% - 3.11%

2020 2019
General and administrative expenses 25,524,605 416,684,296
Finance expenses 7,859,608 8,581,797

(b)  Supplemental post-employment benefits

Supplemental post-employment benefits are provided to those employees who met certain criteria and the benefit
plan was approved by the board of directors and the President’s office. The benefits they can receive depend on their
positions and seniorities. Such defined benefit obligations were calculated by external independent actuary Shi Towers
Watson Management Consulting (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (unit member of China Association of Actuaries) according to

the projected unit credit method.
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(32) Long-term employee benefits payable (continued)

(b)

Supplemental post-employment benefits (continued)

@

(ii)

Supplemental post-employment benefits obligations of the Group:

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Defined benefit obligations
Less: Fair value of plan assets

Defined benefit liabilities

The movements in supplemental post-employment benefits of the Group are as follows:

431,634,962

431,634,962

Present value of
the defined benefit

obligation
As at 1 January 2020 431,634,962
Amount charged to profit or loss in the current period
— Service cost 158,203,598
— Interest expense on the net defined benefit obligations 10,735,000
Re-measurement amount
— Actuarial gain (Note 4(36)) (17,790,000)
Payment (21,302,709)
As at 31 December 2020 561,480,851

Present value of
the defined benefit
obligation

As at 1 January 2019

Amount charged to profit or loss in the current period

— Service cost

— Interest expense on the net defined benefit obligations
Re-measurement amount

— Actuarial gain (Note 4(36))

Payment

As at 31 December 2019

325,266,898

116,849,999
10,255,000

(907,000)
(19,829,935)

431,634,962
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(32) Long-term employee benefits payable (continued)

(b)  Supplemental post-employment benefits (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The significant actuarial assumptions for the present value of the defined benefit obligations of the Group are as
follows:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Discount rate 3.75% 3.25%

Mortality refers to China Life Insurance Mortality Table (2010-2013).

The salary growth rate of in-service personnel is determined by the group’s post-employment welfare policy and
the average social salary growth rate.

The sensitivity of the significant actuarial assumptions for the present value of defined benefit obligations is
analysed as follows:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
Discount rate 0.25% Decrease by 3.52% Increase by 3.73%

The sensitivity analyses above are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When
calculating the sensitivity analyses of present value of the defined benefit obligation, the same method, projected
unit credit method, has been applied as well.

The Group has not invested in any plan assets, and no separate trustee-administered assets to reimburse the
payment of the defined benefit obligation of the Group (31 December 2019: nil).

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligations is 14.5 years (31 December 2019: 11.3 years).
Supplemental post-employment benefits caused many risks to the Group, and the primary risk is the fluctuation
of the interest rates of government bonds. Decreasing in interest rates of government bonds results in increasing

in the defined benefit obligation.

As at 31 December 2020, the expected maturity of undiscounted defined benefit obligations is analysed as below:

More than
Within 1 year 1 to 5 years 5 years Total

Supplemental post-employment
benefits 22,301,789 98,848,211 1,215,110,000 1,336,260,000
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4

(33)

(34)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Share capital

31 December

Movements in the

31 December

2019 current year 2020

RMB-denominated ordinary shares (i) 695,913,617 13,200,000 709,113,617
Foreign shares listed overseas 655,069,178 - 655,069,178
1,350,982,795 13,200,000 1,364,182,795

31 December

Movements in the

31 December

2018 current year 2019
RMB-denominated ordinary shares 695,913,617 - 695,913,617
Foreign shares listed overseas 655,069,178 - 655,069,178

1,350,982,795

1,350,982,795

(i)  For the restricted A share incentive plan carried out by the Group this year, please refer to Note 12 for details.

Capital surplus

31 December

Increase in the

Decrease in the

31 December

2019 current year current year 2020
Share premium (i)(ii) 3,356,662,970 267,543,966 (179,393,414) 3,444,813,522
Other capital surplus — 87,654,485 142,823,616 - 230,478,101
Share of changes in equity other than
comprehensive income and profit
distribution of investees accounted for
using the equity method (10,196,463) 10,289 - (10,186,174)
Amount included in shareholders’ equity
in share payments (ii) - 142,725,847 - 142,725,847
Transfer from capital surplus recognized
under the previous accounting system 93,338,214 - - 93,338,214
Others 4,512,734 87,480 - 4,600,214
3,444,317,455 410,367,582 (179,393,414) 3,675,291,623
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(34) Capital surplus (continued)

31 December
2018

Increase in the
current year

Decrease in the
current year

31 December
2019

Share premium

3,356,662,970

131,143

3,356,662,970

Other capital surplus — 87,523,342 - 87,654,485
Share of changes of equity other than
comprehensive income and profits
distribution of investees accounted for
using the equity method (10,204,646) 8,183 - (10,196,463)
Transfer from capital surplus recognized
under the previous accounting system 93,338,214 - - 93,338,214
Others 4,389,774 122,960 - 4,512,734
3,444,186,312 131,143 - 3,444,317,455
(i)  On 10 January 2020, the Company completed the transfer of the 35% of the minority equity of Shandong Lulansa

(i)

Beer Co., Ltd. (“Lulansa Company”), a subsidiary of the Company, held by Shandong Huashi Beer Co., Ltd. And the
Company’s shareholding ratio in Lulansa Company increased from 55% to 90%. The capital surplus shall be adjusted
according to the difference between the newly increased long-term equity investment and the net assets continuously
calculated from the merger date with the newly increased shareholding ratio. The details are as follow:

Purchase cost — cash paid 241,818,181
Less: The shares of identifiable net assets of Lulansa Company continuously calculated from

the merger date shall be determined according to the newly acquired 35% equity ratio (62,424,767)

Adjustment of capital reserve 179,393,414

As stated in Note 12, the Company received a total of RMB279,576,000 of capital contributions from 627 incentive
participants in the restricted stock incentive plan. After the confirmed share capital was RMB13,200,000, the difference
of RMB266,376,000 was included in the capital surplus. In 2020, the Group confirmed the general and administration
expenses of RMB127,595,083 for the restricted stock incentive plan, and increased the capital surplus accordingly. At
the same time, the Group recognized deferred income tax assets of RMB44,341,848 for the temporary difference arising
from the recognition of equity incentive expenses, of which RMB28,856,747 was included in the income tax expense,
RMB354,337 was recognized as minority equity, and the difference of RMB15,130,764 was included in the capital
surplus.
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(35) Treasury stock

31 December Increase in the Decrease in the 31 December
2019 current year current year 2020
Treasury stock - 279,576,000 - 279,576,000

Since the Company has a repurchase obligation for the restricted stocks mentioned in Note 12 during the waiting period, the
Company recognized the repurchase obligation as the liability, and confirmed RMB279,576,000 for treasury stocks and other
payable respectively based on the number and the repurchase price of restricted stocks issued.

(36) Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income in the balance sheet Other comprehensive income in the income statement of 2020

Less: Transfer

out from
which were
recognized
in other Attributable
Attributable to comprehensive Attributable to to the non-
shareholders of The pre-tax income in shareholders of controlling
31 December  the Company, 31 December  amountinthe the previous  Less: Income  the Company, interests,
2019 net of tax 2020 current year periods tax expense net of tax net of tax
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss
Changes arising from re-measurement of
defined benefit plan liabilities
(Note 4(32)(b)(ii)) (49,361,000 17,790,000 (31,571,000) 17,790,000 — - 17,790,000
Items that will be subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss
Shares of other comprehensive income of
investees accounted for using the equity
method that will be subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss (657,778) 72,326 (585,452) 72,326 - - 12,326
Currency translation differences 2,671,145 9,633,968 12,305,113 9,633,968 - - 9,633,968

@60) 27496294 (19851339) 27496294 . - 21496294
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(36) Other comprehensive income (continued)

Other comprehensive income in the balance sheet

Other comprehensive income in the income statement of 2019

Less: Transfer

out from
which were
recognized
in other Attributable
Attributable to comprehensive Attributable to to the non-
shareholders of The pre-tax income in shareholders of controlling
31 December ~ the Company, 31 December ~ amount in the the previous  Less: Income  the Company, interests,
2018 net of tax 2019 current year periods tax expense net of tax net of tax
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss
Changes arising from re-measurement of
defined benefit plan liabilities
(Note 4(32)(b)(ii)) (50,268,000 907,000 (49,361,000) 907,000 907,000
Items that will be subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss
Shares of other comprehensive income of
investees accounted for using the equity
method that will be subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss (667,191) 9413 (657,778) 9413 9413
Currency translation differences 6,238,387 (3,567,242) 2,671,145 (3,567,242) (3,567,242
(44,696,804) (2,650,829)  (47,347,633) (2,650,829) (2,650,829)

(37) Surplus reserve

31 December
2019

Appropriation in
the current year

Decrease in the
current year

31 December
2020

Statutory surplus reserve

1,400,704,380

1,400,704,380

31 December
2018

Appropriation in
the current year

Decrease in the
current year

31 December
2019

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law and the Company’s Articles of Association, the Company should appropriate 10% of
net profit for the year to the statutory surplus reserve, and the Company can cease appropriation when the statutory surplus
reserve accumulated to more than 50% of the registered capital. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for
the loss or increase the share capital after approval from the appropriate authorities. According to the resolutions of the 15th

1,400,704,380

1,400,704,380

meeting of the 9th Board of Directors, the Company would not appropriate the statutory surplus reserve in 2020 (2019: nil).

309



310 # &Ml kM A R AR TSINGTAO BREWERY CO., LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(38) General reserve

31 December
2019

Appropriation in
the current year

Decrease in the
current year

31 December
2020

General reserve 234,715,680

25,628,874

260,344,554

31 December
2018

Appropriation in
the current year

Decrease in the
current year

31 December
2019

General reserve 199,512,331

35,203,349

234,715,680

Pursuant to Caijin [2012] No. 20 “Requirements on Impairment Allowance for Financial Institutions” issued by the Ministry

of Finance, Finance Company, a subsidiary of the Company, according to 1.5% of the ending balance of the risk assets at

Balance sheet date based on its risk consideration.

(39) Undistributed profits

2020 2019
Undistributed profits at the beginning of the period 12,788,210,357 11,619,782,072

Add: Net profit attributable to sharecholders of the Company for the current
period 2,201,323,556 1,852,103,376
Less: appropriated general reserve (25,628,874) (35,203,349)
Ordinary shares dividend payable (@) (743,040,537) (648,471,742)
Undistributed profits at the end of the period 14,220,864,502 12,788,210,357

(a)  Pursuant to the resolution at the Annual General Meeting dated 8 June 2020, the Company approved a cash dividend of
RMBO0.55 per share (tax included) to the shareholders of the Company with RMB743,040,537, based on a total number
of 1,350,982,795 shares (2019: cash dividend of RMB0.48 per share (tax included) to the shareholders of the Company
with RMB648,471,742, based on a total number of 1,350,982,795 share).

Pursuant to the decision of the Board of Directors on 26 March 2021, the Board of Directors proposed that the
Company should approve a cash dividend RMBO0.75 per share (tax included) to the shareholders of the Company
with RMB1,023,137,096, based on a total number of 1,364,182,795. The above proposal is subject to approval at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting (Note 10).
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(40) Revenue and cost of sales

2020 2019
Revenue from main operation (a) 27,337,977,919 27,618,479,426
Revenue from other operations (b) 421,733,007 365,280,937
27,759,710,926 27,983,760,363
2020 2019
Cost of main operation (@) (16,236,204,483) (16,862,865,858)
Cost of other operations (b) (304,405,141) (217,577,424)
(16,540,609,624) (17,080,443,282)

(@) Revenue and cost of main operation

2020 2019

Revenue from Cost of main Revenue from Cost of main
main operation operation main operation operation

Sales of beer, etc.

(b) Revenue and cost of other operations

27,337,977,919  (16,236,204,483)  27,618,479,426

(16,862,865,858)

2020

2019

Revenue from Cost of Revenue from
other operations other operations other operations

Cost of
other operations

Sale of raw materials

Sale of packaging materials
Transportation services

Construction and equipment installations
Others

126,789,266 (125,408,322) 24,825,563 (23,336,283)
63,443,783 (33,870,435) 92,545,784 (69,325,655)
34,325,848 (41,388,337) 35,375,733 (43,167,191)
13,185,994 (10,615,445) 2,320,124 (1,900,902)

183,988,116 (93,122,602) 210,213,733 (79,847,393)

421,733,007 (304,405,141) 365,280,937 (217,577,424)
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(41) Taxes and surcharges
2020 2019 Tax base
Consumption tax 1,670,968,049 1,741,751,782 Note 3
City maintenance and construction tax 224,269,519 234,094,099 Note 3
Education surcharges 169,702,554 176,064,841 Note 3
Real estate tax 57,257,021 61,093,344
Land use tax 55,081,454 59,972,034
Stamp duty 26,024,477 25,222,029
Others 15,769,025 15,124,664
2,219,072,099 2,313,322,793
(42) Selling and distribution Expenses
2020 2019
Employee benefits expenses 2,104,370,364 2,150,363,056
Handling and transportation expenses 1,411,372,302 1,452,646,607
Advertising related expenses 912,164,038 957,914,513
Depreciation and amortisation charges 120,441,252 109,298,505
Administrative expenses 118,082,929 146,423,688
Operating lease payments 86,649,299 81,204,578
Labour expense 82,090,009 76,468,523
Material consumptions 73,781,920 62,966,690
Other expenses 75,597,724 66,219,574
4,984,549,837 5,103,505,734
(43) General and administrative expenses

2020

2019

Employee benefits expenses

994,053,111

1,315,762,340

Depreciation and amortisation charges 207,345,977 198,778,033
Share-based payment fees 127,595,083 -
Administrative expenses 86,866,131 106,250,628
Agency fees 57,480,464 50,024,212
Repair expenses 36,256,847 39,513,959
Fire control expenses to guards 32,026,447 335155590
Insurance expenses 22,462,565 23,009,286
Disabled security fund 15,236,688 13,834,412
Handling and transportation expenses 10,130,987 8,277,059
Material consumption 9,089,772 11,662,706
Labour expenses 8,943,807 9,635,574
Other expenses 70,562,843 71,149,370

1,678,050,722

1,881,053,486
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(44) Research and development expenses

2020 2019

Employee benefits expenses 13,757,576 13,573,205
Depreciation charges 2,243,444 2,380,795
Material consumptions 1,679,201 1,868,632
Administrative expenses 371,963 535,305
Other expenses 3,414,908 2,730,773
21,467,092 21,088,710

(45) Financing Expenses

2020 2019

Interest payment 13,662,682 13,621,266
Less: Interest income (524,029,340) (514,830,422)
Exchange loss/gains 11,850,797 (7,651,241)
Discounted interest on long-term employee compensation payable 18,594,608 18,836,797
Interest expense on lease liabilities 5,467,871 2,377,391
Other 3,531,922 3,473,993
(470,921,460) (484,172,216)

(46) Expenses by nature

The cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses, general and administrative expenses and research and development
expenses in the income statement classified by nature are as follows:

2020 2019

Raw materials, packaging materials and consumables used 12,021,846,574 12,652,771,083
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress (5,917,047) (363,312,442)
Finished goods purchased from outside 1,083,710,354 1,178,041,212
Employee benefits expenses 5,041,943,622 5,556,837,710
Handling and transportation expenses 1,573,600,777 1,625,262,209
Depreciation and amortisation charges 1,153,665,668 1,129,093,862
Advertising related expenses 912,164,038 957,914,513
Repair expenses 386,985,564 381,461,691
Labour expenses 217,680,554 238,905,806
Administrative expenses 211,633,891 262,220,198
Share-based payment fees 127,595,083 -
Operating lease payments 111,423,398 98,380,929
Auditors’ remuneration — audit services 8,094,340 8,094,340
Other expenses 380,250,459 360,420,101
23,224,677,275 24,086,091,212

As mentioned in Note 2(25), the Group directly included the rental expenses for short-term leases and low-value leases in the
current profit and loss. The amount for 2020 is RMB111,423,398 (2019: RMB98,380,929).



314 #HEMHKMBARAA TSINGTAO BREWERY CO., LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

(47) Asset impairment losses

2020 2019
Impairment reversals of inventories - (288,110)
Impairment losses of fixed assets 130,553,700 121,339,530
130,553,700 121,051,420

(48) Credit impairment losses
2020 2019
Reversals of bad debts of accounts receivable (443,364) (5,075,048)
Reversals of bad debts of other receivables (1,021,476) (2,088,922)
(Reversals)/Losses of bad debts of other current assets (109,319) 72,759
(1,574,159) (7,091,211)

(49) Other income

Related to assets/

2020 2019 income
Grant for company development 220,226,616 162,390,828 Income
Grant for relocation projects 190,715,598 220,025,891 Assets/Income
Grant for technology improvement projects 5,510,015 3,504,802 Assets
Grant for other production and operation 100,596,607 216,976,175 Assets/Income

517,048,836 602,897,696
(50) Investment income
2020 2019

Investment income from long-term equity investments accounted for using

the equity method 18,098,320 21,182,903

Fund investment dividends and investment income obtained at the time of
disposal 3,663,876 569,795
Investment income from the disposal of wealth management products 2,928,887 2,659,221
Others 552,513 96,847
25,243,596 24,508,766

There is no significant restriction on transferring funds in the form of investment income.
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(51) Profits arising from changes in fair value

2020 2019

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss —
Wealth management products 57,966,546 56,338,061
Fund investment (2,873,912) 416,390
55,092,634 56,754,451

(52) Gains on disposals of assets

2020 2019
(Loss)/Gains on disposal of fixed assets (8,886,580) 4,322,131
Gains on disposal of intangible assets 3,682,564 54,848,420
(5,204,016) 59,170,551

For Year ended 31 December 2020, all gains on disposals of assets have been regarded as non-recurring profit or loss in the

current year.

(53) Non-operating income

2020 2019

Donation gains 3,935,304 15,855
Gains on unpaid debts 3,596,653 27,017,252
Penalty gains 1,935,364 2,835,648
Others 5,119,571 4,795,836
14,586,892 34,664,591

For the year ended 31 December 2020, all non-operating income has been regarded as non-recurring profit or loss in the

current year.

(54) Non-operating expenses

2020 2019

Donations 13,578,673 3,116,338
Compensations, defaults and overdue fines 10,416,965 668,606
Others 1,126,451 1,858,647
25,122,089 5,643,591

For the year ended 31 December 2020, all non-operating expenses have been regard as non-recurring profit or loss in the

current year.
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(55

(56)

Income tax expense

2020 2019

Current income tax calculated according to tax law and related regulations in
mainland China — China enterprise income tax 1,190,529,816 1,064,649,714

Current profits tax calculated according to tax law and related regulations in
Hong Kong — Hong Kong profits tax 1,136,338 1,589,540

Current profits supplemental tax calculated according to tax law and related
regulations in Macau — Macau profits supplemental tax 657,402 716,028
Deferred income tax (279,743,037) (269,160,846)
912,580,519 797,794,436

The reconciliation from income tax calculated based on the applicable tax rates and total profit presented in the consolidated

financial statements to the income tax expense is listed below:

2020 2019

Total profit 3,239,549,324 2,726,910,829
Income tax expense calculated at applicable tax rates 809,445,498 680,439,443
Tax impact of equivalent sales and costs, expenses and losses not deductible

for tax purpose 28,736,725 51,299,027
Income not subject to tax (20,076,572) (20,264,893)
Impact of utilisation of deductible tax losses and temporary differences

previously unrecognized deferred tax assets (74,776,247) (78,522,279)
Deductible temporary differences of currently unrecognized deferred tax assets 100,917,885 91,566,667
Deductible tax losses of currently unrecognized deferred tax assets 68,333,230 73,276,471
Income tax expense 912,580,519 797,794,436

Earnings per share

(@) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the

Company by the weighted average numbers of ordinary shares outstanding:

2020 2019
Consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company 2,201,323,556 1,852,103,376
Weighted average numbers of ordinary shares outstanding 1,350,982,795 1,350,982,795
Basic earnings per share 1.629 1.371
Including:
— Basic earnings per share from continuing operations 1.629 1.371
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
(56) Earnings per share (continued)
(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of

the Company adjusted based on the dilutive potential ordinary share by the adjusted weighted average number of the
Company’s ordinary shares outstanding. In 2020, the restricted stock incentive plan implemented by the Company has a

dilutive effect on earnings per share, which is calculated as follows:

2020 2019
Consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company 2,201,323,556 1,852,103,376
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 1,350,982,795 1,350,982,795
Weighted average number of ordinary shares increased due to share-
based payment 1,751,325 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding after dilution 1,352,734,120 1,350,982,795
Diluted earnings per share 1.627 1.371
Including:
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations: 1.627 1.371
(57) Notes to consolidated cash flow statement
(@) Cash received relating to other operating activities
2020 2019
Government grants 923,295,281 930,330,968
Guarantee deposits 489,054,199 578,691,077
Others 320,766,255 298,939,558
1,733,115,735 1,807,961,603
(b) Cash paid relating to other operating activities
2020 2019
Handling and transportation expenses 1,708,162,695 1,729,099,433
Marketing and promotion expenses 879,315,992 881,200,305
Advertising related expenses 859,421,404 864,209,880
Administrative expenses 302,408,707 330,837,510
Guarantee deposits 259,760,637 270,119,230
Others 358,191,328 290,734,488

4,367,260,763

4,366,200,846




318 #H B MA kM AR AR TSINGTAO BREWERY CO., LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)
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(57) Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

(c) Cash received relating to other investing activities

2020 2019
Interest income of Finance Company’s deposits 287,446,225 434,734,109
Deposit reserve withdrew by Finance Company - 242,730,000
Bidding deposits and others received 20,627,819 24,003,265
308,074,044 701,467,374

(d) Cash paid relating to other investing activities
2020 2019
Bidding deposits and others paid 80,732,096 21,103,503
Deposit reserve paid by Finance Company 58,060,000 -
138,792,096 21,103,503

(e) Cash paid relating to other financing activities
2020 2019
Purchase of minority equity (note 34(i)) 241,818,181 -
Repayment of lease liabilities 52,301,898 24,909,652
294,120,079 24,909,652

For the year ended 31 December 2020, total cash outflows related to lease paid by the Group is 142,190,422. Other
cash outflows are recognized into operating activities except repayment of lease liabilities recognized in financing
activities mentioned above.
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(58) Supplementary information to consolidated cash flow statement

(@)

(b)

Supplementary information to consolidated cash flow statement

Reconciliation from net profit to cash flows from operating activities:

2020 2019
Net profit 2,326,968,805 1,929,116,393
Add: Provision for asset impairment 130,553,700 121,051,420
Reversal for credit impairment (1,574,159) (7,091,211)
Depreciation of fixed assets and investment properties 901,029,928 895,214,367
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 40,082,841 22,855,802
Amortisation of intangible assets 203,938,872 206,805,092
Amortisation of long-term prepaid expenses 17,639,686 12,757,690
Loss/(Gains) on disposal of fixed assets and intangible assets 5,204,016 (59,170,551)
Profits arising from changes in fair value (55,092,634) (56,754,451)
Finance expenses (287,546,867) (355,960,329)
Investment income (25,243,596) (24,508,766)
Increase in deferred tax assets (263,272,093) (248,015,145)
Amortisation of deferred income (273,845,852) (352,516,154)
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities (16,470,944) (21,145,701)
Increase in inventories (100,786,072) (527,207,115)
Decrease in operating receivables 65,871,994 73,952,901
Increase in operating payables 2,285,964,737 2,407,168,337
Net cash flows from operating activities 4,953,422,362 4,016,552,579
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
2020 2019
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 17,643,123,424 14,557,393,355
Less: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (14,557,393,355) (11,653,288,328)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,085,730,069 2,904,105,027

Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4(1)) 17,643,123,424 14,557,393,355
Including: Cash on hand 252,872 203,723
Cash at bank that can be readily drawn on demand 17,641,304,930 14,556,264,884

Cash at non-financial institutions that can be readily
drawn on demand 1,565,622 924,748
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 17,643,123,424 14,557,393,355
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4  Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
(59) Foreign currency items

31 December 2020

Balance
in foreign Currency Balance in
currency exchange rate RMB
Cash at bank and cash on hand —
USD 38,070,846 6.5249 248,408,463
HKD 75,336,230 0.8416 63,402,971
MOP 23,268,243 0.8172 19,014,808
EUR 1,665,241 8.0250 13,363,559
VND 17,598,349,105 0.0003 5,279,505
349,469,306
Accounts receivable —
USD 4,245,535 6.5249 27,701,691
HKD 24,127,831 0.8416 20,305,983
EUR 1,056,264 8.0250 8,476,519
GBP 579,961 8.8903 5,156,027
CAD 291,876 5.1161 1,493,267
63,133,487
Other receivables —
HKD 1,256,735 0.8416 1,057,668
MOP 341,053 0.8172 278,709
VND 313,800,000 0.0003 94,140
1,430,517
Short-term borrowings —
HKD 300,000,000 0.8416 252,480,000
Other payables —
USD 962,928 6.5249 6,283,009
Current portion of non-current liabilities —
DKK 200,000 1.0786 215,720

Foreign currency monetary item mentioned above refers to all currencies other than RMB (the scope is different from the
foreign currency items in Note 11(1)(a)).
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5 Changes in consolidation scope

As at 4 June 2020, the Company established Tsingtao Brewery (Zaozhuang) Co., Ltd. (“Zaozhuang Company”) with a
registered capital of RMB200,000,000. As at 31 December 2020, the Company has actually contributed RMB150,000,000 in

cash.

As at 11 July 2020, Hong Kong company, a subsidiary of the Company, established Vietnam Company with a registered
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capital of USD1,000,000. As at 31 December 2020, Hong Kong Company has actually contributed USD1,000,000 in cash.

As at 6 March 2020, the Company’s subsidiary Tsingtao Brewery Cultural Communication Co., Ltd. (“Cultural
Communication Company”) established Tsingtao Brewery (West Coast) Cultural Tourism Development Co., Ltd. (“West
Coast Cultural Tourism™) with a registered capital of RMB9,000,000. As at 31 December 2020, Cultural Communication
Company has actually contributed RMB9,000,000 in cash. As at 30 November 2020, the Company subscribed a registered
capital of RMB171,000,000 to increase the capital of West Coast Cultural Tourism. As at 31 December 2020, the Company

had actually contributed RMB30,000,000 in cash.

6 Interests in other entities
(1) Interests in subsidiaries

(@) The structure of the Group

Registered
Place of Place of Principal capital Share proportion

Name operation incorporation activities RMB Directly  Indirectly  Acquisition method

Shenzhen Tsingtao Brewery Huanan Shenzhen, the PRC  Shenzhen, the PRC ~ Financing 200,000,000 100% Establishment or
Holding Co., Ltd. (“Huanan Holding investment
Company”)

Tsingtao Brewery (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. Zhuhai, the PRC ~ Zhuhai, the PRC Manufacturing 60,000,000 100%  Establishment or
(“Zhuhai Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Huangshi) Co., Ltd. ~ Huangshi, the PRC  Huangshi, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 168,630,000 97.18% 2.82%  Establishment or
(“Huangshi Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Yingcheng) Co., Ltd. ~ Yingcheng, the PRC  Yingcheng, the PRC  Manufacturing 47,070,000 89.91% 10.09%  Establishment or
(“Yingcheng Company”) investment
Shenzhen Huanan Tsingtao Brewery Guangdong, the Shenzhen, the PRC~ Wholesale and retail 20,000,000 100% Establishment or
Sales Co., Ltd. (“Huanan Sales PRC sale investment

Company”)

Tsingtao Brewery (Changsha) Co., Ltd. ~ Changsha, the PRC ~ Changsha, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 68,000,000 70% 30%  Establishment or
(“Changsha Company”) investment
Shanghai Tsingtao Brewery Huadong ~ Shanghai, the PRC ~ Shanghai, the PRC ~ Wholesale and retail 100,000,000 100% Establishment or
(Holding) Co., Ltd. (“Huadong sale investment

Holding Company”)

Tsingtao Brewery Huadong Shanghai  Shanghai, the PRC ~ Shanghai, the PRC ~ Wholesale and retail 100,300,000 97.01% 2.99%  Establishment or
Sales Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Sales sale investment
Company”)

Nanjing Tsingtao Brewery Huadong Jiangsu, the PRC ~ Nanjing, the PRC ~ Wholesale and retail 1,000,000 100%  Establishment or
Sales Co., Ltd. sale investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Wuhu) Co., Ltd. Wuhu, the PRC Wuhu, the PRC Manufacturing 314,290,000 94.27% 5.73%  Establishment or
(“Wuhu Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Maanshan) Co., Ltd. ~ Maanshan, the PRC  Maanshan, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 85,000,000 94.12% 5.58%  Establishment or

(“Maanshan Company”)

investment
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6 Interests in other entities (continued)

1

(@)

Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

The structure of the Group (continued)

Registered
Place of Place of Principal capital Share proportion
Name operation incorporation activities RMB Directly  Indirectly  Acquisition method
Tsingtao Brewery (Shouguang) Co., Ltd. ~Shouguang, the Shouguang, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 60,600,060 99% Establishment or
(“Shouguang Company”) PRC investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Weifang) Co., Ltd. ~ Weifang, the PRC ~ Weifang, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 75,000,000 100% Establishment or
(“Weifang Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Xuzhou) Huaihai Jiangsu, the PRC  Xuzhou, the PRC Wholesale and retail 131,000,000 100%  Establishment or
Sales Co., Ltd. sale investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Xuecheng) Co., Ltd. ~ Xuecheng, the PRC ~ Xuecheng, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 45,000,000 85%  Establishment or
(“Xuecheng Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Tengzhou) Co., Ltd. ~ Tengzhou, the PRC ~ Tengzhou, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 61,020,000 76.65% 23.35%  Establishment or
(“Tengzhou Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Heze) Co., Ltd. Heze, the PRC Heze, the PRC Manufacturing 130,000,000 93.08% 6.92%  Establishment or
(“Heze Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Langfang) Co., Ltd. ~ Langfang, the PRC  Langfang, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 99,000,000 80.80% 19.20%  Establishment or
(“Langfang Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery Xi'an Han’s Group ~ Shaanxi, the PRC  Xi'an, the PRC Manufacturing and 287,903,022 100% Establishment or
Co., Ltd. (“Xi’an Han’s") Wholesale and investment
retail sale
Tsingtao Brewery Baoji Co., Ltd. Baoji, the PRC Baoji, the PRC Manufacturing 130,000,000 100%  Establishment or
(“Baoji Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Anshan) Co., Ltd. Anshan, the PRC ~ Anshan, the PRC Manufacturing 50,000,000 60% Establishment or
(“Anshan Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Xingkaihu) Co., Ltd. ~ Jixi, the PRC Jixi, the PRC Manufacturing 200,000,000 100% Establishment or
(“Xingkaihu Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Mishan) Co., Ltd. ~ Mishan, the PRC ~ Mishan, the PRC Manufacturing 118,000,000 100% Establishment or
(“Mishan Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Harbin) Co., Ltd. Harbin, the PRC ~ Harbin, the PRC Manufacturing 155,600,000 100% Establishment or
(“Harbin Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery International Trade ~ Qingdao, the PRC  Qingdao, the PRC ~ Wholesale and retail 11,000,000 100% Establishment or
Co., Ltd. (“International Trade”) sale investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Dezhou) Co., Ltd. ~ Pingyuan, the PRC  Pingyuan, the PRC  Manufacturing 25,000,000 100% Establishment or
(“Dezhou Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Rizhao) Co., Ltd. Rizhao, the PRC Rizhao, the PRC Manufacturing 290,000,000 100% Establishment or
(“Rizhao Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Luzhou) Co., Ltd. ~ Luzhou, the PRC  Luzhou, the PRC Manufacturing 111,110,000 95% Establishment or
(“Luzhou Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Taizhou) Co., Ltd. ~ Taizhou, the PRC ~ Taizhou, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 70,000,000 86.43% 13.57%  Establishment or
(“Taizhou Company”) investment
Hong Kong Company Hong Kong, the Hong Kong, the PRC - Wholesale and retail 40,500,000HKD 100% Establishment or
PRC sale investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Hanzhong) Co., Ltd. ~ Hanzhong, the PRC  Hanzhong, the PRC  Manufacturing 29,410,000 34% 66%  Establishment or
(“Hanzhong Company”) investment
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6 Interests in other entities (continued)

(1) Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

(@)

The structure of the Group (continued)
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Registered
Place of Place of Principal capital Share proportion
Name operation incorporation activities RMB Directly  Indirectly  Acquisition method
Beijing Tsingtao Brewery Beifang Sales  Beijing, the PRC  Beijing, the PRC Wholesale and retail 89,980,000 95% 5% Establishment or
Co., Ltd. (“Beifang Sales Company”) sale investment
Qingdao Guangrunlong Logistics Co.,  Shandong, the PRC  Qingdao, the PRC  Logistics 6,184,000 100% Establishment or
Ltd. (“Guangrunlong Logistics”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Xiamen) Co., Ltd. ~ Xiamen, the PRC ~ Xiamen, the PRC Manufacturing 90,000,000 100%  Establishment or
(“Xiamen Company”) investment
Xiamen Tsingtao Brewery Dongnan Fujian, the PRC Xiamen, the PRC Wholesale and retail 215,000,000 100% Establishment or
Sales Co., Ltd. (“Dongnan Sales sale investment
Company”)

Tsingtao Brewery (Jinan) Co., Ltd. Jinan, the PRC Jinan, the PRC Manufacturing 560,000,000 100% Establishment or
(“Jinan Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Chengdu) Co., Ltd. ~ Chengdu, the PRC ~ Chengdu, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 280,000,000 100% Establishment or
(“Chengdu Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Yulin) Co., Ltd. Yulin, the PRC Yulin, the PRC Manufacturing 55,000,000 100%  Establishment or

investment
Tsingtao Brewery Chengyang Sales Co., Qingdao, the PRC  Qingdao, the PRC ~ Wholesale and retail 8,000,000 100% Establishment or
Ltd. (“Chengyang Sales Company”) sale investment
Tsingtao Brewery Chenzhou Sales Chenzhou, the PRC ~ Chenzhou, the PRC ~ Wholesale and retail 1,000,000 100%  Establishment or
Co., Ltd. sale investment
Machinery and Equipment Company ~ Qingdao, the PRC ~ Qingdao, the PRC  Construction 2,000,000 100%  Establishment or
investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Shijiazhuang) Co.,  Shijiazhuang, the  Shijiazhuang, the Manufacturing 321,010,000 100% Establishment or
Ltd. (“Shijiazhuang Company”) PRC PRC investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Taiyuan) Co., Ltd. ~ Taiyuan, the PRC ~ Taiyuan, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 200,000,000 100% Establishment or
(“Taiyuan Company”) investment
Finance Company Qingdao, the PRC  Qingdao, the PRC  Financing 1,000,000,000 100% Establishment or
investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Jieyang) Co., Ltd. ~ lJieyang, the PRC  Jieyang, the PRC Manufacturing 200,000,000 75% Establishment or
(“Jieyang Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Shaoguan) Co., Ltd. ~ Shaoguan, the PRC ~ Shaoguan, the PRC  Manufacturing 200,000,000 100% Establishment or
(“Shaoguan Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Electronic Qingdao, the PRC  Qingdao, the PRC  Wholesale and retail 8,000,000 100% Establishment or
Commerce) Co., Ltd. (“Electornic sale investment
Commerce Company”)

Tsingtao Brewery (Jiujiang) Co., Ltd.  Jivjiang, the PRC ~ Jiujiang, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 200,000,000 90% Establishment or
(“Jivjiang Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Pingdu) Sales Co.,  Qingdao, the PRC ~ Qingdao, the PRC ~ Wholesale and retail 5,000,000 100% Establishment or
Ltd. (“Pingdu Sales Company”) sale investment
Shanghai Tsingtao Brewery Sales Shanghai, the PRC ~ Shanghai, the PRC ~ Wholesale and retail 96,300,000 100%  Establishment or
Co., Ltd sale investment
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6 Interests in other entities (continued)
(1) Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

(@) The structure of the Group (continued)

Registered
Place of Place of Principal capital Share proportion
Name operation incorporation activities RMB Directly  Indirectly  Acquisition method
Tsingtao Brewery (Xuzhou) Enterprise ~ Xuzhou, the PRC ~ Xuzhou, the PRC Wholesale and retail 10,000,000 100% - Establishment or
Management Service Co., Ltd. sale investment
(“Xuzhou Enterprise Management”)
Tsingtao Brewery (Luoyang) Co., Ltd. ~ Luoyang, the PRC ~ Luoyang, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 200,000,000 100% - Establishment or
(“Luoyang Company”) investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Shanghai) industrial ~ Shanghai, the PRC ~ Shanghai, the PRC ~ Wholesale and retail 416,800,000 100% - Establishment or
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Industrial sale investment
Company”)
Tsingtao Brewery (Zhangjiakou) Co.,  Zhangjiakou, the ~ Zhangjiakou, the Manufacturing 200,000,000 100% - Establishment or
Ltd. (“Zhangjiakou company”) PRC PRC investment
Vietnam Company Vietnam, the PRC ~ Vietnam, the PRC ~ Wholesale and retail 1,000,000USD - 100%  Establishment or
sale investment
Zaozhuang Company Zaozhuang, the PRC  Zaozhuang, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 200,000,000 100% - Establishment or
investment
West Coast Culture Tourism Qingdao, the PRC  Qingdao, the PRC  Wholesale 180,000,000 95% 5%  Establishment or
investment
Shanghai Tsingtao Catering Shanghai, the PRC ~ Shanghai, the PRC  Services 12,000,000 - 68%  Establishment or
Management Co.,Ltd investment
Tsingtao Brewery (Sanshui) Co., Ltd. ~ Sanshui, the PRC  Sanshui, the PRC Manufacturing 5,000,000USD - 75%  Business combination
(“Sanshui Company”) not under common
control
Tsingtao Brewery (Chenzhou) Co., Ltd. ~ Chenzhou, the PRC ~ Chenzhou, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 70,000,000 88.80% 11.20%  Business combination
(“Chenzhou Company”) not under common
control
Shenzhen Tsingtao Brewery Asahi Co., ~ Shenzhen, the PRC ~ Shenzhen, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 30,000,000USD 51% - Business combination
Ltd. (“Shenzhen Asahi”) not under common
control
Nanning Tsingtao Brewery Co., Ltd. Nanning, the PRC ~ Nanning, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 730,000,000 - 75%  Business combination
not under common
control
Beijing Tsingtao Brewery Three Ring ~ Beijing, the PRC ~ Beijing, the PRC Manufacturing 29,800,000USD 29% 25%  Business combination
Co., Ltd. (“Three Ring Company”) not under common
control
Beijing Tsingtao Brewery Five Star Co., Beijing, the PRC  Beijing, the PRC Manufacturing 862,000,000 37.64% 25%  Business combination
Ltd. (“Five Star Company”) not under common
control
Tsingtao Brewery (Weinan) Co., Ltd. ~ Weinan, the PRC  Weinan, the PRC Manufacturing 50,000,000 28% 72%  Business combination
(“Weinan Company”) not under common
control
Tsingtao Brewery (Gansu) Co., Ltd. Lanzhou, the PRC  Lanzhou, the PRC  Manufacturing 174,420,800 - 55.060%  Business combination
(“Gansu Nongken Company”) not under common

control
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6 Interests in other entities (continued)
(1) Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

(@) The structure of the Group (continued)

Registered
Place of Place of Principal capital Share proportion
Name operation incorporation activities RMB Directly  Indirectly  Acquisition method
Tsingtao Brewery (Wuwei) Co., Ltd. Wuwei, the PRC ~ Wuwei, the PRC Manufacturing 36,100,000 - 99.72%  Business combination
not under common
control
Tsingtao Brewery (Rongeheng) Co., Ltd. Rongcheng, the Rongcheng, the PRC  Manufacturing 20,000,000 70% - Business combination
(“Rongcheng Company”) PRC not under common
control
Tsingtao Brewery (Suizhou) Co., Ltd. ~ Suizhou, the PRC  Suizhou, the PRC Manufacturing 24,000,000 - 90%  Business combination
not under common
control
Tsingtao Brewery (Fuzhou) Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC ~ Fuzhou, the PRC Manufacturing 26,828,100USD - 100%  Business combination
not under common
control
Tsingtao Brewery (Zhangzhou) Co., Ltd. ~Zhangzhou, the Zhangzhou, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 100,000,000 - 90%  Business combination
PRC not under common
control
Construction Company Qingdao, the PRC  Qingdao, the PRC  Construction 13,142,176 100% - Business combination
not under common
control
Tsingtao Brewery (Penglai) Co., Ltd. ~ Penglai, the PRC ~ Penglai, the PRC Manufacturing 37,500,000 80% - Business combination
(“Penglai Company”) not under common
control
Cultural Communication Company Qingdao, the PRC  Qingdao, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 3,500,000 100% - Business combination
not under common
control
Tsingtao Brewery Beverage Co., Ltd. ~ Qingdao, the PRC  Qingdao, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 130,000,000 100% - Business combination
(“Beverage Company”) not under common
control
Immense Brewery Company Shandong, the PRC ~ Mengyin, the PRC Manufacturing 18,760,000USD 5% 25%  Business combination
Wholesale and not under common
retail sale control
Tsingtao Brewery (Hangzhou) Co., Ltd.  Jiande, the PRC Jiande, the PRC Manufacturing 230,000,000 80% - Business combination
(“Hangzhou Company”) not under common
control
Macau Company Macau, the PRC~ Macau, the PRC Wholesale and retail ~ 200,000MOP - 60%  Business combination
sale not under common
control
Tsingto Brewery (Shanghai) Market Shanghai, the PRC ~ Shanghai, the PRC~ Wholesale and retail 334,578,898 - 100%  Business combination
Service Co., Ltd. sale not under common
control
Shandong Lulansa Brewery Co., Ltd. ~ Zibo, the PRC Zibo, the PRC Manufacturing 100,000,000 90% - Business combination
(“Lulansa Company”) not under common

control
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6

1

Interests in other entities (continued)

Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

(@)

The structure of the Group (continued)

Registered
Place of Place of Principal capital Share proportion
Name operation incorporation activities RMB Directly  Indirectly  Acquisition method
Equipment Manufacture Company Qingdao, the PRC  Qingdao, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 2,897,600 100%  Business combination
not under common
control
Tsingtao Brewery (Shanghai) Investing ~ Shanghai, the PRC ~ Shanghai, the PRC  Financing 907,320,000 100% Business combination
Co., Ltd (“Shanghai Investing not under common
Company”) control
Tsingtao Brewery Shanghai Songjiang  Shanghai, the PRC ~ Shanghai, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 50,000,000 100%  Business combination
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. not under common
control
Tsingto Brewery (Sugian) Co., Ltd. Sugian, the PRC Sugian, the PRC Manufacturing 100,000,000 5% 25%  Business combination
(“Sugian Company”) not under common
control
Tsingto Brewery (Xuzhou) Pengcheng ~ Xuzhou, the PRC ~ Xuzhou, the PRC Manufacturing 155,000,000 100%  Business combination
Co.,Ltd. not under common
control
Tsingtao Brewery (Xuzhou) Co., Ltd. ~ Xuzhou, the PRC ~ Xuzhou, the PRC Manufacturing 39,336,899 100%  Business combination
not under common
control
Tsingtao Brewery (Yangzhou) Co., Ltd. ~ Yangzhou, the PRC ~ Yangzhou, the PRC  Manufacturing 200,000,000 50% 50%  Business combination
(“Yangzhou Company”) not under common
control
Tsingto Brewery (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. ~ Kunshan, the PRC ~ Kunshan, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 731,535,952 100%  Business combination
(“Kunshan Company”) not under common
control
Tsingto Brewery (Lianyungang) Lianyungang, the ~ Lianyungang, the Manufacturing 166,093,523 100%  Business combination
Co., Ltd. PRC PRC not under common
control
Tsingto Brewery (Minhang) Co., Ltd. ~ Shanghai, the PRC ~ Shanghai, the PRC ~ Manufacturing 377,251,025 96.50%  Business combination

not under common
control

Except Gansu Nongken, whose corporate category is incorporated company by shares, all of the above mentioned

subsidiaries are limited liability companies.

There are no restrictions on using the assets of the Group or settling the liabilities of the Group.
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6 Interests in other entities (continued)
(1) Interests in subsidiaries (continued)
(b)  Subsidiaries with significant non-controlling interests

Total dividends

Share Non-controlling distributed to Non-controlling

proportion of interests for the the minority interests as at

non-controlling year ended 31 shareholders in 31 December

Name of subsidiaries interests December 2020 2020 2020
Shenzhen Asahi 49% 41,040,613 (40,880,700) 223,538,715

Summarised financial information of significant non-wholly owned subsidiaries is as follows:

As at 31 December 2020
Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
assets assets assets liabilities liabilities liabilities
Shenzhen Asahi 253,771,498 413,666,957 667,438,455 (203,214,461) (7,352,839) (210,567,300)

As at 31 December 2019

Current Non-current
assets  Non-current assets Total assets  Current liabilities liabilities Total liabilities
Shenzhen Asahi 240,519 444 438,155,341 678,674,785 (215,850,329) (6,603,887) (222,454216)

Year ended 31 December 2020

Total other Cash flows
comprehensive from operating
Revenue Net profit income activities

Shenzhen Asahi 759,410,303 83,410,890 83,410,890 96,401,006

Year ended 31 December 2019

Total other Cash flows

comprehensive from operating

Revenue Net profit income activities

Shenzhen Asahi 841,302,720 83,431,721 83,431,721 135,884,332

Financial information above represents the amounts of subsidiaries excluding elimination in the Group.

327



328 HEWE A R 2 R TSINGTAO BREWERY CO., LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

6 Interests in other entities (continued)
(2) Interests in the Joint Venture and Associates

(@) Fundamental information of the significant Joint Venture and Associates

Place of Strategic impact _Share proportion
Place of operation incorporation Principal activities on the Group Directly Indirectly
Joint Ventures —
Hebei Jiahe Company Shijiazhuang, the PRC  Shijiazhuang, the PRC Manufacturing Yes 50%
Associates —
Yantai Brewery
Company Yantai, the PRC Yantai, the PRC Manufacturing Yes 39%
Zhaoshang Logistics Qingdao, the PRC Qingdao, the PRC Logistics Yes 30%
Liaoning Shenqing Shenyang, the PRC ~ Shenyang, the PRC  Wholesale and retail sale ~ Yes 30% -
European Company France France Wholesale and retail sale ~ Yes - 40%

The equity investments above are accounted for using the equity method.
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6

2

Interests in other entities (continued)

Interests in the Joint Venture and Associates (continued)

(b)

Summarised financial information of the joint venture

Hebei Jiahe Company
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Current assets 75,750,625 82,331,606
Including: cash and cash equivalents 32,858,685 40,726,999
Non-current assets 90,798,553 93,746,322
Total assets 166,549,178 176,077,928
Current liabilities (21,316,393) (22,829,436)
Total liabilities (21,316,393) (22,829,436)
Total equity attributable to shareholders of the Company 145,232,785 153,248,492
Adjusted fair value of the identifiable net assets when obtained 72,841,613 80,719,792
Adjusted total equity attributable to shareholders of the Company 218,074,398 233,968,284
The share of net assets calculated based on the shareholding proportion (i) 109,037,199 116,984,142
Adjusting item — goodwill 113,928,609 113,928,609

— unrealised profits of internal transaction (435,888) 104
Carry amount of investment on the joint venture 222,529,920 230,912,855

There is no quoted market price for the joint venture investment of the Group.

Hebei Jiahe Company

2020 2019
Revenue 322,977,350 354,183,616
Finance expenses (531,791) (515,153)
Income tax expense (2,610,972) (7,244,161)
Net profit 11,984,293 23,996,384
Total comprehensive income 11,984,293 23,996,384
Adjusted fair value of the identifiable net assets when obtained (7,878,179) (7,891,941)
Adjusted total comprehensive income attributable to shareholders of
the Company 4,106,114 16,104,443
Dividends received from the joint venture in the current year 10,000,000 6,000,000

(1)  The share of the net asset of the joint venture was calculated by the share proportion of the Group, based on the
equity attributable to shareholders of the Company in the consolidated financial statement of the joint venture,
adjusted according to the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the joint ventures at the acquisition
date and conformed to accounting policies of the Group.
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6 Interests in other entities (continued)

(2) Interests in the Joint Venture and Associates (continued)

(©)

Summarised financial information of associates

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Yantai Yantai
Brewery  Zhaoshang Liaoning European Brewery Zhaoshang Liaoning European
Company Logistics Shenqing Company Company Logistics Shenqing Company
Current assets 307,699,780 155,084,548 41,706,820 21,086,242 273,636,770 140,439,495 36,004,404 26,062,398
Including: cash and cash equivalents 59,020,238 1,368,701 1,580,314 10,627,524 63,087,129 1,182,619 2,893,942 12,920,569
Non-current assets 314,753,139 3,690,679 2,910,282 142,010 252,208,610 1,312,921 3,278,509 144,001
Total assets 622,452,919 158,775,227 44,617,102 21,228,252 525845380 141,752,416 39282913 26,206,399
Current liabilities (229,490,749)  (97,667,428)  (44,653,704)  (14,001,905) (230,020,875)  (91,149,079)  (39,101,240)  (19,914,347)
Non-current liabilities (97,127,671)  (1,059,935) (8,364,072)
Total liabilities (326,618,420)  (98,727,363)  (44,653,704)  (14,001,905) (238,384,947)  (91,149,079)  (39,101,240)  (19,914,347)
Total equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company 295,834,499 60,047,864 (36,602) 7,226,347 287460433 50,603,337 181,673 6,292,052
Adjusted fair value of the identifiable
net assets when obtained 22,308,507 26,168,506
Adjusted total equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company 318,143,006 60,047,864 (36,602) 7,226,347 313,628,939 50,603,337 181,673 6,292,052
The share of net assets calculated
based on the shareholding
proportion (i) 124,075,772 18,014,359 (10,981) 2,890,539 122,315,286 15,181,001 54,502 2,516,821
Adjusting items
— Goodwill 9,640,679 9,640,679
— Unrealised profits of internal
transaction (2,817,432) - (3,979,342)
— Unrecognized excess loss 10,981
Carry amount of investments on
Associates 130,899,019 18,014,359 2,890,539 127,976,623 15,181,001 54,502 2,516,821

There is no quoted market price for the investments in associates of the Group.
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6 Interests in other entities (continued)
(2) Interests in the Joint Venture and Associates (continued)

()  Summarised financial information of associates (continued)

2020 2019

Yantai Yantai
Brewery  Zhaoshang Liaoning European Brewery  Zhaoshang Liaoning European
Company Logistics Shenqing Company Company Logistics Shenging Company

Revenue 761,794,802 218,308,235 54,898,588 49,127,974 812,468,714 243815586 65,115,270 84,534,887
Net profit/(loss) 35,268,681 9,410,231 (218,275) 753,480 29,882,904 11,666,251 (118,710) 2,965,037
Other comprehensive income - - - 180,815 - - - 23,532
Total comprehensive income 35,268,681 9,410,231 (218,275) 934,295 29,882,904 11,666,251 (118,710) 2,988,569
Total comprehensive income
attributable to shareholders of the
Company 35,268,681 9,410,231 (218,275) 934,295 29,882,904 11,666,251 (118,710) 2,988,569
Adjusted fair value of the identifiable
net assets when obtained (3,859,999) - - - (3,859,999)
Adjusted total comprehensive income
attributable to shareholders 31,408,682 9,410,231 (218,275) 934,295 26,022,905 11,666,251 (118,710) 2,988,569
Dividends received from the
associates in the current year 10,488,900 - - - 9,044,897

(1)  The share of the net asset of associates was calculated by the share proportion of the Group, based on the equity
attributable to shareholders of the Company in the consolidated financial statement of the associates, adjusted
according to the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the associates at the acquisition date and
conformed to accounting policies of the Group.

(d)  Excess losses of associate

Accumulated
unrecognized Accumulated
losses at the Unrecognized unrecognized
beginning of loss in losses at the end
the period the current year of the period
Liaoning Shenqing - 10,981 10,981

The Group has no unrecognized commitment related to joint venture investment and no contingent liability related to
investment in associates.
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7  Segment information

As the Group is mainly engaged in the production and distribution of beer, the reportable segments of the Group are business units
operating in different regions. Different regions require different marketing strategies, and the Group, therefore, separately manages
the production and operation of each reportable segment and evaluates their operating results respectively, in order to make
decisions on resources allocation and to assess their performance.

Finance Company, a subsidiary of the Company, is principally engaged in the financial businesses of wealth management and
agency collection and payment for its members. Due to the unique business characteristics of Finance Company, the Group manages
its operation independently and evaluates its operating results separately, to determine its resources allocation and assess its
performance.

The Group identified seven reportable segments as follows:

—  Shandong region segment, responsible for the production and distribution in Shandong region and surrounding regions

—  South China region segment, responsible for the production and distribution in South China region

—  North China region segment, responsible for the production and distribution in North China region

—  East China region segment, responsible for the production and distribution in East China region

—  Southeast China region segment, responsible for the production and distribution in Southeast China region

—  Hong Kong, Macau and other overseas region segment, responsible for the distribution of beer in Hong Kong SAR , Macau
SAR and other overseas regions

—  Finance Company segment, engaged in the financial businesses of wealth management and agency collection and payment for
its members

Inter-segment transfer pricing is based on mutually-agreed prices.

Assets are allocated based on the operation of the segments and the physical location of the assets. Liabilities are allocated based on
the operation of the segments.
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7  Segment information (continued)

(@) Segment information as at and for the year ended 31 December 2020 is as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Hong Kong,
Macau and
Shandong ~ South China ~ North China ~ East China Southeast China  other overseas Finance
Region Region Region Region Region Regions Company ~ Unallocated ~ Elimination Total

Revenue from external custormers 16514340724 JASOTLNS 4730193364 2566034134 819697132 670599557 10436434 1,836,356 21,759,710926
Inter-Segment revenue 1554545983 8IS 1807540823 272,961,792 5300412 206394997 2,637,988 600,767 (5,748,194,399)
Cost of sales (I2,614487,680)  (2159,345,029)  (4269,190,70)  (L957815,166)  (SBL300,51L)  (673,786,797) (50930) (980477)  5716,437,668  (16,340,609,624)
Selling and distribution expenses (984795079 (S08477016)  (4O0T089)  (493.045907)  (149.661,38T)  (%9.523,159) (4,984549.837)
Interest income 61,004,085 19425,99 48,141,299 8,548,306 1,649,146 1570025 32458619 23200092 (142,036830) 524,029,340
Interest expenses (3,062,146) (4,411,988) 8,621,039)  (13424529) (211.331) (6,136,161 (147,071,155 169335607 (13,662,68)
Share of profit of associates and a joint venture 18,098,320 18,098,320
Credit impairment reversals/(losses) 1,535,791 11,622 (43,870) (38,703) 1,087,783 (LI78464) 1,574,159
Asset impairment losses (30994,109)  (19407,712) (5,905,315) (58735100 (8.373,054) (150,000,000) 150,000,000 (130,353,700)
Depreciation and amortisation (S14285,046)  (M4491817)  (U3.075320) (16597058 (34776,497) (3788374 (L298495)  (55,003,59) - (L,162,691.327)
Total profit(losscs) 1787432307 20142159 99520718 (18.829435) (993,069 75988798 250973005 (162737.946) 140821255 323954934
Income tax expense (S04716575)  (89.644039) (25014568 (LL39T1T9)  (3MET)  (18847.883)  (61,704734) 276 (12,580519)
Net profit(Losses) 1280715780 10776957 TMS08I50 (3026614  (4S2Td6)  STO90910 189268371 (16737946) 149100991 2326968805
Total assets 15753629994 4207865813 8308118457 3756541 TSRS 595835038 18,103,764156 8386187181 (17,884,112,856)  41,514,185,835
Total liabilities 10630781909 1963,626854 5272900199 283908527 STATSL090 626633163  IS270.67LS28  76L137287 (17,793,397.888)  20,146,133,669
Non-cash expenses other than depreciation and

amortisation 15,235,030 906,755 5,493,926 1,103,869 0704 75,788 974,387 062479
Long-ferm equity fnvestments in associates and a

Joint venture 3714333837 3714.333.837
Additions of non-current assets (1) 90433900 115019296 365546464 175,538,162 18,805,761 919,701 2,136,149 ML (12470,05T)  1,644,616,369

(i)  Non-current assets do not include financial assets, long-term equity investments and deferred tax assets.
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7  Segment information (continued)

(b)  Segment information as at and for the year ended 31 December 2019 is as follows:

Hong Kong,
Macau and
Shandong ~ South China ~ North China East China ~ Southeast China  other overseas Finance
Region Region Region Region Region Regions Company ~ Unallocated Elimination Total

Revenue from external custormers 1663700990 DS4TILTIS 4065814854 2654448617 81670824 671917097 0472783 1,986,043 27,983,760.363
Inter-Segment revenue LIBAA4 4070055 16529019 174139013 141476 237172284 26991899 600,767 (5811,109377)
Cost of sales (12803,169337)  (2314657,013)  (4204174358)  (LLI8337014)  (627327.035) (656,256,119 (58.800) (981,607)  S,744,518.601 (17,080.443,282)
Selling and distribution expenses (B.043366,720)  (S24125972)  (M6T3745) (5263929200 (143.435769)  (119.450,602) (5,103,505,734)
Interest income 51,627,885 1410149 407,780 6,515,846 1,015,665 4817818 306027699 162558066 (135.900827) 514830422
Interest expenses (4067263) (078081 (13810375)  (11.211,09) = (8,929,720 (137.806,625) 107281893 (13,621,260)
Share of profits of associates and  joint venture - - 21,182,903 21,182,903
Credit impairment reversals/ (osses) 7023981 35951 637,569 (534) 12,137 1474780 (3,087,883) 1091211
Asset impairment losses (2790370 (27830810)  (LM4854)  (32869.5M4)  (45,644812) (255,000,000) 255,000,000 (121,051,420
Depreciation and amortisation (498305855)  (I72.014866)  (203.289572) (1618789200 (40.024936)  (79LS09)  (LO6SAL0)  (57.261883) (L,137,632,951)
Total profit(losscs) 196778218 22160718 67094257  (315920386)  (85899.383) 130340702 3ILSALTE4  (4LT2L9%0) 218687929 2726910829
Income tax expense (480,580928)  (d6.53L014)  (145.009.850)  (18.565383)  (2063217)  (32475388)  (T6437.769) 989,719 (197,794436)
Net profit(Losses) LA0197290 165629004 SSO03A0L  (334485769)  (87962600) 97865314 235103995 (B4LT2L9%0) 22858748 1929116393
Total assets 14625,092008 4 115782,097 7530937080 2992029576 SILO428M4  e36114822 16233804952 6935449805 (16571569657 3731383547
Total liabilities 0183,03.084 1915208061 4995947761  D62427794  SBAITAOM 649424720 1391139975 341089744 (16485993,742) 17399012691
Non-cash expenses other than depreciation and

amortisation 13,587,032 550944 5,842,619 799,128 132,765 148370 153310 214,188
Long-ferm equity fnvestments in associates and

a joint venfure 376,641,802 376,641,802
Additions of non-current assets (1) 460,860,352 60,176,702 405304010 58,662,118 11,805,020 4345478 2017570 69.548,095  (34445011) 1038874334

(i)  Non-current assets do not include financial assets, long-term equity investments and deferred tax assets.
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7  Segment information (continued)

(c) The Group’s revenue from external customers in domestic and overseas markets and the total non-current assets other
than financial assets and deferred tax assets located domestically and in foreign countries or geographical areas are

summarised as follows:

Revenue from external customers 2020 2019
Mainland China 26,996,914,522 27,265,576,602
Hong Kong and Macau SAR 192,658,422 207,720,222
Other overseas regions 570,137,982 510,463,539

27,759,710,926 27,983,760,363

31 December

31 December

Total non-current assets 2020 2019
Mainland China 15,153,383,039 14,840,360,043
Hong Kong and Macau SAR 13,775,495 14,569,922

15,167,158,534 14,854,929,965

8 Related parties and related party transactions

(1) Information of subsidiaries

The general information and other related information of the subsidiaries is set out in Note 6(1).

(2) Information of the joint venture and associates

Except for the information of the joint venture and associates disclosed in Note 6(2), the other associates having related

parties transactions with the Group are set out below:

Company name

Relationship with the Group

Beijing Sales Company
Guangzhou General Agency

(3) Information of other related parties

Associate
Associate

Relationship with the Group

Tsingtao Brewery Group Co., Ltd.
Five subsidiaries of Fosun Group

Majority shareholder of the Company
Majority shareholder of the Company
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8 Related parties and related party transactions (continued)
(4) Related party transactions

(@) Purchases of goods and receiving services

Name of related party Nature of transaction Pricing policies 2020 2019
Yantai Brewery Company  Purchase of beer Mutually-agreed prices 761,828,890 807,111,315
Hebei Jiahe Company Purchase of beer Mutually-agreed prices 322,606,484 353,616,218
Zhaoshang Logistics Receiving logistics Mutually-agreed prices 213,793,132 233,887,370
service (including
payment on behalf)
1,298,228,506  1,394,614,903
(b) Sales of goods and providing services
Name of related party Nature of transaction Pricing policies 2020 2019
European Company Sale of beer and materials Mutually-agreed prices 32,176,580 61,230,276
Liaoning Shenqing Sale of beer and materials Mutually-agreed prices 46,718,129 50,152,598
78,894,709 111,382,874
(c)  Absorbed deposits from related parties
2020 2019
Yantai Brewery Company 826,775,768 896,360,183
(d) Interest expense paid to related parties
2020 2019
Yantai Brewery Company 82,535 58,792
(e) Financial services fee received from related parties
2020 2019
Yantai Brewery Company 12,483 14,893
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8 Related parties and related party transactions (continued)
(4) Related party transactions (continued)

(f)  Key management compensation

2020 2019

Key management compensation paid 11,174,966 9,841,929
Share-based payment 7,626,233 —
18,801,199 9,841,929

(g) For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there is no loan provided to the key management from the Group.
(5) Receivable and payable balances with related parties

Receivables from related parties:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Ending Provision for Ending  Provision for
balance bad debts balance bad debts
Accounts receivable Beijing Sales Company 11,245,784 (11,245,784) 11,245,784 (11,245,784)
European Company 8,476,518 - 10,142,225 -
Guangzhou General Agency - - 9,690 (9,690)

19,722,302 (11,245,784) 21,397,699  (11,255,474)

Payables to related parties:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Accounts payable Yantai Brewery Company 136,949,404 100,272,419
Hebei Jiahe Company 4,029,741 2,576,355

140,979,145 102,848,774

Other payables Zhaoshang Logistics 45,086,733 47,745,380
Yantai Brewery Company 224,353 19,566,363

45,311,086 67,311,743

Contract liabilities Liaoning Shenqing 35,310,803 26,666,144
European Company 7,868 -

35,318,671 26,666,144
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8 Related parties and related party transactions (continued)
(6) Benefits and interests of directors
(@) Directors’ and CEO’s emoluments

The remuneration paid to every director, supervisor and CEO for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out below:

Emoluments
in respect

of director’s
other, services
in connection

with the
management
Emoluments in respect of a person’s services as a director ofithe attairs Share-
of the based
Salary, Company or payment
bonus, and Social Housing its subsidiaries (Number
Name Fees allowance pension funds undertaking Total of shares)
Executive directors:
Huang Kexing - 749,467 43,747 34,097 - 827,311 150,000
Fan Wei (i) - 116,016 7,245 5,450 - 128,711 -
Yu Zhuming - 712,750 43,747 34,097 - 790,594 110,000
Wang Ruiyong - 705,992 43,747 34,097 - 783,836 110,000
Non-executive director:
Shi Kun (if) - - - - - - -
Independent directors:
Yu Zengbiao 120,000 - - - - 120,000 -
Ben Shenglin (jii) 60,000 - - - - 60,000 -
Jiang Min (iii) 60,000 - - - - 60,000 -
Jiang Xinglu 120,000 - - - - 120,000 -
Xiao Geng (iv) 60,000 - - - - 60,000 -
Sheng Leiming (iv) 60,000 - - - - 60,000 -
Supervisors:
Li Gang 120,000 - - - - 120,000 -
Wang Yaping 80,000 - - - - 80,000 -
Li Yan 80,000 - - - - 80,000 -
Yu Jiaping (v) - - - - - - -
Huang Zujiang (vi) - 569,800 43,147 34,097 - 647,644 -
Meng Qingshang (vi) - 474,400 43,147 34,097 - 552,244 -
Sun Lihong - 459,600 43,147 34,097 - 537,444 -
Yao Yu - - - - - - -

760,000 3,788,025 269,727 210,032

5,027,784 370,000
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8 Related parties and related party transactions (continued)
(6) Benefits and interests of directors (continued)
(@) Directors’ and CEO’s emoluments (continued)
(i)  Resigned from executive director on 28 February 2020.
(i)  Appointed as non-executive director on 16 April 2020.
(iii) Resigned from independent director on 8 June 2020.
(iv) Appointed as independent director on 8 June 2020.
(v)  Resigned from Supervisors on 8 January 2020.
(vi) Appointed as Supervisors on 8 January 2020.
In 2020, the executive directors (including Huang Kexing, Fan Wei, Yu Zhuming and Wang Ruiyong) and the
supervisors (including Yu Jiaping, Sun Lihong, Huang Zujiang and Meng Qingshang) have provided management
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking. Since the

emoluments as directors, supervisors or management cannot be distinguished from each other, emoluments as the
mentioned roles are combined disclosed together.
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8 Related parties and related party transactions (continued)
(6) Benefits and interests of directors (continued)
(@) Directors’ and CEO’s emoluments (continued)

The remuneration paid to every director, supervisor and CEO for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out below:

Emoluments

in respect of
director’s other
services in
connection with
the management

Emoluments in respect of a person’s services as a director of the affairs of
Salary, the Company or
bonus, and its subsidiaries
Name Fees allowance Social pension Housing funds undertaking Total
Executive directors:
Huang Kexing - 699,568 54,715 27,816 - 782,099
Fan Wei - 610,002 54,715 27,816 - 692,533
Yu Zhuming - 543,940 54,715 27,816 - 626,471
Wang Ruiyong - 511,672 54,715 27,816 - 594,203
Non-executive director:
Tang Bin (i)
Independent directors:
Yu Zengbiao 120,000 - - - - 120,000
Ben Shenglin 120,000 - - - - 120,000
Jiang Min 120,000 - - - - 120,000
Jiang Xinglu 120,000 - - - - 120,000
Supervisors:
Li Gang 120,000 - - - - 120,000
Wang Yaping 80,000 - - - - 80,000
Li Yan 80,000 - - - - 80,000
Yu Jiaping - 555,305 54,715 27,816 - 637,836
Sun Lihong - 426,700 54,715 27,816 - 509,231
Xing Jun (ii) - 256,533 36,944 16,916 - 310,393
Yao Yu (iii) - - - - - 120,000
760,000 3,603,720 365,234 183,812 - 4,912,766

(i)  Resigned from non-executive director on July 16, 2019.
(ii) Resigned from employee supervisor on August 28, 2019.

(iii)  Shareholder supervisor does not receive remuneration from the Company.
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8 Related parties and related party transactions (continued)

(6) Benefits and interests of directors (continued)

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

Directors’ and CEO’s emoluments (continued)

In 2019, the executive directors (including Huang Kexing, Fan Wei, Yu Zhuming and Wang Ruiyong) and the
supervisors (including Yu Jiaping, Sun Lihong and Xing Jun) have provided management services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking. Since the emoluments as directors,
supervisors or management cannot be distinguished from each other, emoluments as the mentioned roles are combined
disclosed together.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, there are no termination benefits for the directors (2019: nil).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, there is no consideration provided to third parties for obtaining available
directors’ services (2019: nil).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, there are no loans and quasi-loans in favour of directors, controlled body
corporate of directors and connected entities of directors, and no guarantee or security provided to directors, controlled
body corporate of directors and connected entities of directors (2019: nil).

No significant transactions, arrangements or contracts in related to the Group’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

(7) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year (Except for share-based payment) include

three directors (2019: three directors and one supervisor) whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in the table

above. The emoluments paid to the remaining two (2019: one) during the year is listed below:

2020 2019

Salary, bonus and allowance 4,049,663 3,313,800
Social pension 87,495 54,715
Housing funds 68,194 27,816
4,205,352 3,396,331

Share-based payment (number of shares) 240,000 -

Number of individuals

2020 2019
Emoluments bands (Except for share-based payment):
HKD500,001 — 1,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB420,001 — 840,000) 1 -
HKD3,500,001 — 4,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB2,950,000 — 3,370,000) - 1

HKD4,000,001 — 4,500,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB3,370,001 — 3,800,000) 1 -
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9 Commitments
(1) Capital commitments

Capital expenditures contracted for but not yet necessary to be recognized on the balance sheet

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Buildings, machinery and equipment 287,293,449 200,519,703

10 Events after the balance sheet date

(1) Explanation of profit distribution

2020

Profit to be distributed 1,023,137,096

As is stated in Note 4(39), in accordance with the resolution at the Board of Directors’ meeting dated on 26 March 2021,
The board of directors proposed that the company distribute a dividend of RMB1,023,137,096 to all shareholders. The
undistributed dividend has not been recognized as a liability in the financial statements.

(2) Grant of reserved Restricted A-Shares

The Company held the first extraordinary meeting of the ninth session of the Board on 22 March 2021, and approved the
proposal on granting reserved Restricted A-Shares to the participants. According to this proposal, The Company will award 0.3
million reserved Restricted A-Shares to 35 eligible participants on 22 March 2021 as the grant date. The Restricted A-Shares
will be granted at RMB21.18 per share.

11 Financial instrument and risk

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (primarily foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The financial risk mentioned above and risk management policies adopted by the
Group to reduce the risk are as follows:

The Board of Directors is responsible for planning and establishing risk management framework of the Group, formulating risk
management policies and related guidelines of the Group and supervising the implementation of risk management measures. The
Group has developed risk management policies to identify and analyse risks faced by the Group. These risk management policies
explicitly stipulate specific risks, covering the management of market risks, credit risks, liquidity risk and many other aspects.
The Group assesses the changes of market environment and the Group’s operating activities regularly to determine whether the
policies and systems of risk management should be updated. The Group’s risk management is launched by relevant departments in
accordance with the policies approved by the board of directors. These departments identifies, evaluates and avoids related risks
through close cooperation with other business departments of the Group. Internal audit department of the Group conducts regular
inspections on the control and procedures of risk management, and reports the result to the Audit Committee of the Group.
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11 Financial instrument and risk (continued)
(1) Market risk
(@) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s major operational activities are carried out in Mainland China and a majority of the transactions are
denominated in RMB. The Group has recognized foreign exchange risk from foreign currency assets and liabilities and
future foreign currency transactions (foreign currency assets and liabilities and foreign currency transactions are mainly
denominated in USD). The Group’s continuously monitors transactions denominated in foreign currencies and the scale
of assets and liabilities to minimise the foreign exchange risk. For this purpose, The Group may consider entering into
forward exchange contracts or currency swap contracts to mitigate the foreign exchange risk. For the year ended 31
December 2020 and 2019, the Group did not enter into any forward exchange contracts or currency swap contracts.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts in RMB equivalent to the Group’s assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are summarised as below:

31 December 2020

Other foreign

USD currencies Total
Financial assets denominated in foreign currency —

Cash at bank and on hand 248,394,291 13,364,094 261,758,385
Receivables 27,701,691 15,125,813 42,827,504
276,095,982 28,489,907 304,585,889

Financial liabilities denominated in foreign currency —
Other payables 6,283,009 - 6,283,009
Current portion of non-current liabilities - 215,720 215,720
6,283,009 215,720 6,498,729

31 December 2019

Other foreign

usSDh currencies Total
Financial assets denominated in foreign currency —

Cash at bank and on hand 176,341,385 37,422,818 213,764,203
Receivables 60,166,202 18,840,024 79,006,226
236,507,587 56,262,842 292,770,429

Financial liabilities denominated in foreign currency —
Short-term borrowings 4,871,529 - 4,871,529
Current portion of non-current liabilities - 418,360 418,360
Long-term borrowings - 209,180 209,180

4,871,529 627,540 5,499,069
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11

¢))

2

Financial instrument and risk (continued)
Market risk (continued)
(@) Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, for various financial assets and liabilities denominated in USD with a recording currency of
RMB, if USD had strengthened or weakened by 4% against the RMB while all other variables had been held constant,
the Group’s net profit for the year would have been approximately 8,094,000 (31 December 2019: 6,949,000) higher or
lower.

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from interest bearing debts such as long-term bank borrowings. Financial liabilities
issued at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Financial liabilities issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group determines the relative proportions of its fixed rate and floating
rate contracts depending on the prevailing market conditions. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, as the long-term bank
borrowings are all interest-free and immaterial (Note 4(28)), there is no material interest rate risk in the view of the
directors of the Group.

The Group’s head office continuously monitors the interest rate position of the Group. Increase in interest rate will
increase the cost of new interest-bearing borrowings and interest payments on the Group’s outstanding interest-bearing
debt at floating rate and therefore could have an adverse impact on the Group’s financial performance. The management
of the Group will make timely adjustments according to the latest market conditions. In 2020 and 2019, the Group has
no interest rate swap. The directors of the Company are of the view that future interest rate changes will not have a
material adverse impact on the Group’s operating performance.

As at 31 December 2020, if the borrowing rate calculated at the floating rate rose or fell by 50 basis points and other
factors remained unchanged, the Group’s net profit would decrease or increase by approximately RMB1,054,000 (31
December 2019: approximately RMB832,000).

(c) Other price risk

Other price risk of the Group mainly arises from the investment of equity instruments, where risk of price changes
exists. As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the amount of equity instruments of the Group is insignificant,
and the directors of the Company consider that there is no significant price risk.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk mainly arises from cash at bank and on hand, notes receivable, accounts receivable and other
receivables etc. At the balance sheet date, the carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets represented its maximum credit
exposure.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk associated with cash at bank considering they are deposited at joint-
stock commercial banks with high credit rating. Management does not expect that there will be any significant credit losses
from non-performance by these counterparties.

Sales are mainly settled by advances from customers, and accordingly, there is no significant credit risk related to customers.

In addition, the Group has policies to limit the credit exposure on notes receivable, accounts receivable and other receivables.
The Group assesses the credit quality of and sets credit limits on its dealers by taking into account their financial position, the
availability of guarantee from third parties, their credit history and other factors such as current market conditions. The credit
history of the dealers is regularly monitored by the Group. In respect of dealers with a poor credit history, the Group will use
written payment reminders, or shorten or cancel credit periods, to ensure the overall credit risk of the Group is limited to a
controllable extent.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group helds no significant collateral and other credit enhancements because of the debtor’s
mortgage.
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11 Financial instrument and risk (continued)
(3) Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed by each subsidiary of the Group and aggregated by the Group’s head office. The Group
monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s short-term and long-term liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to
meet operational needs, while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities from major
financial institution so that the Group does not breach borrowing limits or covenants on any of its borrowing facilities to meet
the short-term and long-term liquidity requirements.

The financial liabilities of the Group at the balance sheet date are analysed by their maturity date below at their undiscounted
contractual cash flows:

31 December 2020

More than

Within 1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years 5 years Total

Short-term borrowings 704,117,853 - - - 704,117,853

Notes payable 149,491,592 - - - 149,491,592

Accounts payable 2,222,601,042 - - - 2,222,601,042

Other payables 3,074,878,208 - - - 3,074,878,208
Current portion of

non-current liabilities 46,219,464 - - - 46,219,464

Lease liabilities - 34,528,432 72,555,191 27,574,427 134,658,050

6,197,308,159 34,528,432 72,555,191 27,574,427 6,331,966,209

31 December 2019
More than

Within 1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years 5 years Total

Short-term borrowings 273,459,028 - - - 273,459,028

Notes payable 220,825,323 - - - 220,825,323

Accounts payable 2,167,178,181 - - - 2,167,178,181

Other payables 2,424,857,501 - - - 2,424,857,501
Current portion of

non-current liabilities 22,770,590 - - - 22,770,590

Long-term borrowings - 209,180 - - 209,180

Lease liabilities - 16,559,450 20,695,887 7,610,159 44,865,496

5,109,090,623 16,768,630 20,695,887 7,610,159 5,154,165,299
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12

(@)

(b)

Financial instrument and risk (continued)
Liquidity risk
Bank borrowings are analysed by repayment terms as follows:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Within 1 year 702,695,720 271,324,991
1 to 2 years - 209,180
702,695,720 271,534,171

Share-based payment
Restricted A Share Incentive Plan

On June 8 2020,the Company held the 2019 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and the first meeting of A-share and
H-share shareholders in 2020, and approved the Proposal of Tsingtao Brewery Co., Ltd. A Share Restricted Stock Incentive
Plan (Draft) and its summary, the Proposal of the Implementation of Evaluation and Management Measures for the A-share
Restricted Stock Incentive Plan of Tsingtao Brewery Co., Ltd. and the Proposal for the general meeting of shareholders to
authorize the board of directors to handle matters related to the A-share restricted stock incentive plan. On June 29 2020,
the Company held the eighth extraordinary meeting of the ninth board of directors in 2020, and approved the Proposal
of Tsingtao Brewery Co., Ltd. on the First Grant of A-Share Restricted Stock to Incentive Participants (Incentive Plan).
According to the incentive plan, the Company granted 13.2 million restricted stocks to 627 incentive participants. The grant
date was June 29, 2020, and the grant price was RMB21.18 per share. The unlocking periods for restricted stocks granted are
24 months, 36 months, and 48 months from the equity registration date. According to the Company’s performance appraisal
and personal performance appraisal, 1/3, 1/3, and 1/3 of restricted stocks will be unlocked respectively. According to the
incentive plan, if the incentive object resigns before the expiration of the unlocking period, the stocks shall not be unlocked,
and the Company must repurchase and cancel the restricted stocks at the corresponding repurchase price.

According to the incentive plan, the Company received a total of RMB279,576,000 from the incentive participants. At the
same time , the Company recognized liabilities of RMB279,576,000 and treasury stocks of RMB279,576,000 for the restricted

stocks repurchase obligations.

Changes in restricted stocks during the current year

2020 2019

Restricted stocks (shares) issued at the beginning of the year - -
Restricted stock (shares) granted this year 13,200,000 -
Restricted stocks (shares) exercised this year - -
Restricted stocks (shares) lapsed this year - -

Restricted stocks (shares) issued at the end of the year 13,200,000 -

Share-based payment fees this year 127,595,083 -
Accumulated share-based payment fees 127,595,083 -
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12 Share-based payment (continued)
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(¢) Asat 31 December 2020, The remaining period of the restricted stock incentive plan is 5.56 years until 24 July 2026.

(d) Method for determining the fair value of restricted stocks on the grant date

The Group determines the fair value of restricted stocks on the basis of the single-day closing price of the circulating shares

on the date when the equity instruments are granted.

13 Fair value estimation

The level of fair value measurement is determined by the lowest level of inputs which has significant impact on fair value

measurement, as a whole:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

(1) Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

As at 31 December 2020, the assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis are analysed below:

Level 3
Financial assets held for trading — Wealth management products 1,888,862,835
Financial assets held for trading — Equity instrument investment 600,000
1,889,462,835
As at 31 December 2019, the assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis are analysed below:
Level 1 Level 3 Total
Financial assets held for trading
— Fund investment 127,203,255 - 127,203,255
Financial assets held for trading
— Wealth management products - 1,396,589,764 1,396,589,764
Other non-current financial assets
— Equity instrument investment - 600,000 600,000
127,203,255 1,397,189,764 1,524,393,019

The timing of transfers is determined at the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfers. There was

no transfer between level 1 and 2 during this year.
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13 Fair value estimation (continued)
(1) Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis (continued)

Changes of the above Level 3 financial assets are analysed below:

Total current
profits —
Profits accrued

Assets still

held on

31 December
2020 are
recognized

as movement on
unrealized gains
of profit or loss
for the

Year ended

31 December
2020 —

Profit or loss

31 December to current 31 December from changes
2019 Purchase Disposal ~ profit or loss (a) 2020 in fair value
Financial assets
— Wealth management products 1,396,589,764 2,220,000,000 (1,754,769,664) 60,895,433 1,888,862,835 27,042,735
Other non-current financial assets
— Equity instrument investment 600,000 600,000
1,397,189,764 2,220,000,000 (1,754,769,664) 60,895,433 1,889,462,835 27,042,735
Assets still
held on
31 December
2019 are
recognized

Total current
profits —
Profits accrued

as movement on
unrealized gains
of profit or loss
for the Year ended
31 December
2019 —

Profit or loss

1 January to current 31 December from changes
2019 Purchase Disposal profit or loss (a) 2019 in fair value
Financial assets
— Wealth management products 1,046,306,137 1,757,000,000 (1,431,306,137) 58,997,282 1,396,589,764 24,589,764
Other non-current financial assets
— Equity instrument investment 600,000 600,000
1,046,906,137 1,757,000,000 (1,431,306,137) 58,997,282 1,397,189,764 24,589,764
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13 Fair value estimation (continued)

1

2

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis (continued)

(a)  Gains recognized in the current profit and loss is included in the income statement under the items of profit arising
from changes in fair value and investment income respectively.

For the level 3 financial assets stated above, the management evaluates and determines its fair value based on the future cash
flow.

Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but disclosed at fair value

Financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group measured at amortised cost mainly represent notes receivable, accounts
receivable, other receivables, other non-current financial assets, debt investment, short-term borrowings, payables and long-
term borrowings. The difference between the carrying amount and fair value of those financial assets and liabilities not
measured by fair value is small.

The fair value of long-term borrowings is the present value of the contractually determined stream of future cash flows
discounted at the rate of interest applied at that time by the market to instruments of comparable credit status and providing
substantially the same cash flows on the same terms, which belongs to level 3.

14 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to

provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of

capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return

capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from the prior year, was to maintain the

cash balance above a certain standard to meet the Group’s business development needs. Cash balance is calculated as cash and

cash equivalents less total borrowings (including short-term borrowings, current portion of non-current liabilities and long-term

borrowings). The cash balance as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Cash and cash equivalents 17,643,123,424 14,557,393,355
Less: Short-term borrowings (703,273,054) (270,906,631)
Current portion of non-current liabilities (215,720) (418,360)
Long-term borrowings - (209,180)
(703,488,774) (271,534,171)

Cash balance after deducting borrowings 16,939,634,650 14,285,859,184
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15 Notes to the Company’s financial statements
(1) Account receivable

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Accounts receivable 1,346,209,651 1,247,712,732
Less: Provision for bad debts (56,425,268) (56,476,414)
1,289,784,383 1,191,236,318

The majority of the Group’s domestic sales are made by advances from customers. The remains are settled by letters of credit,
bank acceptance notes or providing credit terms from 30 to 100 days.

(@) The ageing of accounts receivable based on their recording dates is analysed below:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Within 1 year 934,123,162 916,296,744
1 to 2 years 138,175,367 96,447,540
2 to 3 years 53,839,278 83,484,921
3 to 4 years 80,548,100 69,839,383
4 to 5 years 62,078,414 12,909,771
Over 5 years 77,445,330 68,734,373

1,346,209,651 1,247,712,732

(b) As at 31 December 2020, the top five accounts receivable are analysed as follows:

Provision of % of total
Amount bad debts balance
Total amount of the top five accounts receivable 505,464,459 - 38%

() As at 31 December 2020, there are no accounts receivable derecognized due to the transfer of financial assets (31
December 2019: nil).



—F ~FFFH ANNUAL REPORT 2020  35]

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

15 Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

(1) Account receivable (continued)

(d)

Provision for bad debts

For accounts receivable, irrespective of whether there is significant financing component, the Company measures loss

provision according to the ECL of the lifetime.

@

(ii)

(iii)

As at 31 December 2020, accounts receivable with amounts that are individually subject to separate assessment
for provision are analysed as follows:

Lifetime Provision for
Ending balance ECL ratio bad debts Reason
Beijing Sales Company 11,245,784 100% (11,245,784) Notes 4(4)(d)

As at 31 December 2020, accounts receivable that are subject to provision for bad debts on the grouping basis are
analysed as follows:

Group — Subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2020, accounts receivable from subsidiaries of the Company is 1,248,610,862. The Company
believes there is no significant credit risk, thus no provision for bad debts is recognized.

Group — Dealers

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Ending Ending
balance Provision for bad debts balance Provision for bad debts
Lifetime Lifetime
Amount ECL ratio Amount Amount ECL ratio Amount
Not overdue 41,173,521 - - 50,026,027 - -
Overdue within
1 year - - - 511,142 5% (25,557)
Overdue 2 years or
more 45,179,484 100% (45,179,484) 45,195,383 100% (45,195,383)
86,353,005 (45,179,484) 95,732,552 (45,220,940)

In the current year, there is no provisions for bad debts is recognized. The reversal of provisions for bad debts
is 541,456, the corresponding carrying amount is 1,027,042. The provision for bad debts written off due to
uncollectable beer sales is 490,310.
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15 Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

2

Other receivables

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Dividends receivable from subsidiaries

Receivables from subsidiaries

Receivables of refundable cost of land and buildings

Reservation fund
Guarantee deposits
Others

Less: Provision for bad debts

(@) The ageing of accounts receivable based is analysed below:

700,149,831 589,000,000
51,297,364 52,780,900
17,441,647 17,441,647
10,182,793 10,624,210

5,592,742 3,790,015
21,310,745 27,475,466
805,975,122 701,112,238

(38,423,345)

(39,269,385)

767,551,777

661,842,853

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Not overdue 767,489,799 661,722,841
Overdue within 1 year 51,292 62,263
Overdue 1-2 years 31,536 121,724
Overdue over 2 years 38,402,495 39,205,410
805,975,122 701,112,238
(b) Movement in provision for bad debts and carrying amount
Stage one Stage three
Lifetime ECL

Next 12 months ECL (Credit impairment losses
(Groups) already occurred) Total
Ending Provision for Ending Provision for Provision for
balance bad debts balance bad debts bad debts
31 December 2019 183,987 (63,975) 39,205,410 (39,205,410) (39,269,385)
Increase in the current year 51,476 (16,115) - (56,392) (72,507)
Reversals in the current year (39,851) 2,848 (910,779) 910,779 913,627
Written off in the current year - - (4,920) 4,920 4,920
Transfer to stage three (112,784) 56,392 112,784 (56,392) -
31 December 2020 82,828 (20,850) 38,402,495 (38,402,495) (38,423,345)
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(2) Other receivables (continued)

(b)  Movement in provision for bad debts and carrying amount (continued)
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As of December 31, 2020, the Company has no other receivables in the stage two. The analysis of other receivables in

the stage one and stage three is as follows:

(i)  As at 31 December 2020, other receivables with amounts that are individually subject to separate assessment for

provision are analysed as follow:

Next 12 months

ECL ratio Provision for
Stage three Ending balance interval bad debts Reason
Receivables of refundable cost of
land and buildings 17,441,647 100% (17,441,647) Note 4(6)
Receivables from other entities 20,960,848 100% (20,960,848) Note 4(6)

38,402,495

(38,402,495)

(i)  As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, other receivables of provisions for bad debts on grouping basis

are in stage one, and the analysis is as follows:

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Ending Ending
balance Provision for bad debts balance Provision for bad debts
% of total % of total
Amount Amount balance Amount Amount balance
Guarantee deposits - - - 12,438 (6,219) 5%-50%
Receivables from
other entities 82,828 (20,850) 5%-50% 171,549 (57,756) 5%-50%
82,828 (20,850) 183,987 (63,975)

(c) The provision for bad debts in the current year is 72,507. The reversal of provision for bad debts is 913,627 and its

corresponding carrying amount is 950,630.

(d) In the current year, carrying amount and bad debt of other receivables of 4,920 was written off.
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15 Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

(2) Other receivables (continued)

(e)  Asat 31 December 2020, the top five other receivables are analysed as follows:

% of total

Provision for

Nature Amount  Ageing balance bad debts
No.l Receivable of subsidiaries dividends 234,450,000 Within 1 year 29% -
No.2 Receivable of subsidiaries dividends 200,000,000 Within 1 year 25% -
No.3 Receivable of subsidiaries dividends 70,000,000  Within 1 year 9% -
No.4 Receivable of subsidiaries dividends 60,000,000  Within 1 year 7% -
No.5 Receivable of subsidiaries dividends 50,000,000  Within 1 year 6% -
614,450,000 76% -
(3) Inventories

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Ending Carrying Ending Carrying
balance Provision amount balance Provision amount
Raw materials 276,448,990 - 276,448,990 334,080,493 334,080,493
Packaging materials 136,606,270 (662,025) 135,944,245 94,401,515 (662,025) 93,739,490
Low-value consumables 41,916,164 - 41,916,164 27,190,531 27,190,531
Work in progress 95,540,890 - 95,540,890 93,098,557 93,098,557
Finished goods 934,573,062 - 934,573,062 892,265,471 892,265,471
1,485,085,376 (662,025) 1,484,423,351 1,441,036,567 (662,025) 1,440,374,542

C))

Debt investment

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Entrusted loans to subsidiaries 58,500,000 254,000,000
Plus: Interest on debt investment - 325,489
Less: Debt investment impairment provisions (58,500,000) (91,000,000)

The entrusted loans to subsidiaries are unsecured RMB loans provided by the Company through banks and Finance Company,

with annual interest of 3.92% and quarterly payment.

163,325,489
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(5) Long-term equity investments

31 December 2020
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31 December 2019

Subsidiaries (@)
Joint ventures (b)
Associates (C)

Less: Provision for impairment of long-term equity investments (d)

(@) Subsidiaries

Movements in the current year

12,068,149,380 11,589,837,675
222,529,920 230,912,855
150,133,378 144,432,126
12,440,812,678 11,965,182,656
(1,662,953,287) (1,512,953,287)
10,777,859,391 10,452,229,369
Provision for
impairment Balance of
(recognized)/ provision  Cash dividends

31 December Increased Decreased 31 December  written offinthe  for impairment declared in the
2019 investment investment (ii) 2020 current year at end of year  current year (iii)
Shenzhen Asahi 126,746,680 669,696 127,416,376 - 83,430,000
Chenzhou Company 62,601,208 616,393 63,217,601 - 50,000,000
Huanan Sales
Company 45,070,000 3,274,844 48,344,844 -
Huanan Holding
Company 208,790,000 2,615,002 211,405,002 -
Huadong Holding
Company 96,855,102 - 96,855,102 (96,855,102)
Shouguang Company 60,000,000 1,239,402 61,239,402 -
Five Star Company 24,656,410 513,661 25,170,071 (24,656,410)
Three Ring Company 69,457,513 571,203 70,028,716 (69,457,513)
Beifang Sales
Company 83,984,000 1,271,148 85,255,148 (83,984,000 -
Xi'anHan’s Company 392,627,114 8,022,225 400,649,339 - 200,000,000
Weinan Company 14,000,000 727,112 14,727,112 -
Anshan Company 30,000,000 657,027 30,657,027 -
Xingkaihu Company 199,430,000 881,300 200,311,300 (129,430,000)
Mishan Company 118,520,000 - 118,520,000 (118,520,000)
Harbin Company 213,540,000 667,004 214,207,004 (109,940,000)
Penglai Company 30,000,000 - 30,000,000 (30,000,000)
Rongcheng Company 65,103,434 711,485 65,814,919 (65,103,434)
International trading
company 11,210,000 11,210,000 -
Tsingtao Brewery
(Laoshan) Co., Ltd. 18,089,491 18,089,491 -
Hong Kong Company 41,728,681 41,728,681 -
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15 Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

6))

Subsidiaries

Long-term equity investments (continued)

Provision for

impairment Balance of
Movements in the current year (recognized)/ provision  Cash dividends
31 December Increased Decreased 31 December  written off in the ~ for impairment declared in the
2019 investment investment (i) 2020 current year at end of year  current year (iii)
Taizhou Company 60,000,000 375,368 60,375,368 -
Maanshan Company 80,000,000 848,634 80,848,634 -
Qingdao Xianghong
Shangwu Co., Ltd. 5,760,000 5,760,000 -
Dongnan Sales
Company 293,088,560 3,673,802 296,762,362 -
Changsha Company 47,600,000 476,304 48,076,304 - -
Jinan Company 560,000,000 808,675 560,808,675 - 60,000,000
Guangrunlong
Logistics 16,465,405 - 16,465,405 -
Chengdu Company 280,000,000 709,786 280,709,786 -
Cultural
Commmunication
Company 5,290,000 887,233 6,177,233 - -
Rizhao Company 339,239,300 668,747 339,908,047 - 30,000,000
Weifang Company 73,620,001 719,685 74,339,686 - 12,000,000
Dezhou Company 21,730,001 824,142 22,554,143 -
Construction Company 2,490,000 466,965 2,956,965 -
Langfang Company 79,090,000 1,073,205 80,163,205 (51,301,600)
Heze Company 124,590,000 709,786 125,299,786 -
Tengzhou Company 48,310,000 588,525 48,898,525 -
Tsingtao Brewery
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 1,570,000 - 1,570,000 -
Wuhu Company 274,290,000 46,696 274,336,696 (274,290,000)
Shanghai Sales
Company 97,300,000 97,300,000 (47,300,000
Chengyang Sales
Company 8,000,000 8,000,000 - 234,450,000
Shijiazhuang Company 321,010,000 756,483 321,766,483 - 70,000,000
Taiyuan Company 200,000,000 804,938 200,804,938 - 50,000,000
Finance Company 1,000,000,000 1,021,173 1,001,021,173 -
Immense Brewery
Company 1,404,558,400 2,351,208 1,406,909,608 - -
Hangzhou Company 186,000,000 756,483 186,756,483 - 17,000,000
Jieyang Company 150,000,000 618,818 150,618,818 - 653,504
Beverage Company 30,044,252 272,862 30,317,114 - -
Shaoguan Company 200,000,000 476,304 200,476,304 (150,000,000), (150,000,000)
Electronic Commerce 8,000,000 - 8,000,000 -
Jivjiang Company 180,000,000 569,697 180,569,697 -
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15 Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

(5) Long-term equity investments (continued)

(@) Subsidiaries

Movements in the current year

Provision for
impairment
(recognized)/

Balance of
provision

% — F F F H ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Cash dividends

31 December Increased Decreased 31 December  written offinthe  for impairment declared in the
2019 investment investment (i) 2020 current year atend of year  current year (jii)
Xuzhou Enterprise
Management 10,000,000 547,102 10,547,102 (10,000,000
Pingdu Sales Company 5,000,000 5,000,000 - -
Luoyang Company 200,000,000 659,194 200,659,194 - 50,000,000
Shanghai Industrial
Company 200,895,228 2,997,913 203,893,141 (200,895,228) -
Luzhou Company 118,460,956 580,550 119,041,506 - 15,000,000
Zhangjiakou Company 200,000,000 - 672,373 200,672,373 - -
Lulansa Company 317,374,000 241,818,181 693,268 559,885,449 - 15,000,000
Huangshi Company 163,630,000 622,183 164,252,183 - 30,000,000
Yingcheng Company 42,070,000 569,697 42,639,697 -
Hanzhong Company 26,297,900 583,209 26,881,109 -
Shanghai Investing
Company 1,920,654,039 4,068,365 1,924,722,404 -
Yangzhou Company 100,000,000 756,483 100,756,483 -
Sugian Company 75,000,000 616,393 75,616,393 -
Zaozhuang Company (i) 150,000,000 183,773 150,183,773 -
West Coast Cultural
Tourism (i) 30,000,000 30,000,000 -
Tsingtao Brewery
Shanghai Yangpu
Co., Ltd. (Yangpu
Company) 200,000,000 200,000,000 (200,000,000)
11,589,837,675 421,818,181 56,493,524 12,068,149,380 (150,000,000)  (1,661,733,287) 917,533,504

(i)  As stated in Note 5, according to the resolution of the Company’s board of directors, the Company established

Zaozhuang Company in 2020 and increased the capital of West Coast Cultural Tourism.

(i) The Company is obliged to settle the share payment of the employees of the Company’s subsidiaries for restricted

A share incentives. The Company recognized the long-term equity investment in the Company’s subsidiaries of

RMB56,493,524 according to the fair value of the equity instruments on the date of grant. At the same time, the
Company confirmed the capital surplus of RMB56,493,524.

(iii) The cash dividends declared this year are distributed to all shareholders of the Company.

357



358

H OO %A R A A TSINGTAO BREWERY CO., LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

15

6))

Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)
Long-term equity investments (continued)

(b)  Joint venture

Movements in the current year

Share of net Balance of

profit or loss provision for

31 December using the Other equity ~ Cash dividends 31 December impairment

2019 equity method changes declared 2020  atend of year

Hebei Jiahe Company 230,912,855 1,617,065 - (10,000,000) 222,529,920 -

Details of equity interests in the joint venture are disclosed in Note 6(2)(b).

(c) Associates

Movements in the current year

Share of net Balance of

profit or loss Cash provision for

31 December using the Other equity dividends 31 December impairment

2019 equity method changes declared 2020  atend of year

Yantai Brewery Company 127,976,623 13,411,296 - (10,488,900) 130,899,019 -
Zhaoshang Logistics 15,181,001 2,823,069 10,289 - 18,014,359 -
Liaoning Shenqing 54,502 (54,502) - - - -
Others 1,220,000 - - - 1,220,000 (1,220,000)
144,432,126 16,179,863 10,289 (10,488,900) 150,133,378 (1,220,000)

Details of equity interests in the associates are disclosed in Note 6(2)(c).

(d)  Provision for impairment of long-term equity investments

31 December Increase in Written off in 31 December

2019 the current year the current year 2020

Subsidiaries (i) (1,511,733,287) (150,000,000) - (1,661,733,287)
Associates (1,220,000) - - (1,220,000)
(1,512,953,287) (150,000,000) - (1,662,953,287)

(i) In 2020, long-term equity investments of the Company in Shaoguan Company are recognized impairment
provision of 150,000,000.
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15 Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

(6)

Fixed assets

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Fixed assets (@)

2,206,108,993 2,075,154,087
Fixed assets pending for disposal (b) 1,106,766 78,223
2,207,215,759 2,075,232,310
Fixed assets
2020
Machinery and Motor Other
Buildings equipment vehicles equipment Total
Original cost
31 December 2019 1,223,363,502 2,558,137,780 90,266,437 349,757,393 4,221,525,112
Increases in the current year
Purchase 3,957,201 3,953,086 22,726,565 30,636,852
Transfer from construction
in process 29,035,905 315,931,816 10,961,728 355,929,449
Transfer from Investment
real estate 1,141,331 - 1,141,331
Decreases in the current year
Disposal (1,648,432) (13,797,769) (1,788,740) (19,673,733) (36,908,674)
Transfer to construction in
process (10,286,491) (77,051,302) (87,337,793)
Transfer from Investment
real estate (2,063,883) - - - (2,063,883)
31 December 2020 1,239,541,932 2,787,177,726 92,430,783 363,771,953 4,482,922,394
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2019 (344,115,147) (1,438,485,084) (65,778,726) (266,024,702) (2,114,403,659)
Increases in the current year
Accrual (33,352,283) (139,234,083) (6,082,225) (28,977,669) (207,646,260)
Transfer from Investment
real estate (714,992) - (714,992)
Decreases in the current year
Disposal 1,345,954 12,028,493 1,727,532 18,542,621 33,644,600
Transfer to construction in
process 7,669,039 45,212,136 52,881,175
Transfer from Investment
real estate 237,317 - - - 237,317
31 December 2020 (368,930,112) (1,520,478,538) (70,133,419) (276,459,750) (2,236,001,819)
Provision for impairment
31 December 2019 (1,618,803) (30,154,402) (194,161) (31,967,366)
Increases in the current year
— accrual - (8,686,487) (40,778) (116,951) (8,844,216)
31 December 2020 (1,618,803) (38,840,889) (234,939) (116,951) (40,811,582)
Carrying amount
31 December 2020 868,993,017 1,227,858,299 22,062,425 87,195,252 2,206,108,993
31 December 2019 877,629,552 1,089,498,294 24,293,550 83,732,691 2,075,154,087
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15 Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

(6) Fixed assets (continued)

(@)

Fixed assets (continued)

2019
Machinery and Motor Other
Buildings equipment vehicles equipment Total
Original cost
31 December 2018 1,208,401,607 2,472,258,226 94,222,901 360,007,570 4,134,890,304
Increases in the current year
Purchase 6,030,104 1,519,233 30,105,926 37,655,263
Transfer from construction
in process 18,784,633 178,497,083 197,281,716
Decreases in the current year
Disposal (559,404) (38,464,6006) (5,475,697) (40,356,103) (84,855,810)
Transfer to construction
in process (3,263,334) (60,183,027) - - (63,446,361)
31 December 2019 1,223,363,502 2,558,137,780 90,266,437 349,757,393 4,221,525,112
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2018 (314,708,975) (1,366,257,687) (64,621,966) (274,060,401) (2,019,649,029)
Increases in the current year
— accrual (31,940,103) (127,374,099) (6,323,695) (29,980,055) (195,617,952)
Decreases in the current year
Disposal 253,674 27,746,863 5,166,935 38,015,754 71,183,226
Transfer to construction
in process 2,280,257 27,399,839 - - 29,680,096
31 December 2019 (344,115,147) (1,438,485,084) (65,778,726) (266,024,702) (2,114,403,659)
Provision for impairment
31 December 2018 (1,618,803) (31,034,322) (260,530) (44,116) (32,957,771)
Increases in the current year
— accrual (9,289,789) (9,289,789)
Decreases in the current year
— disposal - 10,169,709 66,369 44,116 10,280,194
31 December 2019 (1,618.803) (30,154.402) (194.161) (31,967.366)
Carrying amount
31 December 2019 877,629,552 1,089,498,294 24,293,550 83,732,691 2,075,154,087
31 December 2018 892,073,829 1,074.966.217 29.340,405 85,903,053 2,082,283,504
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15 Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

(6) Fixed assets (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company’s fixed assets with carrying amount of 34,456,618 (cost of 87,337,793
accumulated depreciation of 52,881,175) are transferred to construction in progress to be upgraded due to the requirements of
technology renewal.
As at 31 December 2020, there are no fixed assets pledged as collateral for borrowings (31 December 2019: nil).
For the year ended 31 December 2020, accrued depreciation of fixed assets are 207,646,260 (2019: 195,617,952), of which
182,789,673, 2,845,498, 19,767,645 and 2,243,444 (2019: 170,207,032, 2,894,416, 20,135,709 and 2,380,795) have been
charged to cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses, general and administrative expenses and research and development
expenses respectively.

The cost of fixed assets transferred from construction in progress amounts to 355,929,449 (2019: 197,281,716).

As at 31 December 2020, the ownership certificates of certain fixed assets (buildings) with carrying amount of approximately
32,686,000 have not been obtained by the Company (31 December 2019: 35,414,000) (Note 4(11)(a)).

(b)  Fixed assets pending for disposal

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Machinery and equipment 1,106,766 78,223

(7) Intangible assets

2020
Marketing Software
Land use rights Trademarks networks and others Totals
Original cost
31 December 2019 253,343,186 190,345,726 320,907,803 440,436,932 1,205,033,647
Increase in the current year — purchase - - - 44,040,026 44,040,026
Decrease in the current year — disposal - - - (10,182,821) (10,182,821)
31 December 2020 253,343,186 190,345,726 320,907,803 474,294,137 1,238,890,852
Accumulated amortisation
31 December 2019 (77,449,558) (122,457,667) (264,171,686) (233,948,011) (698,026,922)
Increase in the current year — accrual (5,095,578) (83,643) (13,115,660) (36,804,463) (55,099,344)
Decrease in the current year — disposal - - - 10,182,821 10,182,821
31 December 2020 (82,545,136) (122,541,310) (277,287,346) (260,569,653) (742,943,445)
Carrying amount
31 December 2020 170,798,050 67,804,416 43,620,457 213,724,484 495,947,407
31 December 2019 175,893,628 67,888,059 56,736,117 206,488,921 507,006,725
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15 Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

(7) Intangible assets (continued)

2019

Marketing Software
Land use rights Trademarks networks and others Totals

QOriginal cost

31 December 2018 262,351,986 190,345,726 320,907,803 398,919,109 1,172,524,624

Increase in the current year — purchase - - 41,550,302 41,550,302

Decrease in the current year — disposal (9,008,800) - - (32,479) (9,041,279)

31 December 2019 253,343,186 190,345,726 320,907,803 440,436,932 1,205,033,647
Accumulated amortisation

31 December 2018 (76,952,037) (122,374,023) (245,511,611) (199,103,809) (643,941,480)

Increase in the current year — accrual (5,257,170) (83,644) (18,660,075) (34,876,681) (58,877,570)

Decrease in the current year — disposal 4,759,649 - - 32,479 4,792,128

31 December 2019 (77,449,558) (122,457,667) (264,171,686) (233,948,011) (698,026,922)
Carrying amount

31 December 2019 175,893,628 67,888,059 56,736,117 206,488,921 507,006,725

31 December 2018 185,399,949 67,971,703 75,396,192 199,815,300 528,583,144

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the amortisation amount of intangible assets is 55,099,344 (2019: 58,877,570).

As at 31 December 2020, there are no intangible assets pledged as collateral for borrowings (31 December 2019: nil).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, research and development expenditures of 21,467,092 (2019: 21,088,710) are

recognized in profit or loss.
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15 Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

®

Provision for asset impairment and loss

2020

31 December

Increase in the

Decrease in the current year

31 December

2019 current year Reversal Written-off 2020
Provision for bad debt of accounts
receivable 56,476,414 - (541,456) 490,310 56,425,268
Including: Provision for bad debt
recognized individually 11,255,474 - (9,690) - 11,245,784
Provision for bad debt
recognized on groupings 45,220,940 - (531,766) 490,310 45,179,484
Provision for bad debt of other
receivables 39,269,385 72,507 (913,627) (4,920) 38,423,345
Debt reserve for debt investment 91,000,000 3,500,000 (36,000,000) - 58,500,000
Subtotal 186,745,799 3,572,507 (37,455,083) 485,390 153,348,613
Provisions for impairment of inventory 662,025 - - - 662,025
Provisions for impairment of long-term
investment 1,512,953,287 150,000,000 - - 1,662,953,287
Provisions for impairment of fixed
assets 31,967,366 8,844,216 - - 40,811,582
Subtotal 1,545,582,678 158,844,216 - - 1,704,426,894
1,732,328,477 162,416,723 (37,455,083) 485,390 1,857,775,507
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15 Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

®

Provision for asset impairment and loss (continued)

2019

31 December

Increase in

Decrease in the current year

31 December

2019  the current year Reversal Written-off 2020
Provision for bad debt of accounts
receivable 61,483,751 29,537 (5,036,874) - 56,476,414
Including: Provision for bad debt
recognized individually 11,755,474 - (500,000) - 11,255,474
Provision for bad debt
recognized on groupings 49,728,277 29,537 (4,536,874) - 45,220,940
Provision for bad debt of other
receivables 42,090,211 668,294 (1,554,223) (1,934,897) 39,269,385
Debt reserve for debt investment 55,000,000 36,000,000 - - 91,000,000
Subtotal 158,573,962 36,697,831 (6,591,097) (1,934,897) 186,745,799
Provisions for impairment of inventory 662,025 - - - 662,025
Provisions for impairment of long-term
investment 1,260,373,287 255,000,000 - (2,420,000) 1,512,953,287
Provisions for impairment of fixed
assets 32,957,771 9,289,789 - (10,280,194) 31,967,366
Subtotal 1,293,993,083 264,289,789 - (12,700,194) 1,545,582,678
1,452,567,045 300,987,620 (6,591,097) (14,635,091) 1,732,328,477
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®

Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

Capital surplus

31 December

Increase in

Decrease in

% — F F F H ANNUAL REPORT 2020

31 December

2019  the current year  the current year 2020
Share premium 4,190,058,186 266,376,000 - 4,456,434,186
Other capital surplus — 116,575,625 137,289,136 - 253,864,761
Share of changes in equity other than
comprehensive income and profit
distribution of investees accounted for
using the equity method (10,196,463) 10,289 - (10,186,174)
Share-based payment Included in
shareholders’ equity - 137,278,847 - 137,278,847
Transfer from capital surplus recognized
under the previous accounting system 123,006,624 - - 123,006,624
Others 3.765.464 - - 3,765,464
4,306,633,811 403,665,136 - 4,710,298,947

31 December
2018

Increase in
the current year

Decrease in
the current year

31 December
2019

Share premium
Other capital surplus —

Share of changes in equity other than
comprehensive income and profit
distribution of investees accounted for
using the equity method

Transfer from capital surplus recognized
under the previous accounting system

Others

4,190,058,186

8,183

4,190,058,186

116,567,442 - 116,575,625
(10,204,646) 8,183 - (10,196,463)
123,006,624 . - 123,006,624

3,765,464 - - 3,765,464

4,306,625,628

8,183

4,306,633,811
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15 Notes to the Company’s financial statements

(10) Other comprehensive income

Changes arising from
re-measurement of defined
benefit plan liabilities

As at 31 December 2018

Movements for the year ended 31 December 2019

As at 31 December 2019

Movements for the year ended 31 December 2020

As at 31 December 2020

(11) Undistributed profits

(48,482,000)

1,037,000

(47,445,000)

Undistributed profits at the beginning of the year
Add: Net profit in the current year
Less: Ordinary shares dividends payable

Undistributed profits at the end of the year

17,007,000
(30,438,000)

2020 2019
7,489,288,403 7,320,371,233
948,382,166 817,388,912
(743,040,537) (648,471,742)
7,694,630,032 7,489,288,403

The dividends actual paid for the year ended 31 December 2020, and the dividends proposed but not paid at the end of the

year are disclosed in Note 4(39).

(12) Revenue and cost of sales

2020 2019

Revenue from main operation ()

18,255,594,424 18,850,719,128

Revenue from other operations (b) 1,289,690,153 1,318,912,380
19,545,284,577 20,169,631,508

2020 2019

Cost of main operation (a) (14,040,782,736) (14,761,378,309)
Cost of other operations (b) (1,242,692,936) (1,281,598,273)

(15,283,475,672) (16,042,976,582)
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(12) Revenue and cost of sales (continued)

(@) Revenue and cost of main operation
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ontinued)

2020 2019
Revenue from Cost of main Revenue from Cost of main
main operation operation main operation operation
Sale of beer, etc. 18,255,594,424  (14,040,782,736) 18,850,719,128 (14,761,378,309)

(b) Revenue and cost of other operations

2020 2019
Revenue Revenue
from other Cost of other from other Cost of other
operations operations operations operations
Sales of raw materials 1,280,610,520 (1,236,194,865) 1,308,701,829 (1,273,359,981)
Others 9,079,633 (6,498,071) 10,210,551 (8,238,292)

1,289,690,153 (1,242,692,936)

1,318,912,380

(1,281,598,273)

(13) Finance expenses

2020 2019

Interest income (214,047,815) (166,807,682)
Exchange losses/(gains) 7,919,486 (6,944,968)
Discounting impact of the long-term employee benefits payable 11,113,727 10,864,239
Interest expense on lease liabilities 1,325,661 1,092,495
Others 1,718,219 2,094,006
(191,970,722) (159,701,910)
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15 Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)
(14) Expenses by nature

The costs of sales, selling and distribution expenses, general and administrative expenses and research and development
expenses classified by nature are as follows:

2020 2019
Raw materials, packaging materials and consumables used 4,472,706,967 4,732,844,709
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and materials on (44,749,924) (246,567,950)
Finished goods purchased from outside 10,195,757,739 10,892,542,802
Employee benefits expenses 1,980,316,009 1,980,172,553
Handling and transportation expenses 979,542,816 1,042,085,097
Advertising related expenses 697,919,468 771,417,572
Depreciation and amortisation charges 279,347,278 267,234,566
Administrative expenses 96,693,344 122,565,000
Repair expenses 79,721,547 83,514,430
Share-based payment fees 71,101,559 -
Operating lease payments 44,518,036 43,197,112
Labour expenses 28,682,288 28,969,435
Auditors’ remuneration — audit service 8,094,340 8,094,340
Other expenses 103,807,916 95,574,345

18,993,459,383 19,821,644,011
(15) Asset impairment losses

2020 2019
Impairment losses of long-term equity investments 150,000,000 255,000,000
Impairment losses of fixed assets 8,844,216 9,289,789

158,844,216 264,289,789
(16) Credit impairment losses

2020 2019
Reversals of bad debts of accounts receivable (541,456) (5,007,337)
Reversals of bad debts of other receivables (841,120) (885,929)
Reversals/(Losses) of impairment losses of debt investment (32,500,000) 36,000,000

(33,882,576) 30,106,734
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15 Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

a7

(18)

Investment income

2020 2019
Investment income from long-term equity investment accounted for using the
cost method (a) 858,343,259 1,083,223,227
Investment income from long-term equity investment accounted for using the
equity method 17,796,928 19,996,888
Interest income from debt investment 4,467,326 8,880,679
880,607,513 1,112,100,794

There is no significant restriction on transferring funds in the form of investment income.

(a) Investment income from long-term equity investment accounted for using the cost method is the profit distribution
declared by subsidiaries (Note 15(5)(a)).

Income tax expense

2020 2019

Current income tax calculated according to tax law and related regulations
in mainland China — China enterprise income tax 293,708,976 108,566,032
Deferred income tax (158,773,759) (59,444,319)
134,935,217 49,121,713

The reconciliation from income tax calculated based on the applicable tax rates and total profit presented in the Company’s
financial statements to the income tax expense is as below:

2020 2019
Total profit 1,083,317,383 866,510,625
Income tax expense calculated at applicable tax rates 270,829,345 216,627,656
Tax impact of equivalent sales and costs, expenses and losses not deductible
for tax purpose 20,388,798 39,116,263
Income not subject to tax (219,887,955) (276,670,437)
Impact of utilisation of previously unrecognized deferred tax assets (9,294,601) (2,380,939)
Deductible temporary differences of currently unrecognized deferred tax assets 72,899,630 72,429,170

Income tax expense 134,935,217 49,121,713
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1  Summary of non-recurring profit or loss

2020 2019

Government grants recognized in profits 517,048,836 602,897,696
Net profit or loss on disposal of non-current assets (5,204,016) 59,170,551

Reversal of impairment provision for accounts receivable which impairment is

provided individually 9,690 500,000
Employee arrangement expenses arising from land acquisition - (46,555,963)
Other non-operating income and expenses other than aforesaid items (10,535,197) 29,021,000
501,319,313 645,033,284

Impact of income tax expense (99,696,507) (112,892,874)
Impact on the non-controlling interests, net of tax (15,884,003) (27,018,105)
385,738,803 505,122,305

Basis for preparation of summary of non-recurring profit or loss

Under the requirements in Explanatory announcement No.1 on information disclosure by companies offering securities to the public

— non-recurring profit or loss [2008] from CSRC, non-recurring profit or loss refer to those arises from transactions and events

that are not directly relevant to ordinary activities, or that are relevant to ordinary activities, but are extraordinary and not expected

to recur frequently that would have an influence on users of financial statements making economic decisions on the financial

performance and profitability of an enterprise.

2 Return on net assets and earnings per share

Earnings per share

Weighted average return

on net assets Basic earnings per share  Diluted earnings per share
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Net profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company 11.13% 9.97% 1.629 1.371 1.627 1.371
Net profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company
after deducting non-recurring
profit or loss 9.18% 7.25% 1.344 0.997 1.342 0.997
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In this Report, the following expressions have the following

respective meanings set adjacent below, unless the context

requires otherwise:

Company, the Means

Company, Tsingtao

Brewery
the Group Means
the Board Means

Tsingtao Group Means

SASACQ Means

SSE Means
the Stock Exchange  Means

PwC Zhong Tian Means

Audit Committee Means

Strategy Committee ~ Means

Reporting Period Means

Model Code Means

Listing Rules Means

Articles of Association Means

Tsingtao Finance Means
Company

Tsingtao HK Means

Fosun Group Means

Fosun International Means
Limited
Incentive Plan Means

Culture Company Means

Zaozhuang Company Means

Tsingtao Brewery Company
Limited

the Company and its subsidiaries

Board of Directors of the
Company

Tsingtao Brewery Group
Company Limited

State-owned Assets Supervision
& Administration Commission
of the People’s Government of
Qingdao

Shanghai Stock Exchange

The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong
Tian LLP

Audit & Internal Control
Committee under the 9th
session of the Board

Strategy & Investment Committee
under the 9th session of the
Board

January 1 to December 31, 2020

Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers

Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock
of Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Articles of Association of the
Company

Tsingtao Brewery Finance LLC

Tsingtao Brewery Hong Kong
Trade Company Limited

five entity companies under Fosun
International Limited

Fosun International Limited

The Restricted A-Share Incentive
Plan of the Company

Tsingtao Brewery Culture
Communication Co., Ltd.

Tsingtao Brewery (Zaozhuang)
Co., Ltd.
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English Name: Tsingtao Brewery Company Limited

Legal Representative: HUANG Ke Xing

Company Secretary: Zhang Rui Xiang
Address: Secretarial Office of the Board
Room 1106 Tsingtao Beer Tower
No. 35 Donghai West Road,
Qingdao,
Shandong Province

Postal Code: 266071
Tel: 86-532-85713831
Fax: 86-532-85713240

Registered Address: No. 56, Dengzhou Road,
Qingdao, Shandong Province
Business Address: Tsingtao Beer Tower
No. 35 Donghai West Road,
Qingdao, Shandong Province
Postal Code: 266071
Company Website: www.tsingtao.com.cn
E-mail: info@tsingtao.com.cn

Stock Exchanges on which the Company’s shares are listed:
A share: Shanghai Stock Exchange

Stock Name: i & M7

Stock Code: 600600

H share: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Name: TSINGTAO BREW

Stock Code: 00168

Custodian of unlisted shares: Shanghai Branch of China
Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited

Auditor: PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP at 11/F
PricewaterhouseCoopers Center, Link Square 2, 202 Hu Bin
Road, Huangpu District, Shanghai

Legal advisers:
(1)  Woo Kwan Lee & Lo at 26th Floor, Jardine House, 1
Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong

(2) Haiwen & Partners at 20th Floor, Fortune Finance
Center, No. 5 Dong San Huan Road Central,
Chaoyang District, Beijing






	Cover
	Contents
	Company Profile
	Financial Highlights
	Chairman’s Statement
	Report of the Directors
	Report of the Supervisors
	Corporate Governance Report
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Manager
	Significant Events
	Financial Report
	Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets
	Consolidated and Company Income Statements
	Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
	Company Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
	Notes to Financial Statements
	Supplementary Information
	Definitions
	Company Information
	Back Cover


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting true
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks true
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        14.173230
        14.173230
        14.173230
        14.173230
      ]
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName (U.S. Web Coated \(SWOP\) v2)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /UseName
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MarksOffset 0
      /MarksWeight 0.283460
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PageMarksFile /JapaneseWithCircle
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




